Central Electricity Regulatory Commission
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Petition No. 380/MP/2022-CERC- Dated 24.3.2023

Public Notice

Petition under Regulation 40 of the Central Electricity Regulatory Commission
(Power Market) Regulations, 2021 and Clause 8 of the Guidelines for Registration
and Filing Application for Establishing and Operating over the Counter (OTC)
Platform for grant of registration to establish and operate the OTC Platform has been
filed by the Petitioner M/s GNA Energy Private Limited (GEPL).

The matter was heard on 24.1.2023. The Commission vide Record of
Proceeding (RoP) for the hearing dated 24.1.2023 directed to upload the revised
application of the Petitioner on the Commission's website for inviting
comments/suggestions from the Stakeholders within a period of 15 days.
Accordingly, in compliance of RoP dated 24.01.2023, revised copy of application
submitted by M/s GNA Energy Private Limited (GEPL) is available on our Website.

Stakeholders are requested to submit their comment/s on said application on
or before 08.04.2023 on the following email ids:-

1. secy@cercind.gov.in
2. gagandiwan@cercind.gov.in
3. sanjeev@gna.energy

Sd/-
(Vipan Sharma)
Assistant Chief (Legal)
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Record of Proceedings

Case was called out for virtual hearing.

2. Learned counsel for the Petitioner submitted that the present petition has been
filed for grant of registration to establish and operate OTC Platform under Regulation
40 of Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (Power Market) Regulations, 2021
(‘PMR 2021’) and Clause 8 of the Guidelines for Registration and Filing Application for
Establishing and Operating Over the Counter (OTC) Platform (‘OTC Platform
Guidelines’). Learned counsel for the Petitioner mainly submitted as under:

(@) In compliance of Clause 8(2) of the OTC Platform Guidelines, the

Petitioner has published the notice of its application along with details of the
proposed platform on its website for inviting stakeholders’ comments and
suggestions within a period of 30 days from the date of publication. The
Petitioner also approached the various stakeholders including CTUIL, but till
date no comments/suggestions/objections have been received.

(b)  The Petitioner is a company incorporated under the Companies Act,
2013 and as on 15.12.2022, the net worth of the Petitioner is Rs. 1.46 crore
thereby it fulfils the requirements under Regulation 43(1) of the PMR 2021.

(c) Further, the Petitioner is not a Power Exchange, trading licensee or a
grid connected entity.
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(d)  The Petitioner meets all the requirements including General Criteria (Cl.
6.1), Technological Criteria (Cl. 6.2) and Financial Criteria (Cl. 6.3) as specified
in the OTP Platform Guidelines for grant of registration for establishing and
operating OTC.

3. In response to the certain queries of the Commission regarding identification of
the key managerial personnel (KMP), experience of the Directors in the power sector,
non-submission of balance-sheet, organizational structure, etc., the learned counsel
sought additional time to file its response thereon.

4. Learned Counsel for the New Age Market in Electricity Pvt. Ltd. (‘NAME)
submitted that NAME has filed an Interlocutory Application (IA) bearing Diary
N0.26/2023 seeking its impleadment as Respondent to the present Petition. The
learned counsel submitted that NAME being an entity already granted registration to
operate the OTC Platform and further having been entrusted to draft the detailed
frameworks for collection of information and its dissemination, digitation process of
information sharing with Market Monitoring Cell of the Commission, etc., it is submitted
that NAME is a necessary and proper party for the petition. In response, the learned
counsel for the Petitioner submitted that as such NAME does not have entrenched
right to be heard as contended by it in its IA. The learned counsel also added that
despite the Petitioner having published the notice of its application inviting the
comments/ suggestions of stakeholders, NAME did not file any such comments/
suggestions.

5. The Commission expressed that while new proposals for registration as OTC
Platform operator are encouraged, OTC Platform, being a new concept, warrants
detailed consultation with the stakeholders for a prudent alignment of its objectives
towards overall development of the power market.

6. Accordingly, after hearing the learned counsels for the Petitioner and NAME, the
Commission ordered as under:

(a) Admit.

(b) The Petitioner to implead NAME as objector to the Petition and file revised
memo of parties within a week.

(c) The Petitioner to submit a revised application along with the following
information on affidavit, within six weeks:

() Special Balance Sheet in terms of Para 14(ii) of Form-I of the OTC
Platform Guidelines;

(i) Details of its Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and experience of the
Directors in the power sector;

(i) The proposed organizational structure and managerial capability along
with the role of key staff of the Petitioner;

(d) The Commission directed the Petitioner to give wide publicity to its proposed
OTC Platform by uploading the revised application again on its website for
inviting stakeholders’ comments within a period of 15 days from the date of
issuance of this Record of Proceedings.
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(e) The Petitioner to serve its revised application to the objector and the objector
to file its reply/objection, if any, within three weeks after serving to the Petitioner
who may file its response thereon within three weeks thereafter.

7. The Commission further directed to upload the revised application of the
Petitioner on the Commission’s website for inviting comments/suggestions from the
stakeholders within a period of 15 days.

8. The Petition shall be listed for hearing after compliance of the directions given
above.

By order of the Commission
Sd/-

(T.D. Pant)
Joint Chief (Law)
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BEFORE THE HON’BLE CENTRAL ELECTRICTY REGULATORY COMMISSION,

AT NEW DELHI
PETITION NO. /MP/2022
IN THE MATTER OF:
GNA Energy Private Limited ...Petitioner
1. GNA Energy Private Limited (“GNA”), being a company incorporated in terms of

the Companies Act 2013 has preferred the present Petition to seek the approval of this
Hon’ble Commission to establish and operate an Over the Counter (“OTC”) Platform in
terms of the CERC (Power Market) Regulations, 2021 (“PMR 2021") read with the
Guidelines for Registration and Filing Application for Establishing and Operating Over the
Counter Platform, 2022 (“OTC Guidelines”).

2. In terms of Regulation 44(1) of the PMR 2021 and Clause 8 of OTC Guidelines an
Applicant so desirous of establishing and operating an OTC Platform has been mandated
to file an online application on the website of this Hon’ble Commission, in in accordance

with the OTC Guidelines for registration of the said platform.

3. Accordingly, the details sought under Form I of the OTC Guidelines have been

provided hereinbelow:-

FORM -1

Application form for grant of Registration for OTC Platform

General Information

S.N. Particulars Details

1. Name of the | GNA Energy Private Limited
Applicant

2. | Address (a) Registered Office Address: 706, Palm Spring Plaza, Sector 54,
Gurugram, Haryana - 122009




S.N. Particulars Details
(b) Address for Correspondence: 706, Palm Spring Plaza, Sector
54, Gurugram, Haryana - 122009
(c) Website Address: www.gna.energy
3. Name, Name: Sanjeev Kumar
Designation and | Designation: Director
Address of the | Address: Park Road, Near Public Health Office, Gohana, Sonipat,
Contact Person Haryana - 131301
Certified Copy of Board Resolution dated 14.12.2022 for
authorizing the directors of the Applicant to file the Application
before the Ld. Central Electricity Regulatory Commission
(“CERC”) and original Power of Attorney dated 16.12.2022 is
annexed herewith and marked as Annexure P-1 and Annexure
P-2.
4. Contact +91 9780056010
Telephone Nos. | +91 124 4469919
5. Fax No. NA
6. Email ID sanjeev@gna.energy
7. Status of the | Private Limited Company incorporated under the Companies Act,
Applicant 2013
(whether a
company
incorporated
under the
Companies Act

1956 or 2013)
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S.N. Particulars Details
8. Place of | Manesar
Incorporation/ Copy of the Certificate of Incorporation and GST Registration
Registration Certificate are annexed herewith and marked as Annexure P-3
and Annexure P-4
0. Year of | 2022
Incorporation/
Registration
10. | Clause of the | “(A) THE MAIN OBJECTS TO BE PURSUED BY THE COMPANY ON
Memorandum of | ITS INCORPORATION ARE:-
Association 1. Carry on the business provide an electronic platform with the
which authorizes | information of potential buyer and seller of electricity; 2. maintain
to set up & | arepository of data related to buyers and sellers and provide such
operate an OTC | historical data to market participants; 3. Provide such services as
Platform advanced data analysis tools to market participants and 4. To
(Extract the | establish, set up, operate, and maintain an over the counter
relevant portion) | platform under the Electricity Act, 2003 and rules and regulations
issued thereunder, and to provide (i) an electronic platform with
the information of potential buyers and sellers of electricity (ii)
maintain a repository of data related to buyers and sellers and (iii)
historical data and services as advanced data analysis tools to
market participants, including grid connected entities such as
generating companies, distribution licensees, open access
consumers, trading licensees and any other entity as may be
notified by the appropriate regulatory commission or authority
under the Electricity Act, 2003 including any amendments thereof”
Copy of the Memorandum of Association and Articles of
Association are annexed herewith and marked as Annexure P-5
and Annexure P-6.
11. | Share Capital (a) Authorised share capital: 2,00,00,000




S.N.

Particulars

Details

(b) Issued share capital: Rs. 1,54,00,000/-

(c) Subscribed share capital: 1,54,00,000

(d) Paid up share capital: 1,54,00,000

Copy of the Master Data of the Applicant mentioning the share
capital of the Applicant, available on the website of the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs is annexed herewith and marked as

Annexure P-7.

The Applicant has infused an amount of Rs. 1,54,00,000 as the
Authorized share capital and Paid up share capital. The Applicant
will infuse further capital depending upon needs during the

implementation and operation of the proposed OTC Platform.

As on the date of filing of the Application, the Applicant
undertakes that it shall take every endeavour to ensure that the
functioning and operation of the proposed OTC Platform is not
compromised in any manner whatsoever for want of any
resources and that the Applicant shall take all necessary steps to

generate the resources, as and when required.

Copy of e-Form INC- 20A filed by the Applicant for declaration of
commencement of business operations of the Applicant has been

annexed herewith and marked as Annexure P-8.

Copy of PAN of the Applicant has been annexed herewith and

marked as Annexure P-9.




S.N. Particulars Details
TAN of the Applicant is provided in the Certificate of
Incorporation, therefore, Annexure P-3 (Certificate of
Incorporation) may be referred for TAN of the Applicant.
12. | (i) Net worth as | NA.
per the last
year's  audited
accounts prior to
the date of
application  (if
applicable).
(ii) Net worth on | The Net worth of the Applicant as on 15.12.2022 is Rs.
the date of | 1,45,82,521/-
preparation  of
the special | Copy of Net Worth Certificate dated 15.12.2022 is annexed
balance sheet in | herewith and marked as Annexure P-10
accordance with
clause 6.3(i) of
these Guidelines
and
accompanying
the application.
13 | Details of | As on the date of Application, the Applicant has following

shareholding as
on the date of
making

application

(Give details of
each of the

shareholders

shareholders holding 5% (five per cent) and above shares of the

Applicant directly or with relatives:-

Name Citizenship | Residential | No. of | % of holding
Status Shares total paid up
held share
capital
Sanjeev | Indian Permanent | 7,45,000 | 48.38
Kumar




S.N. Particulars Details

holding 5% and || Bhoovan | Indian Permanent | 7,45,000 | 48.38

above of the || Singh

shares of the || Rakesh | Indian Permanent | 50,000 3.24

applicant Kumar

directly or with || Mishra

relatives)
List of shareholders of the Applicant as on the date of Application
is annexed herewith and marked as Annexure P-11
The Applicant proposes to involve strategic players into the
equity structure in accordance with the Central Electricity
Regulatory Commission (Power Market) Regulations, 2021
("PMR, 2021") and Guidelines for Registration and Filing
Application for Establishing and Operating Over the Counter
(OTC) Platform.

14 | (1) Annual | NA

turnover

as per the

audited accounts

for the last FY

prior to the date

of application (if

applicable).

(ii) Turnover on | NA

the

date of

preparation  of
the special
balance sheet in
accordance with
clause 6.3(i) of

these guidelines
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S.N. Particulars Details

and
accompanying

the application.

ENCLOSURES: LIST OF DOCUMENTS TO BE UPLOADED WITH THE APPLICATION

4, The Applicant i.e,, GNA is required to submit a brief description of the OTC
Platform for which authorization is sought in terms of the list of enclosures given under
Form I of the OTC Guidelines (@ Pg. 18 of the OTC Guidelines). Accordingly, the details

are as follows:-
(i) Details of services offered

5. The Applicant’s proposed OTC platform will help in exchange of information along
with bringing together demand and supply side of the electricity market stakeholders on
the OTC platform in a transparent and secure manner. The Applicant will attempt in
popularising the OTC platform among the energy sector stakeholders in order to list their
energy requirements. The platform would strive to help in removing information
asymmetry among stakeholders. The Applicant will provide information to the buyers
and sellers of electricity in a transparent and neutral manner so as to help such buyers

and sellers make informed decisions.

6. With the help of energy sector stakeholders, the Applicant’s proposed platform
would act as a data repository of sellers and buyers. This platform would help the
stakeholders in addressing their electricity optimization requirements and help in

bringing in efficiency and help in sustainable development of the country.

7. The proposed OTC platform of the Applicant shall make available historical data
related to buyers and sellers and provide such services as advanced data analysis, to all
market participants in a process that is fair and non-discriminatory. It would provide data

or information as required by this Hon’ble Commission in the required format.

8. The Applicant’s proposed OTC platform will adhere to objective, fair and
transparent criteria for participation. While onboarding of the market participants, due

diligence will be conducted and in data repository. Such relevant information will be
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maintained and may be furnished upon the direction and/or request of an Appropriate
Authority. The proposed OTC Platform will use a unique identifier like Legal Entity
Identifier (“LEI”) or Permanent Account Number (PAN) during the onboarding process
for the participants. The said OTC Platform will maintain neutrality in all scenarios and

shall take care against influencing participants in their decision making.

9. The Applicant’s OTC platform shall strive to provide a good user interface along
with data entry flexibility on the platform as per the stakeholder needs. Customization

and clean UI/UX will help in effective visibility of the desired needs of the stakeholders.

10.  The Applicant will formulate and implement state-of-art cyber security and cyber
resilience framework to manage risks to systems, networks and databases. In summary,

the OTC platform will provide:

(a)  Arobusttechnological electronic platform with the information of potential buyer
and seller of electricity and act as a secure and safe platform for exchange of

information;
(b)  Arepository of data related to buyers and sellers;
() Advanced data analytical tools to stakeholders;

(d)  Aplatform capable of exchange of information on real time basis or near real-time

basis;

(e) Cyber security and cyber resilience framework to manage system, networks and

databases risks along with comprehensive risk management framework;
() An internal arrangement to address any dispute that may arise or likely to arise.
(ii) Key organizational structure
11.  The central/key structures of GNA’s OTC platform would be:

(a)  Administration: It will help in day-to-day operations, and aid in creation of neutral,
fair and transparent policies. It will be a unifying and binding force of the
organisation. The Chief Executive Officer will be running the day-to-day
operations of the organisation under the supervision of the Company’s Board of

Directors. This team will lay down the future plans and goals of the organisation.



(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)
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Administration team will also ensure that the whole organisation works in unison
and to achieve the organisation goals in line with PMR 2021 and OTC platform
guidelines. It would make reports in regard to progress of the organisation and
share them from time to time with different stakeholders of the organisation. This
department will ensure neutrality, transparency and fairness in the procedures

and processes of the organisation.

Research and Development: This key vertical will consist of research analysts and

experts. They will experiment and validate the options and bring the best, efficient
and effective solution of the problems into the best possible solutions. Information
Technology (“IT”) experts will help in developing and maintaining the robust and
reliable platform with state-of-the-art IT infrastructure. Cyber experts will block
the invasive attacks along with blocking any activities disruption. They will also

be part of risk-assessment protocols.

Marketing and Sales: This vertical will play a crucial role in popularising the OTC
platform. It would spread awareness about the functionalities of the platform,
provide real feedback from stakeholders and respond to requisite demands. It will
help in listing the requirements on the platform and bringing liquidity on the
platform. It will provide desired information to buyers and sellers of the electricity

and help in onboarding of the participants on the platform.

Accounting and Finance: This vertical will play a critical role in functioning of the
platform effectively and maintain the records of financial transactions in form of
financial statements, which include, the balance sheet, profit and loss statement

and cash flow statement.

Regulatory and Security Compliance: The Applicant will formulate and implement

a cyber security and cyber resilience framework to manage risks to systems,
networks and databases. Regular security audits will be carried out as per the
norms. This vertical will help in creating system reliability protocols, risk
assessment protocols, back up plans and many more as per the requirement. It
will implement systems and controls to ensure that participants participate with
fairness and integrity and monitor the activities on a real time basis as well as

post-facto basis.
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(iii)

12.

(a)

(b)

(c)
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Human Resource: This vertical will help in finding efficient technical resources.
Further, it would help in talent retention, their grievance and other issues in
regard to manpower. It will be responsible to provide a conducive working
environment for the employees. It would be creating employee policies and be

responsible for its execution.

Customer Support: This vertical would form a crucial aspect of the grievance

redressal mechanism as required by the OTC Guidelines. It will provide quick
resolutions to the problems faced by the participants. It will also provide
awareness about various functionalities of the platform. Well defined escalation
matrix will further help in effective resolution of the disputes or issues faced by

the participants.
Key Processes

The key processes required for the establishment and operation of the GNA’s OTC

platform have been summarized hereinbelow:-

Developing Vision and strategy:-

Deep technological platform
Transparent
Inclusive

Fair

Neutral

Developing and managing product:-

[ Development process
[ System Healthiness

[ Maintenance process
[ Continuous updation
[ Testing process

Marketing and business development:-




(d)

(e)
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Onboarding of stakeholders
Defining the requirements of listing
Documentation of interested stakeholders

Onboarding approval

Listing of requirements by onboarded stakeholders

Delivering Services:-

Providing enterprise infrastructure
network hardware to cloud-based services

o

[

[ online storage and virtualized applications

[ enhanced application performance monitoring
o

Machine Learning driven analysis of all event, metric, trace and log data
Managing Customer service:-
[ Resolving the technical issues
[ Managing the log books
[ Timely updation of issues to stakeholders
[ Knowledge awareness

Finance and account process:-

Budgeting
Payrolls

Audit

Daily accounting

Account keeping

Statutory Compliance

Risk assessment and compliance process:-



(h)

(iv)

13.
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Data Backup process

Cyber security and cyber resilience process
Risk audits

Regulatory compliance process

Access Control process

Surveillance

Dispute resolution process: The OTC platform will put in place an internal

arrangement to address any dispute that may arise or are likely to arise between

the members.
Indicative Project Plan

The Applicant plans to operate and establish the OTC Platform through following

steps mentioned below:-

(a)

(b)

Submission of Application to this Hon’ble Commission for the grant of registration

of OTC platform as per PMR 2021 and OTC Guidelines. The Applicant undertake to

complete all required documentations, reports and affidavits and submit it to the

this Hon’ble Commission for its consideration.

Designing and Preparatory Phase: Designing the technical architecture along with

User Interface and user experience interface (“UI/UX”) is a crucial part of the
software development process. Good UI/UX will smoothen the onboarding

process and capture the right type of data sets.

The Applicant will fine tune the software modelling along with onboarding
processes. Also, the procedural aspects of the onboarding process will be

deliberated upon and be concluded during such process.

During this phase, security and cyber experts will be involved to guide and check
the reliability and robustness of the platform architecture. Various use cases about
the security aspect will be explored and the most viable and resilient solution will

be imbibed into the system. The Applicant’s technical team will take into account



(c)

16

the software architectural and safety processes and will design a robust and

reliable application.

The Applicant’s platform shall put in place a comprehensive risk management
framework with the help of risk and cyber experts. Risk assessment and mitigation
would be a crucial part and will stress and focus on it right from the architectural
stage. All the risks associated with its operations shall be identified properly and

managed prudently.

Risk assessment would be part of organisational structure and a dedicated
committee would be observing this aspect of the platform. Access to the platform
would be controlled and unauthorised access would be prevented. Platform would

fulfil all the requisite legal and regulatory requirements.

Development phase of protocols: The Applicant will design and develop the OTC

platform using the latest technological infrastructure along with keeping in mind
the safety protocol as per Government of India guidelines and global best
practices. Development will be along with cyber security team to protect the
platform from vulnerable environment. During this phase, process functionalities
will be finalised and technical architecture after approval from internal technical

experts will be coded and will be brought into existence.

Developed OTC platform shall provide information of potential buyers and sellers
of electricity. It will maintain a repository of data related to buyers and sellers and
provide such historical data to market participants. Platform will provide services

such as advanced analysis tools to market participants.

The Applicant’s OTC Platform will adhere to objective, fair and transparent criteria
for participation. During onboarding of the market participants, due diligence will
be conducted and in the data repository all such relevant information will be
maintained and whenever required by qualified authority it would be furnished
to them. Platform would use a unique identifier like Legal Entity Identifier (LEI)
or permanent account number (PAN) during the onboarding process for the
participants. Platform will maintain neutrality without influencing the decision

making of the participants in any manner.
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Developed platform shall be available as a mobile application (Mobile App) and
web-application. Availability at both platforms shall make it more inclusive and
more participative. The proposed mobile application can be downloaded from the

mobile app stores.

Market Participants can access any of the platform applications. Easy access along
with a simple layout of the access page will help the participants to register
themselves without any technical help. With the presence of navigation tabs and
tools, participants can explore the platform with ease and utilise the platform
effectively and efficiently. Various services offered by the platform will be listed in
a clean layout and participants can choose the services as per their convenience

and needs.

The OTC Platform would be using continuous risk assessment and monitoring
tools along with utilisation of artificial intelligence (“Al”) and machine learning
language (“ML”) to observe the participants' behaviour and problems faced. Al
and ML will help in the ever-evolving nature of the platform and they will detect
the obstacles faced by participants and will work towards smoothing the

processes and removing the redundancy in the processes.

The OTC Platform will use various methods like Data encryption, decryption,
hashing etc of high standards to protect the data as per PMR 2021 regulations. It
will bring data anonymity and prevent leakage and theft of data. Platform will
automatically raise alarm and create log reports in the event of disruption of
activities or market abuse and the same would be intimated to the Hon’ble
Commission without any delay. It will implement systems and controls to ensure
that participants participate with fairness and integrity and monitor the activities

on a real time basis as well as post-facto basis.

The OTC Platform would have grievance redressal mechanisms and dedicated
resources for its resolution. A dedicated customer support will be established for
immediate response and early and faster redressal of participants' issues.

Escalation matrix would be well defined in the organisational structure.

The Mechanism would be well defined on the platform and part of the

communications with the participants. The OTC Platform would be hosted on
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reliable and well reputed service providers and data backups shall be maintained
in encrypted format and other system reliability protocols would be taken into

account.

Data Analytics tools: During this process queries will be developed to analyse the

data received by OTC platform and further their graphical representation layouts

will be designed.

The OTC Platform shall make available historical data related to buyers and sellers
and provide such services as advanced data analysis, to all market participants in

a fair and non-discriminatory basis.

It would provide any data or information as required by the Hon’ble Commission
in the format as desired by them. Customised reports shall be created by the
platform as per requirements. Data logs of activities and various disruption
activities will also be maintained by the platform and provided to Hon’ble
Commission and various charts would be created for better understanding. Data
may be used to develop and use various tools and services to achieve the
Government of India’s mission of net zero emission. To achieve the above,
proposed OTC platform will develop a power atlas which will encompass different

players from power sector value chain.

After approval, the implementation process will start. It includes testing of the

platform, onboarding the stakeholders and going live of the OTC platform.
Organizational and Managerial capability of the Applicant

As per PMR, 2021, a power exchange or trading licensee or any of their Associates

or grid connected entities are prohibited from operating or having shareholding in the

OTC Platform. Therefore, the Applicant shall not onboard any such entity as its partners

or shareholders.

15.

Further, the Applicant shall have clear demarcation between the ownership,

management, and members registered with the OTC Platform by ensuring that the

entities having a shareholding in the Applicant company would not be able to interfere in

the day-to-day management and operations of the OTC Platform.
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16. The Board of Directors ("Board") and the management of the Applicant will
comprise of the person(s) having relevant domain knowledge, experience and will be
persons of repute. Accordingly, the Profile, Curriculum Vitae of key and senior executives

of the Applicant are annexed herewith and marked as Annexure P-12 (Colly).

17. The Applicant proposes that an independent specialized and competent
management team would be constituted with a Managing Director to run the day-to-day
operation of the OTC Platform. The proposed team will comprise of seasoned

professionals having expertise in the following:

(a) Developing and operating technological platform
(b)  Power Sector Experts

() Managerial capabilities

(d)  Cyber Security expertise

(vi)  Approach and Methodology

18.  GNA’s approach for establishing the OTC platform will stand on four pillars which
are related to: Organisational structure, technology, design of platform, and confidence

of stakeholders. The key activities involved in each of the approach is listed below:

(a) Planned Organizational Structure:-
(i) Building a strong and capable team
(ii) Designing robust process for training and building organizational culture
(iii)  Designing of KPI and rewards to ensure compliance via effective operation

(iv)  Building a coherent reporting structure for quality assurance, compliance

and risk management
(b)  Robust and resilient technology:-

(i) Establishing a core team who are experienced in handling large scale IT

projects
(ii) Onboarding partners who have relevant capabilities, exposure and skills

(iii) Deployment of agile and scalable architecture



(c)

(d)
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Purposeful design of platform:-

(i) Designing a flexible and modular platform
(ii)  Incorporating easy accessibility across India
(iii)  Secure, online and real time data

(iv)  Neutral, inclusive and transparent data

(v) Compliance and risk mitigation

Ensuring stakeholder confidence. Conducting meetings and taking inputs from

internal and external stakeholders including:-

(i) Government and regulatory bodies

(ii)  Electricity Market participants

(iii) Knowledge providers and experts

(iv)  Suppliers, partners and other related parties

GNA will undertake the six steps methodology to execute the above-mentioned

approach from developing the action plan to onboarding the relevant stakeholders:-

(a)

Developing action plan and strategy: An initial stage which will help in turning

vision into reality and increase efficiency and accountability. It describes the way
in which an organisation will meet its goal or an objective. GNA will undertake the

following activities to create a robust action plan:

(i) Contacting and consulting stakeholders, market participants and executive

board to gather information as well as formulating business strategy
(ii)  Creating list of activities needed to fulfil the requirements

(iii)  Assessing the need for resources and the skills to implement various

activities
(iv)  Undertaking financial modelling and budgeting plan for various activities

(v) Crating a list of resources required for formulating a business plan



(b)

(vi)

(vii)
(viii)

(ix)
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Identification of various partners who can help in implementation the

Platform
Creating a project management office
Preparing a risk mitigation plan to manage uncertain activities

Identifying key milestones and assigning key KRAs and KPIs which will

help in current performance

Team Building: To develop the OTC platform and meet the agendas, GNA will build

a team to run and operate various systems, processes, and organisation. GNA will

initiate the process with onboarding of the Key Management Personnel (“KMP”)

and advisory team.

There are seven major departments which will be involved in formulation and

implementation of the activities involved: Operations, Technical, Financial,

Regulatory affairs, Human Resource, Business Development, and administration.

The KMP will further build the team as the organisation evolves in context of the

requirements of building the platform. The KMP will comprise of:

()

(i)

(iii)

Chief Executive Officer: The highest-ranking executive in the company
whose primary responsibilities lies in taking corporate decisions and
managing the overall operations and resources of the company. In GNA, the
CEO will be the ultimate decision marker and involved in setting the

agendas.

Chief Technology Officer: As one of the four agendas of GNA in setting the
OTC platform is robust and resilient technology which will require CTO to
assist and guide the technical team in developing the OTC platform to meet

the end goal.

Chief Operating Officer: COO is responsible for glitch free operations,
contracts, and procurement, maintaining data and information, and
selective disposal of data which is highly important for the seamless

experience of stakeholder



(iv)

v)

(vi)
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Chief Security Officer: OTC platform will have various information and data
services related to generating and distribution companies. Data security

becomes a critical part which calls for CSO.

Chief Financial Officer: Finance department shall be responsible for
accounts, corporate finance, financial modelling, and budgeting which is

the key step in the action plan.

Advisory team: It comprises of power market experts and technology
experts who can guide in implementation of the key activities for setting

up OTC platform

Developing Standard Operating Procedure (“SOP”): GNA has developed SOP for

end-to-end implementation of development and implementation of the platform

of which the following are the key activities:-

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)
(vi)
(vii)

Mapping the function and use case of OTC platform, including the
development and introduction of services, pricing of services, onboarding

of stakeholders, data collection and data privacy requirements.

Listing regulatory procedures for operating the OTC Platform including
compliances, risk management, audits and facilitation of internal

communication and managerial decision making;

Identification of ancillary process to run and manage the OTC Platform
including developing IT protocols, development of project development
processes, testing and maintenance process, security and data storage

processes;

Conducting risk assessment and examining external threats including

scenario planning, identification of best practices;
Creating review mechanism for setting up the platform;
Creating SOP for onboarding partners and other stakeholders;

Preparation of documentation and training manual;



(d)

(e)
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(viii) Assess applicability in context of regulation and requirement of GNA for
implementing processes for review of actionable steps in line with

regulatory and legal needs

Technological Onboarding: The Applicant will design and develop using the latest
technological infrastructure along with keeping in mind the safety protocol as per
Government of India guidelines and global best practices. Development will be
done in in-depth along with cyber security team to protect the platform from
vulnerable environment. During this process functionalities will be finalised and
technical architecture after approval from internal technical experts will be coded
and will be brought into existence. Developed OTC platform shall provide
information of potential buyers and sellers of electricity. It will maintain a
repository of data related to buyers and sellers and provide such historical data to

market participants.

The OTC Platform will adhere to objective, fair and transparent criteria for
participation. During onboarding of the market participants, due diligence will be
conducted and in the data repository all such relevant information will be
maintained and whenever required by qualified authority it would be furnished

to them

The Applicant’s platform shall put in place a comprehensive risk management
framework with the help of risk and cyber experts. Risk assessment and mitigation
would be a crucial part and will stress and focus on it right from the architectural
stage. All the risks associated with its operations shall be identified properly and

managed prudently.

Risk assessment would be part of organisational structure and a dedicated
committee would be observing this aspect of the platform. Access to the platform
would be controlled and unauthorised access would be prevented. Platform would

fulfil all the requisite legal and regulatory requirements.

Project Management and Development: Developed platform shall be available as

a mobile application (Mobile App) and web-application. Availability at both
platforms shall make it more inclusive and more participative. The proposed

mobile application can be downloaded from the mobile app stores.
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Market Participants can access any of the platform applications. Easy access along
with a simple layout of the access page will help the participants to register
themselves without any technical help. With the presence of navigation tabs and
tools, participants can explore the platform with ease and utilise the platform
effectively and efficiently. Various services offered by the platform will be listed in
a clean layout and participants can choose the services as per their convenience

and needs.

Platform would be using continuous risk assessment and monitoring tools along
with utilisation of Al and ML to observe the participants' behaviour and problems
faced. Al and ML will help in the ever-evolving nature of the platform, and they
will detect the obstacles faced by participants and will work towards smoothing

the processes and removing the redundancy in the processes.

The Platform will use various methods like Data encryption, decryption, hashing
etc of high standards to protect the data as per PMR 2021 regulations. It will bring

data anonymity and prevent leakage and theft of data.

The Platform will automatically raise alarm and create log reports in the event of
disruption of activities or market abuse and the same would be intimated to this
Hon’ble Commission without any delay. It will implement systems and controls to
ensure that participants participate with fairness and integrity and monitor the

activities on a real time basis as well as post-facto basis.

() Onboarding of stakeholders: GNA will work with various stakeholders for

ensuring that the platform meets the requirements and provides value to all the

stakeholders in a robust manner.
The methodology deployed will be as follows:

(i) Identification of relevant stakeholders to run the OTC platform which will

fulfil the objective and regulatory requirements

(ii) Grouping the stakeholder based on the inputs needed and requirement of

the platform to attain the final goal
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20.  Affidavit as per Form-1V is annexed herewith and marked as Annexure P-13.

. GNA Energy Private Limited
%
\

N g/&@ﬁ?wigéﬁ Signatory

Mr. Sanjeev K\@mar
" Director
GNA Energy Private Limited

Through

J. Sagar Associates

Advocates for the Petitioner

B-303, 3 Floor, Ansal Plaza,

Place: Hudco Place, August Kranti Marg,
Date: New Delhi - 110049
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CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF RESOLUTION PASSED AT THE MEETING OF THE BOARD DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

AT 706, 7™ FLOOR , PALM SPRING PLAZA, SECTOR 54, GURUGRAM, HARYANA — 122009 AT 14™ DECEMBER
2022 AT 11:00 AM

The Chairman informed the Board that a person is to be authorised

@)

(i)

To file an application before Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC) for obtaining
registration to operate as an Over the Counter (OTC) Platform Generator in accordance with the
Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (Power Market) Regulations , 2021 (PMR, 2021), as
amended from time to time , issued by CERC under Electricity Act, 2003 read with Guidelines for
Registration and Filling Application for Establishing and Operating Over the Counter (OTC) Platform
(OTC Guidelines) and applicable law, and to sign, verify, declare, affirm, present, submit and file all
necessary affidavits , reply, undertakings, declarations, applications, statements, papers and
documents in connection thereto as may be required by CERC or any other regulatory body.

To appear or give representation on behalf of the company before the CERC or any other
regulatory body in relation to application for obtaining registration for operating as OTC Platform
Operator and to do all such acts and deeds in this relation as may be necessary in connection
therewith and incidental or ancillary thereto

All Directors discussed the same and it was unanimously,

“RESOLVED THAT the Mr. Sanjeev Kumar S/o Sh. Jai Singh , presently residing at Park Road, Near Public Health
Office, Gohana, Haryana 131301 is authorised for the above.”

“EURTHER RESOLVED THAT all the directors is hereby providing their consent ,severally or jointly to enter, sign,
transact and/or do all deeds necessary for the execution of the registration and further process at Central
Electricity Regulatory commission (CERC).”

Certified True Copy
For GNA Energy.Private Limited
GNA Energy Blivate Limited
—Director
(Rakesh Kumar Mishra)
Director
DIN : 09605055

Address : CK 3/3, 4A,
Chanakya Rail Enclave,
Chanakyapuri, Delhi -110021

GN Energy;’{ivate Limited

v

(Sanj e<>\mar) Director

Director

DIN : 07163824

Address : Gohana, Sonipat
Haryana

131301

@ GNA Energy Private Limited
Office Add: 706, Palm Spring Plaza, Sector 54, Gurugram, Haryana-122009

CIN: U74999HR2022PTC106630 | info@gna.energy

’
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ANNEXURE P-2

Purpose : POWER ATTORNEY to be submitted at Gurugram

Indian-Non Judicial Stamp %
Haryana Government )

Date : 08/12/2022

Certificate No.  TCH2022L6 [ T[T ]]]] Stamp Duty. Fad s £:401
Rs Only)
GRN No. 97015242 P R 20
T Penaty
Gna Energy Private limited
H.No/Floor : 706 Sector/Ward : 54 Landmark : 7th floor palm spring
City/Village : Gurugram District :  Gurugram State : Haryana

98“....39

The authenticity of this document can be verified by scanning this QrCode Through smart phone or on the website https://egrashry.nic.in

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that GNA ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED (hereinafter
referred to as the “Company”), having its registered office at #706, Palm Spring Plaza,
Sector-54, Gurugram, Haryana 122009, do hereby nominate, appoint and authorize Shri
Sanjeev Kumar S/o Shri Jai Singh aged 38 years residing at Park Road, Near Public Health
Office, Gohana, Haryana 131301 as our true and lawful attorney (hereinafter referred to as
the “Attorney”) to do in our name and on our behalf, all such acts, deeds and things as are
necessary or required in connection with or incidental to:

a) to file an application before Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (“CERC") for

obtaining registration to operate as an Over the Counter (OTC) Platform Operator in
accordance with the Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (Power Market)
Regulations, 2021 (“PMR, 2021"), as amended from time to time, issued by CERC
under Electricity Act, 2003 read with Guidelines for Registration and Filling
Application for Establishing and Operating Over the Counter (OTC) Platform (“OTC
Guidelines”), and applicable law, and to sign, verify, declare, affirm, present, submit
and file all necessary affidavits, reply, undertakings, declarations, applications,
statements, papers and documents in connection thereto as may be required by CERC
or any other regulatory body;

appear or give representation on behalf of the company before the CERC or any other

GNA Energy Private Limited

Director
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ry documents filed or presented by the Company
tion to application for obtaining registration to
or adopt such other course as the Attorney may
lication by the Company or on behalf of the
for operating as OTC Platform operator

c¢) withdraw the application or necessa
or on behalf of the Company in rela
operate as an OTC platform operator,
deem fit in relation to filling of the app
Company, in relation to obtaining registration
under PMR, 2021 and OTC guidelines;

d) appoint, or remove any advocates or other professionals for any of the foregoing;

and

e) take such other action as he may deem fit in relation to any of the foregoing.

ee that all lawful acts, deeds and things done or
foresaid purposes shall be considered as acts,
and the Company undertake to ratify
cause to be done by the virtue

The Company hereby undertake and agr
executed by the said Attorney for the a
deeds and things done or executed by the Company,
and confirm all such acts that the said Attorney shall do or

of these presents.

f Attorney shall be deemed to be effective

The Company hereby declare that this Power o
plication for

immediately and shall remain in effect until the final adjudication of the ap
registering as an OTC Platform Operator by the appropriate authority, or until duly

revoked before then.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Power of Attorney is executed on this _LG_ day of Decews lgd'

2022, in presence of the following witnesses:

A Energy Private Limited

Rakesh Kumar MishPirector

Director
For and on behalf of GNA Energy Private Limited

Witnesses:

/ huﬁ’@/
1. Name? SHELLY ANA

T, Fast floer,
EMMR Emerald HilLs .

Address:
Sect&’»-aéé 6‘“"340”,%044 “12201%.

e
2. Name: é’ \,

KINbu ATTE e
Address: AR MA =
o C 7 : JOGINDER SINGH
5 510 fadw bn ADVOCATE & NOTARY
jﬁ(}a\( 6( Tehsll Wazirabad Distt. Gurugram (H4r.)

16 DEC 2022
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=72 ANNEXURE P-3

GOVERNMENT OF INDIA
MINISTRY OF CORPORATE AFFAIRS

Central Registration Centre

Certificate of Incor poration

[Pursuant to sub-section (2) of section 7 and sub-section (1) of section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 (18 of 2013) and
rule 18 of the Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014]

| hereby certify that GNA ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED isincorporated on this Fifteenth day of September Two
thousand twenty-two under the Companies Act, 2013 (18 of 2013) and that the company is limited by shares.

The Corporate |dentity Number of the company is U74999HR2022PTC106630.

The Permanent Account Number (PAN) of the company is AAK CG0444P *
The Tax Deduction and Collection Account Number (TAN) of the company isRTK G17202D *

Given under my hand at Manesar this Fifteenth day of September Two thousand twenty-two .

DS MINISTRY OF
ICORPORATE AFFAIRS 10

Digital Signature Certificate

Mr RAJENDER KUMAR

DEPUTY REGISTRAR OF COMPANIES

For and on behalf of the Jurisdictional Registrar of Companies

Registrar of Companies

Central Registration Centre

Disclaimer: This certificate only evidences incorporation of the company on the basis of documents and declarations
of the applicant(s). This certificate is neither a license nor permission to conduct business or solicit deposits or funds

from public. Permission of sector regulator is necessary wherever required. Registration status and other details of the
company can be verified on www.mca.gov.in

Mailing Address as per record available in Registrar of Companies office:

GNA ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED o
2861, SEC-46, GURUGRAM, GURUGRAM, Gurgaon, Haryana, India, 1 . ¢ ‘,
122001 Nl

* asissued by the Income Tax Department


http://www.mca.gov.in

ANNEXURE P-4 3

Gover nment of India

Form GST REG-06
[See Rule 10(1)]

Registration Certificate

Registration Number : 06AAKCG0444P17B

1. |Legal Name GNA ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

2. |TradeName, if any GNA ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

3. |Additional trade names, if any null

4, Constitution of Business Private Limited Company

5. |Addressof Principal Place of 2861, sector -46, gurugram, Gurugram, Gurugram, Haryana,
Business 122001

6. |Dateof Liability

7. Period of Validity From 27/10/2022 |To Not Applicable

8. [Typeof Registration Regular

ignature t veried

. . S
9 PartlcularsofApprovmgAut%%’iigyysigne (3% Goops AND

Signature Date: 2023107451443 1T
Name Sarthak Kohli

Designation Excise and Taxation Officer
Jurisdictional Office Gurgaon (East) Ward 7

9. Date of issue of Certificate 27/10/2022

Note: The registration certificate is required to be prominently displayed at al places of businessin the State.

Thisisa system generated digitally signed Registration Certificateissued based on the approval of application granted on 27/10/2022 by
thejurisdictional authority.



GSTIN 06AAKCG0444P12B
Lega Name GNA ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Trade Name, if any GNA ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

Additional trade names, if  null
any

Details of Additional Places of Business

Total Number of Additional Places of Businessin the State

0
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GSTIN
Legal Name
Trade Name, if any

Additional trade names, if
any

06AAKCG0444P12B

GNA ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

GNA ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

null

Detailsof Managing/ Whole-time Directorsand Key Managerial Persons

' 7
3

Name
Designation/Status
Resident of State
Name
Designation/Status

Resident of State

SANJEEV KUMAR
DIRECTOR

Haryana

RAKESH KUMAR MISHRA
DIRECTOR

Delhi

32
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ANNEXURE P-5

(THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013)
(COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES)
MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION

OF

I.  The Name of the Company is GNA ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
II.  The Registered Office of the Company will be situated in the State of Haryana.
III. The objects for which the Company is established are:-
(A)THE MAIN OBJECTS TO BE PURSUED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS
INCORPORATION ARE:-
1. Carry on the business provide an electronic platform with the information of

2.

potential buyer and seller of electricity;

maintain a repository of data related to buyers and sellers and provide such
historical data to market participants; and

Provide such services as advanced data analysis tools to market participants.

To establish, set up, operate, and maintain an over the counter platform under the
Electricity Act, 2003 and rules and regulations issued thereunder, and to provide (i)
an electronic platform with the information of potential buyers and sellers of
electricity (ii) maintain a repository of data related to buyers and sellers and (iii)
historical data and services as advanced data analysis tools to market participants,
including grid connected entities such as generating companies, distribution
licensees, open access consumers, trading licensees and any other entity as may be
notified by the appropriate regulatory commission or authority under the Electricity
Act, 2003 including any amendments thereof.

(B) MATTERS WHICH ARE NECESSARY FOR FURTHERANCE OF THE OBJECTS

1

SPECIFIED IN CLAUSE III (A) ARE:-

GNA Energy Private Limited GNA Energy Private Limited

) Lw YR/

-’qirector — Director
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5. To establish and operate an office(s) for after sales services within India or abroad
in order to make the Cormpany’s objectives successful.

6. To open branch, depots, agencies in different parts of India and abroad for the
business of the Company.

7. Subject to Sections 391 to 394, 394A of the Act, to amalgamate with any other
company of which all or any of their objects companies having similar to the objects
of the Company in any manner whether with or without the liquidation.

8. To enter into partnership, or into any agreement for sharing profits or losses, or for
any union of interest, joint-venture reciprocal concession or co-operation with any
person or persons, or company or companies, firm and individuals, technical or
otherwise for the purpose of the business of the Company.

9. To take part in the management, supervision and control of the business operation
of any similar company or undertaking and for the purpose to appoint and
remunerate any directors, trustees, accountants, or other experts or agents.

10. To enter into any arrangement with any Government or any Governmental authority
conducive to the Company’s objects or any of them and to obtain from any such
government, authority, person or company and rights, privileges, charters,
contracts, licenses and concessions which the Company may think fit or desirable to
obtain and to carry out, exercise and comply therewith.

11.To pay out of the funds of the Company all costs, charges and expenses of the
Company incidental to the formation, registration of the Company and commission
for obtaining applications for or taking, placing or underwriting, or procuring the
underwriting of shares, debentures or other securities of the Company.

12. To adopt such means of making known the business of the Company as may seem
expedient, and in particular by advertising in the press, by circulars, by purchase
and exhibition of works of arts or interest, by publication of books and periodicals
and by granting prizes and rewards.

13.To lend and advance money or to give credit to such persons or companies and on
such terms as may seem expedient and in particular to customers and others having
dealings with the Company and to guarantee the performance of any contract or
obligations and the payment of money of or by any such persons or companies and
generally to give guarantees and indemnities provided that the Company shall not
carry on banking business as defined by the Banking Regulation Act, 1949.

GNA Energy Ryivate Limited GNA Epergy Private Limited

) v S
./%rector | ~ Director
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14.To invest the surplus funds of the Company from time to time in Government
Securities or in securities as may from time to time to sell or vary all such
investments and to execute all assignments, transfers, receipt and documents that

may be necessary in that behalf.

15.To draw, make, accept, endorse, discount, execute and issue bills of exchange,
promissory notes, bills of landing, warrants, debentures and other negotiable or
transferable instruments or securities or documents in course of Company’s

business.

16.To sell, improve, manage, develop, exchange, mortgage and dispose of, turn to
account or otherwise deal with all or any part of the property and rights of the

Company for the time being.

17.To insure the whole or any of the property of the Company either fully or partially to
protect and indemnify the Company from liability or loss in any respect either fully or
partially and also to insure and to protect and indemnify any part or portion thereof

either on mutual principle or otherwise.

18.To undertake and execute any contract for work and to carry out any ancillary or
other works comprised in contracts entered into by the Company.

19.To apply the assets of the Company in any way in or towards the establishment,
maintenance or extension of any association, institution or fund in any way
connected with any particular trade or business or with trade or commerce generally
including any association, institution or fund for the protection of the interest of
master, owners and employees against any loss by debt, strike, fire, accidents or
otherwise or for the benefit of any clerk, workmen or other at any time employed by
the Company or any of its predecessor in business or their families or dependents
and whether or not in common with other person or class of persons and in
particulars of friendly, co-operative and other societies, reading rooms, libraries,
educational and charitable institutions, refectories, dinning and recreation room,
churches, chapel, schools and hospitals and to grant gratuities, pensions and
allowances and to contribute to any fund raised by public or local subscription for

any purpose whatsoever.

20. To make contribution to such persons or institutions and in such cases & either of
cash or any other assets as may be thought directly or indirectly conductive to any
of the Company’s objects or otherwise expedient and in particular to remunerate any
person or corporation introducing business to this Company and also to subscribe,
contribute, or otherwise assist or guarantee money for charitable, scientific, religious
or benevolent, national, public or cultural, educational or other institutions, objects
or for any exhibition for any public objects and to establish and support or aid in the
establishment and support of associations, institutions, funds, trusts, and

GNA,Energy Private Limited

) v‘p I
/\ Director —  Director

GNA EnerQy Private Limited
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conveniences for the benefit of the employees or ex-employees (including directors)
of the Company or persons having dealings with the Company or the dependents,
relatives or connection of such person and in particular friendly or other benefit
societies and to grant pensions, allowances, gratuities and bonuses either by way of
annual payments or lump sum and to make payments towards insurance and to
form and contribute to provident benefit funds and other welfare funds of or for
such persons.

21.To make arrangements for the concessions of the Company’s members, staffs and
workers of any special rights and privileges and in particular in regards to the goods
dealt in by the company.

22.To guarantee the payment of money unsecured or secured by or payable under or in
respect of promissory note, hundies, bonds, debentures, debentures stock,
contracts, mortgage, charges, obligations, instruments and securities of any
company or of any authority supreme, municipal, local or otherwise or of any person
whomsoever, whether incorporated or not incorporated and guarantee or become
surety for the performance of contracts or obligations.

23.To take or otherwise acquire and hold shares/ securities of or make investment in
any other company or partnership firm or any other entity, having similar objects to
those of the Company or to establish or promote or concur in establishing or
promoting any company or companies having similar objects for the purpose of
acquiring all or any of the property, rights and liabilities of the Company or to enter
into partnership or amalgamate or enter into any arrangement for sharing of profits,
union of interest, reciprocal concession or co-operative with any person or company
carrying on or about to carry on business which this company is authorized to carry
on and/or to take or otherwise acquire and hold shares or stock in or securities of
and subsidies or otherwise assist any such company and to sell, hold, reissue with or
without guarantee or otherwise deal with such shares or securities or to amalgamate
with or into any company having objects either altogether or in part similar to the

objects of the Company.

24. To undertake or participate in the formation, management, supervision or cont_rol. of
the business operation of any other company, firm or persons  having similar

objects.

25.To lend money or borrow and raise or secure the payment of money or to receive
money at such time or times and in such manner as the Company may think fit gnd
in particular by the issue of debentures or debenture-stock perpetual or otherwise,
including debentures or debenture-stock convertible into shares of this or any other
Company or perpetual annuities and in security of any money so borrowed, raised or
received to mortgage, pledge or charge the whole or any part of the property,
assets or revenue of the Company, present or future including its uncalled capital,

. GMA Energy Private Limited
rivate Limited

P .

v
Director

GNA Energ

Director
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by special assignment or otherwise or to transfer or convert the same absolute'l){ or
any interest therein and to purchase, redeem or pay-off any sugh sgcu.rltles,
provided always that the Company shall not carry on business of banking wnthln the
meaning of Section (1) (b) of the Banking Regulations Act, 1949, subject to
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under and

directives of Reserve Bank of India.

26. To open account or accounts either current or overdraft with any bank or banks,
persons or company and to endorse cheques and operate such accounts.

27.To adopt, carry out or give effect to any pre-incorporation or post incorporation
agreements, or arrangements or any modifications and amendments thereto, arrived
at between the Company's shareholders, promoters and/or any Government
authority (Central, State, Municipal, local or otherwise), company (whether
incorporated in India or outside India), firm or person for promotion of the
Company, provision of technical knowhow to the Company and or in respect of any
matters concerning the affairs and business of the Company.

28.To do all such other things as are incidental or the Company may think conducive to
the attainment of the above objects or any of them and to carry on any others trade
or business whatsoever which can in the opinion of the Board of Directors, be
advantageously carried out by the Company in connection with or ancilliary to any of
the above businesses or the general business of the Company.

29.To import, buy, exchange, alter, improve and manipulate in all kinds of plants,
machinery, apparatus, tools and things necessary of convenient for carrying on the
main business of the Company.

30.To apply for, obtain, purchase or otherwise acquire and prolong and renew any
patents, patent-rights, brevets, inventions, processes, scientific technical or other
assistance, manufacturing processes know-how and other information, patterns,
copyrights, trade-marks, licenses concessions and the like rights or benefits,
conferring an exclusive or non-exclusive or limited or unlimited right of use thereof,
which may seem capable of being used for or in connection with the main objects of
the Company or the acquisition or use of which may seem calculated directly or
indirectly to benefit the Company on payment of any fee royalty or other
consideration and to use, exercise or develop the same under or grant licenses in
respect thereof or otherwise deal with same and to spend money in experimenting
upon testing or improving any such patents, inventions, right or concessions.

31.To procure the Cpmpany to be registered or recognized in or under the laws of any
place out5|qe India and to do all act necessary for carrying on in any foreign country
for the business or profession of the Company.

GNA Energy Private Limited
5] GNA Energy Private Limited
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32.To create any reserve fund, sinking fund, insurance fund or any other such special
funds whether for depreciation, repairing, improving, and research, extending or
maintaining any of the properties of the Company or for any other such purpose
conducive to the interest of the Company.

IV. The liability of the Member(s) is limited and this liability is limited to the amount
unpaid, if any, on the shares held by them.

V. The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 20,000,000 (Rupees Two crore
Lac) divided into 2000000 (Twenty Lac) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten)
each.

GN&Q Private Limited
GNA Energy Rrivate Limjted %
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We, the several persons, whose names and addresses are subscribed, are desirous of being formed into
a company in pursuance of THIS MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION, and we respectively agree to take
the number of shares in the capital of the company, set against our respective names:-

S. | Name, Addresses, Description Number of shares| Signature of | Signature, Name, Addresses,
No. | and occupation of Subscribers taken by each | Subscriber | Descriptions and occupations
subscriber of witnesses
1. | SANJEEV KUMAR 50000 Sd/-
(FIFTY
S/o0 JAISINGH THOUSAND
ONLY)
R/0 GOHANA, SONIPAT -
131301, HARYANA.
OCCUPATION - BUSINESS Sdy/-
VIKAS GANDHI
S/O SH. HARBANS LAL
R/O 259/9, MOHALLA
2. | RAKESH KUMAR MISHRA | 50000 KALAN, SONEPAT -
(FIFTY 131001,
S/o DEVI PRASAD THOUSAND | Sd/- HARYANA
MISHRA ONLY) M. NO. F10339
CP NO. 13266
R/0CK3/3,4A,
CHANAKYA RAIL
ENCLAVE, NEAR CRIS
TENJING NORGE MARG,
CHANAKYAPURI, DELHI -
110021
OCCUPATION -BUSINESS
Date: 10.09.2022 GNA Energy Private Limited
Place: Gurugram GNA Energy Prifxate Limited ?
T
V))) %rgtn -Birector

7]
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ANNEXURE P-6

(THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013)
(COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES)
ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
OF
GNA ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

Preliminary
Subject as hereinafter provided that the Regulations contained in Table “F” in the Schedule I to the
Companies Act, 2013 shall apply to the Company except in so far as otherwise expressly
incorporated herein below
Interpretation
1. (1) In these Regulations :-

(a) "Company" means GNA ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

(b) "Office" means the Registered Office of the Company.

(c) "Act" means the Companies Act, 2013 and any statutory modification thereof.
(d) "Seal" means the Common Seal of the Company.

(e) "Director" means the Director appointed to the Board of the Company.

(2) Unless the context otherwise requires, words or expressions contained in these Articles shall
bear the same meaning as in the Act, or any statutory modification thereof in force at the date at
which these Articles become binding on the Company.

Private Company
3. The Company is a Private Company within the meaning of Section 2(68) of the Companies Act,
2013 and accordingly:-

(i) restricts the right to transfer its shares;
(i) except in case of one Person Company, limits the number of its members to two hundred:
Provided that where two or more persons hold one or more shares in a company jointly, they
shall, for the purposes of this clause, be treated as a single member:
Provided further that-
(a) persons who are in the employment of the company; and
(b) persons who, having been formerly in the employment of the company, were members of the
company while in the employment and have continued to be members after the employment
ceased, shall not be included in the number of members; and
(c) Prohibits any invitation to the public to subscribe for any securities of the company;
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Share Capital and Variation of Rights
Subject to the provisions of the Act and these Articles, the shares in the capital of the company
shall be under the control of the Directors who may issue, allot or otherwise dispose of the same or
any of them to such persons, in such proportion and on such terms and conditions and either at a

premium or at par and at such time as they may from time to time think fit.
(i) Every person whose name is entered as a member in the register of members shall be entitled to

receive within two months after incorporation, in case of subscribers to the memorandum or after
allotment or within one month after the application for the registration of transfer or transmission
or within such other period as the conditions of issue shall be provided, --

(a) one certificate for all his shares without payment of any charges; or

(b) several certificates, each for one or more of his shares, upon payment of twenty rupees for each
certificate after the first.

(i) Every certificate shall be under the seal and shall specify the shares to which it relates and the
amount paid-up thereon.

(i) In respect of any share or shares held jointly by several persons, the company shall not be
bound to issue more than one certificate, and delivery of a certificate for a share to one of several

joint holders shall be sufficient delivery to all such holders
If any share certificate be worn out, defaced, mutilated or torn or if there be no further space on the

back for endorsement of transfer, then upon production and surrender thereof to the company, a
new certificate may be issued in lieu thereof, and if any certificate is lost or destroyed then upon
proof thereof to the satisfaction of the company and on execution of such indemnity as the
company deem adequate, a new certificate in lieu thereof shall be given. Every certificate under
this Article shall be issued on payment of twenty rupees for each certificate.

Except as required by law, no person shall be recognised by the company as holding any share
upon any trust, and the company shall not be bound by, or be compelled in any way to recognise
(even when having notice thereof) any equitable, contingent, future or partial interest in any share,
or any interest in any fractional part of a share, or (except only as by these regulations or by law
otherwise provided) any other rights in respect of any share except an absolute right to the entirety
thereof in the registered holder.

(i) The company may exercise the powers of paying commissions conferred by sub-section (6) of
section 40, provided that the rate per cent or the amount of the commission paid or agreed to be
paid shall be disclosed in the manner required by that section and rules made thereunder.

(i) The rate or amount of the commission shall not exceed the rate or amount prescribed in rules
made under sub-section (6) of section 40.

(iii) The commission may be satisfied by the payment of cash or the allotment of fully or partly paid
shares or partly in the one way and partly in the other.
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(i) If at any time the share capital is divided into different classes of shares, the rights attached to
any class (unless otherwise provided by the terms of issue of the shares of that class) may, subject
to the provisions of section 48, and whether or not the company is being wound up, be varied with
the consent in writing of the holders of three-fourths of the issued shares of that class, or with the
sanction of a special resolution passed at a separate meeting of the holders of the shares of that
class.

(i) To every such separate meeting, the provisions of these regulations relating to general meetings
shall mutatis mutandis apply, but so that the necessary quorum shall be at least two persons
holding at least one- third of the issued shares of the class in question.

The rights conferred upon the holders of the shares of any class issued with preferred or other
rights shall not, unless otherwise expressly provided by the terms of issue of the shares of that
class, be deemed to be varied by the creation or issue of further shares ranking pari passu
therewith.

Subject to the provisions of section 55, any preference shares may, with the sanction of an ordinary
resolution, be issued on the terms that they are to be redeemed on such terms and in such manner
as the company before the issue of the shares may, by special resolution, determine.

Lien
(i) The company shall have a first and paramount lien --
(a) on every share (not being a fully paid share), for all monies (whether presently payable or not)
called, or payable at a fixed time, in respect of that share; and
(b) on all shares (not being fully paid shares) standing registered in the name of a single person, for
all monies presently payable by him or his estate to the company:
Provided that the Board of directors may at any time declare any share to be wholly or in part
exempt from the provisions of this clause.
(ii) The company's lien, if any, on a share shall extend to all dividends payable and bonuses
declared from time to time in respect of such shares.
The company may sell, in such manner as the Board thinks fit, any shares on which the company
has a lien:
Provided that no sale shall be made --
(a) unless a sum in respect of which the lien exists is presently payable; or
(b) until the expiration of fourteen days after a notice in writing stating and demanding payment of
such part of the amount in respect of which the lien exists as is presently payable, has been given
to the registered holder for the time being of the share or the person entitled thereto by reason of
his death or insolvency.
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(i) To give effect to any such sale, the Board may authorise some person to transfer the shares sold
to the purchaser thereof

(i) The purchaser shall be registered as the holder of the shares comprised in any such transfer.

(iii) The purchaser shall not be bound to see to the application of the purchase money, nor shall his
title to the shares be affected by any irregularity or invalidity in the proceedings in reference to the
sale.

(i) The proceeds of the sale shall be received by the company and applied in payment of such part
of the amount in respect of which the lien exists as is presently payable.

ii) The residue, if any, shall, subject to a like lien for sums not presently payable as existed upon
the shares before the sale, be paid to the person entitled to the shares at the date of the sale.

Calls on Shares

() The Board may, from time to time, make calls upon the members in respect of any monies
unpaid on their shares (whether on account of the nominal value of the shares or by way of
premium) and not by the conditions of allotment thereof made payable at fixed times:

Provided that no call shall exceed one-fourth of the nominal value of the share or be payable at less
than one month from the date fixed for the payment of the last preceding call.

(i) Each member shall, subject to receiving at least fourteen days' notice specifying the time or
times and place of payment, pay to the company, at the time or times and place so specified, the

amount called on his shares.
A call shall be deemed to have been made at the time when the resolution of the Board authorizing

the call was passed and may be required to be paid by instalments.

The joint holders of a share shall be jointly and severally liable to pay all calls in respect thereof.

If a sum called in respect of a share is not paid before or on the day appointed for payment thereof,
the person from whom the sum is due shall pay interest thereon from the day appointed for
payment thereof to the time of actual payment at ten per cent per annum or at such lower rate, if
any, as the Board may determine.

(i) Any sum which by the terms of issue of a share becomes payable on allotment or at any fixed
date, whether on account of the nominal value of the share or by way of premium, shall, for the
purposes of these regulations, be deemed to be a call duly made and payable on the date on which
by the terms of issue such sum becomes payable.

(i) In case of non-payment of such sum, all the relevant provisions of these regulations as to
payment of interest and expenses, forfeiture or otherwise shall apply as if such sum had become
payable by virtue of a call duly made and notified.
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The Board --
(a) may, if it thinks fit, receive from any member willing to advance the same, all or any part of the
monies uncalled and unpaid upon any shares held by him; and

(b) upon all or any of the monies so advanced, may (until the same would, but for such advance,
become presently payable) pay interest at such rate not exceeding, unless the company in general
meeting shall otherwise direct, twelve per cent per annum, as may be agreed upon between the
Board and the member paying the sum in advance.

Transfer of Shares
(i) The instrument of transfer of any share in the company shall be executed by or on behalf of both
the transferor and transferee.
(i) The transferor shall be deemed to remain a holder of the share until the name of the transferee is
entered in the register of members in respect thereof.
The Board may, subject to the right of appeal conferred by section 58 decline to register --
(a) the transfer of a share, not being a fully paid share, to a person of whom they do not approve;

or

(b) any transfer of shares on which the company has a lien.

The Board may decline to recognise any instrument of transfer unless --
(a) the instrument of transfer is in the form as prescribed in rules made under sub-section (1) of
section 56;

(b) the instrument of transfer is accompanied by the certificate of the shares to which it relates, and
such other evidence as the Board may reasonably require to show the right of the transferor to
make the transfer; and

On giving not less than seven days' previous notice in accordance with section 91 and rules made
thereunder, the registration of transfers may be suspended at such times and for such periods as
the Board may from time to time determine:

Provided that such registration shall not be suspended for more than thirty days at any one time or
for more than forty-five days in the aggregate in any year.

Transmission of Shares
() On the death of a member, the survivor or survivors where the member was a joint holder, and
his nominee or nominees or legal representatives where he was a sole holder, shall be the only
persons recognised by the company as having any title to his interest in the shares

(i) Nothing in clause (i) shall release the estate of a deceased joint holder from any liability in
respect of any share which had been jointly held by him with other persons.
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(i) Any person becoming entitled to a share in consequence of the death or insolvency of a member
may, upon such evidence being produced as may from time to time properly be required by the
Board and subject as hereinafter provided, elect, either --

(a) to be registered himself as holder of the share; or

(b) to make such transfer of the share as the deceased or insolvent member could have made.

(ii) The Board shall, in either case, have the same right to decline or suspend registration as it
would have had, if the deceased or insolvent member had transferred the share before his death or
insolvency.

(i) If the person so becoming entitled shall elect to be registered as holder of the share himself, he
shall deliver or send to the company a notice in writing signed by him stating that he so elects.

(ii) If the person aforesaid shall elect to transfer the share, he shall testify his election by executing a
transfer of the share.

(i) All the limitations, restrictions and provisions of these regulations relating to the right to
transfer and the registration of transfers of shares shall be applicable to any such notice or transfer
as aforesaid as if the death or insolvency of the member had not occurred and the notice or transfer
were a transfer signed by that member.

A person becoming entitled to a share by reason of the death or insolvency of the holder shall be
entitled to the same dividends and other advantages to which he would be entitled if he were the
registered holder of the share, except that he shall not, before being registered as a member in
respect of the share, be entitled in respect of it to exercise any right conferred by membership in
relation to meetings of the company:

Provided that the Board may, at any time, give notice requiring any such person to elect either to

be registered himself or to transfer the share, and if the notice is not complied with within ninety

days, the Board may thereafter withhold payment of all dividends, bonuses or other monies

payable in respect of the share, until the requirements of the notice have been complied with.
Forfeiture of Shares

If a member fails to pay any call, or instalment of a call, on the day appointed for payment thereof,

the Board may, at any time thereafter during such time as any part of the call or instalment

remains unpaid, serve a notice on him requiring payment of so much of the call or instalment as is

unpaid, together with any interest which may have accrued.

The notice aforesaid shall --

(a) name a further day (not being earlier than the expiry of fourteen days from the date of service

of the notice) on or before which the payment required by the notice is to be made; and

(b) state that, in the event of non-payment on or before the day so named, the shares in respect of
which the call was made shall be liable to be forfeited.
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If the requirements of any such notice as aforesaid are not complied with, any share in respect of
which the notice has been given may, at any time thereafter, before the payment required by the
notice has been made, be forfeited by a resolution of the Board to that effect.

(i) A forfeited share may be sold or otherwise disposed of on such terms and in such manner as the
Board thinks fit.

(i) At any time before a sale or disposal as aforesaid, the Board may cancel the forfeiture on such
terms as it thinks fit.

(i) A person whose shares have been forfeited shall cease to be a member in respect of the forfeited
shares, but shall, notwithstanding the forfeiture, remain liable to pay to the company all monies
which, at the date of forfeiture, were presently payable by him to the company in respect of the
shares.

A duly verified declaration in writing that the declarant is a director, the manager or the secretary,
of the company, and that a share in the company has been duly forfeited on a date stated in the
declaration, shall be conclusive evidence of the facts therein stated as against all persons claiming
to be entitled to the share;

(il The company may receive the consideration, if any, given for the share on any sale or disposal
thereof and may execute a transfer of the share in favour of the person to whom the share is sold
or disposed of;

(iii) The transferee shall thereupon be registered as the holder of the share; and

(iv) The transferee shall not be bound to see to the application of the purchase money, if any, nor
shall his title to the share be affected by any irregularity or invalidity in the proceedings in
reference to the forfeiture, sale or disposal of the share.

The provisions of these regulations as to forfeiture shall apply in the case of nonpayment of any
sum which, by the terms of issue of a share, becomes payable at a fixed time, whether on
account of the nominal value of the share or by way of premium, as if the same had been
payable by virtue of a call duly made and notified.

Alteration of Capital

34 The company may, from time to time, by ordinary resolution increase the share capital by such

sum, to be divided into shares of such amount, as may be specified in the resolution.
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Subject to the provisions of section 61, the company may, by ordinary resolution, --

(a) consolidate and divide all or any of its share capital into shares of larger amount than its
existing shares;

(b) convert all or any of its fully paid-up shares into stock, and reconvert that stock into fully paid-
up shares of any denomination;

(c) sub-divide its existing shares or any of them into shares of smaller amount than is fixed by the
memorandum;

(d) cancel any shares which, at the date of the passing of the resolution, have not been taken or
agreed to be taken by any person.

Where shares are converted into stock, --

(a) the holders of stock may transfer the same or any part thereof in the same manner as, and

subject to the same regulations under which, the shares from which the stock arose might before

the conversion have been transferred, or as near thereto as circumstances admit:

Provided that the Board may, from time to time, fix the minimum amount of stock transferable, so,
however, that such minimum shall not exceed the nominal amount of the shares from which the
stock arose.

(b) the holders of stock shall, according to the amount of stock held by them, have the same rights,
privileges and advantages as regards dividends, voting at meetings of the company, and other
matters, as if they held the shares from which the stock arose; but no such privilege or advantage
(except participation in the dividends and profits of the company and in the assets on winding up)
shall be conferred by an amount of stock which would not, if existing in shares, have conferred
that privilege or advantage.

The company may, by special resolution, reduce in any manner and with, and subject to, any
incident

authorised and consent required by law, --

(a) its share capital;

(b) any capital redemption reserve account; or

(c) any share premium account.

Capitalisation of Profits
(i) The company in general meeting may, upon the recommendation of the Board, resolve --
(a) that it is desirable to capitalise any part of the amount for the time being standing to the credit
of any of the company's reserve accounts, or to the credit of the, profit and loss account, or
otherwise available for distribution; and
(b) that such sum be accordingly set free for distribution in the manner specified in clause (ii)
amongst the members who would have been entitled thereto, if distributed by way of dividend
and in the same proportions.
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(c) been entitled thereto, if distributed by way of dividend and in the same proportions.
(i) The sum aforesaid shall not be paid in cash but shall be applied, subject to the provision
contained in clause (iii), either in or towards -

(A) paying up any amounts for the time being unpaid on any shares held by such members

respectively;

(B) paying up in full, unissued shares of the company to be allotted and distributed, credited as

fully paid-up, to and amongst such members in the proportions aforesaid;

(C) partly in the way specified in sub-clause (A) and partly in that specified in sub-clause (B);

(D) A securities premium account and a capital redemption reserve account may, for the purposes
of this regulation, be applied in the paying up of unissued shares to be issued to members of the
company as fully paid bonus shares;

(E) The Board shall give effect to the resolution passed by the company in pursuance of this

regulation.

(i) Whenever such a resolution as aforesaid shall have been passed, the Board shall --

(@) make all appropriations and applications of the undivided profits resolved to be capitalised
thereby, and all allotments and issues of fully paid shares if any; and
(b) generally do all acts and things required to give effect thereto.

(ii) The Board shall have power --

(a) to make such provisions, by the issue of fractional certificates or by payment in cash or
otherwise as it thinks fit, for the case of shares becoming distributable in fractions; and

(b) to authorise any person to enter, on behalf of all the members entitled thereto, into an
agreement with the company providing for the allotment to them respectively, credited as fully
paid-up, of any further shares to which they may be entitled upon such capitalisation, or as the
case may require, for the payment by the company on their behalf, by the application thereto of
their respective proportions of profits resolved to be capitalised, of the amount or any part of the
amounts remaining unpaid on their existing shares;

Buy-Back of Shares
Notwithstanding anything contained in these articles but subject to the provisions of sections 68 to
70 and any other applicable provision of the Act or any other law for the time being in force, the
company may purchase its own shares or other specified securities.
General Meetings
All general meetings other than annual general meeting shall be called extraordinary general
meeting.
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(i) The Board may, whenever it thinks fit, call an extraordinary general meeting.

(i) If at any time directors capable of acting who are sufficient in number to form a quorum are not
within India, any director or any two members of the company may call an extraordinary general
meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which such a meeting may be called
by the Board.
Proceedings at General Meetings
() No business shall be transacted at any general meeting unless a quorum of members is present
at the time when the meeting proceeds to business.

(i) Save as otherwise provided herein, the quorum for the general meetings shall be as provided in
section 103.

The chairperson, if any, of the Board shall preside as Chairperson at every general meeting of the
company.

If there is no such Chairperson, or if he is not present within fifteen minutes after the time

appointed for holding the meeting, or is unwilling to act as chairperson of the meeting, the

directors present shall elect one of their members to be Chairperson of the meeting.

If at any meeting no director is willing to act as Chairperson or if no director is present within
tifteen minutes after the time appointed for holding the meeting, the members present shall choose
one of their members to be Chairperson of the meeting.
Adjournment of Meeting
(i) The Chairperson may, with the consent of any meeting at which a quorum is present, and shall,
if so directed by the meeting, adjourn the meeting from time to time and from place to place.

(i) No business shall be transacted at any adjourned meeting other than the business left
unfinished at the meeting from which the adjournment took place.

(i) When a meeting is adjourned for thirty days or more, notice of the adjourned meeting shall be
given as in the case of an original meeting.

(iv) Save as aforesaid, and as provided in section 103 of the Act, it shall not be necessary to give any
notice of an adjournment or of the business to be transacted at an adjourned meeting.

Voting Rights
Subject to any rights or restrictions for the time being attached to any class or classes of shares, --

(a) on a show of hands, every member present in person shall have one vote; and
(b) on a poll, the voting rights of members shall be in proportion to his share in the paid-up equity
share capital of the company.
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A member may exercise his vote at a meeting by electronic means in accordance with section 108
and shall vote only once.

(i) In the case of joint holders, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in person or by
proxy, shall be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint holders.

(i) For this purpose, seniority shall be determined by the order in which the names stand in the
register of members.

A member of unsound mind, or in respect of whom an order has been made by any court having
jurisdiction in lunacy, may vote, whether on a show of hands or on a poll, by his committee or
other legal guardian, and any such committee or guardian may, on a poll, vote by proxy.

Any business other than that upon which a poll has been demanded may be proceeded with,
pending the taking of the poll.

No member shall be entitled to vote at any general meeting unless all calls or other sums presently
payable by him in respect of shares in the company have been paid

(i) No objection shall be raised to the qualification of any voter except at the meeting or adjourned
meeting at which the vote objected to is given or tendered, and every vote not disallowed at such
meeting shall be valid for all purposes.
(i) Any such objection made in due time shall be referred to the Chairperson of the meeting, whose
decision shall be final and conclusive.

Proxy
The instrument appointing a proxy and the power-of-attorney or other authority, if any, under
which it is signed or a notarised copy of that power or authority, shall be deposited at the
registered office of the company not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting or
adjourned meeting at which the person named in the instrument proposes to vote, or, in the case of
a poll, not less than 24 hours before the time appointed for the taking of the poll; and in default the
instrument of proxy shall not be treated as valid.

An instrument appointing a proxy shall be in the form as prescribed in the rules made under
section 105

A vote given in accordance with the terms of an instrument of proxy shall be valid,
notwithstanding the previous death or insanity of the principal or the revocation of the proxy or of
the authority under which the proxy was executed, or the transfer of the shares in respect of which
the proxy is given:

Provided that no intimation in writing of such death, insanity, revocation or transfer shall have
been received by the company at its office before the commencement of the meeting or adjourned

meeting at which the proxy is used.
The following shall be the First Directors of the Company.

1. SANJEEV KUMAR
2. RAKESH KUMAR MISHRA
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(i) The remuneration of the directors shall, in so far as it consists of a monthly payment, be deemed
to accrue from day-to-day.

(i) In addition to the remuneration payable to them in pursuance of the Act, the directors may be
paid all travelling, hotel and other expenses properly incurred by them --

(a) in attending and returning from meetings of the Board of Directors or any committee thereof or
general meetings of the company; or

(b) in connection with the business of the company.

The Board may pay all expenses incurred in getting up and registering the company.

The company may exercise the powers conferred on it by section 88 with regard to the keeping of a
foreign register; and the Board may (subject to the provisions of that section) make and vary such
regulations as it may think fit respecting the keeping of any such register.

All cheques, promissory notes, drafts, hundis, bills of exchange and other negotiable instruments,
and all receipts for monies paid to the company, shall be signed, drawn, accepted, endorsed, or
otherwise executed, as the case may be, by such person and in such manner as the Board shall from
time to time by resolution determine

Every director present at any meeting of the Board or of a committee thereof shall sign his name in
a book to be kept for that purpose.

(i) Subject to the provisions of section 149, the Board shall have power at any time, and from time
to time, to appoint a person as an additional director, provided the number of the directors and
additional directors together shall not at any time exceed the maximum strength fixed for the
Board by the articles.

(i) Such person shall hold office only up to the date of the next annual general meeting of the
company but shall be eligible for appointment by the company as a director at that meeting subject

to the provisions of the Act.
Proceedings of the Board

() The Board of Directors may meet for the conduct of business, adjourn and otherwise regulate its

meetings, as it thinks fit.

(i) A director may, and the manager or secretary on the requisition of a director shall, at any time,

summon a meeting of the Board.

(i) Save as otherwise expressly provided in the Act, questions arising at any meeting of the Board
shall be decided by a majority of votes.

(i) In case of an equality of votes, the Chairperson of the Board, if any, shall have a second or
casting vote.

The continuing directors may act notwithstanding any vacancy in the Board; but, if and so long as

their number is reduced below the quorum fixed by the Act for a meeting of the Board, the

continuing directors or director may act for the purpose of increasing the number of directors to

that fixed for the quorum, or of summoning a general meeting of the company, but for no other

purpose.
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(i) The Board may elect a Chairperson of its meetings and determine the period for which he is to
hold office.

(ii) If no such Chairperson is elected, or if at any meeting the Chairperson is not present within five
minutes after the time appointed for holding the meeting, the directors present may choose one of
their number to be Chairperson of the meeting.

(i) The Board may, subject to the provisions of the Act, delegate any of its powers to committees
consisting of such member or members of its body as it thinks fit.

(i) Any committee so formed shall, in the exercise of the powers so delegated, conform to any
regulations that may be imposed on it by the Board.

() A committee may elect a Chairperson of its meetings.

(ii) If no such Chairperson is elected, or if at any meeting the Chairperson is not present within five
minutes after the time appointed for holding the meeting, the members present may choose one of
their members to be Chairperson of the meeting.

(i) A committee may meet and adjourn as it thinks fit.

(i) Questions arising at any meeting of a committee shall be determined by a majority of votes of
the members present, and in case of an equality of votes, the Chairperson shall have a second or
casting vote.

All acts done in any meeting of the Board or of a committee thereof or by any person acting as a
director, shall, notwithstanding that it may be afterwards discovered that there was some defect in
the appointment of any one or more of such directors or of any person acting as aforesaid, or that
they or any of them were disqualified, be as valid as if every such director or such person had been
duly appointed and was qualified to be a director.

Save as otherwise expressly provided in the Act, a resolution in writing, signed by all the members
of the Board or of a committee thereof, for the time being entitled to receive notice of a meeting of
the Board or committee, shall be valid and effective as if it had been passed at a meeting of the
Board or committee, duly convened and held.

Chief Executive Officer, Manager, Company Secretary or Chief Financial Officer
Subject to the provisions of the Act, --
(i) A chief executive officer, manager, company secretary or chief financial officer may be
appointed by the Board for such term, at such remuneration and upon such conditions as it may
thinks fit; and any chief executive officer, manager, company secretary or chief financial officer so
appointed may be removed by means of a resolution of the Board;
(ii) A director may be appointed as chief executive officer, manager, company secretary or chief
financial Officer
A provision of the Act or these regulations requiring or authorising a thing to be done by or to a
director and chief executive officer, manager, company secretary or chief financial officer shall not
be satisfied by its being done by or to the same person acting both as director and as, or in place of,
chief executive officer, manager, company secretary or chief financial officer.

The Seal
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(i) The Board shall provide for the safe custody of the seal.

(i) The seal of the company shall not be affixed to any instrument except by the authority of a
resolution of the Board or of a committee of the Board authorised by it in that behalf, and except in
the presence of at least two directors and of the secretary or such other person as the Board may
appoint for the purpose; and those two directors and the secretary or other person aforesaid shall
sign every instrument to which the seal of the company is so affixed in their presence.

Dividends and Reserve
The company in general meeting may declare dividends, but no dividend shall exceed the amount
recommended by the Board.

Subject to the provisions of section 123, the Board may from time to time pay to the members such
interim dividends as appear to it to be justified by the profits of the company.

() The Board may, before recommending any dividend, set aside out of the profits of the company
such sums as it thinks fit as a reserve or reserves which shall, at the discretion of the Board, be
applicable for any purpose to which the profits of the company may be properly applied,
including provision for meeting contingencies or for equalizing dividends; and pending such
application, may, at the like discretion, either be employed in the business of the company or be
invested in such investments (other than shares of the company) as the Board may, from time to
time, thinks fit.

(i) The Board may also carry forward any profits which it may consider necessary not to divide,
without setting them aside as a reserve

(i) Subject to the rights of persons, if any, entitled to shares with special rights as to dividends, all
dividends shall be declared and paid according to the amounts paid or credited as paid on the
shares in respect whereof the dividend is paid, but if and so long as nothing is paid upon any of
the shares in the company, dividends may be declared and paid according to the amounts of the
shares.

(i) No amount paid or credited as paid on a share in advance of calls shall be treated for the
purposes of this regulation as paid on the share.

(iii) All dividends shall be apportioned and paid proportionately to the amounts paid or credited as
paid on the shares during any portion or portions of the period in respect of which the dividend is
paid; but if any share is issued on terms providing that it shall rank for dividend as from a
particular date such share shall rank for dividend accordingly.

The Board may deduct from any dividend payable to any member all sums of money, if any,
presently payable by him to the company on account of calls or otherwise in relation to the shares
of the company.
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() Any dividend, interest or other monies payable in cash in respect of shares may be paid by
cheque or warrant sent through the post directed to the registered address of the holder or, in
the case of joint holders, to the registered address of that one of the joint holders who is first
named on the register of members, or to such person and to such address as the holder or joint
holders may in writing direct.

Any one of two or more joint holders of a share may give effective receipts for any dividends,
bonuses or other monies payable in respect of such share.

Notice of any dividend that may have been declared shall be given to the persons entitled to share
therein in the manner mentioned in the Act.

No dividend shall bear interest against the company.

Accounts
(i) The Board shall from time to time determine whether and to what extent and at what times and
places and under what conditions or regulations, the accounts and books of the company, or any of
them, shall be open to the inspection of members not being directors.

(i) No member (not being a director) shall have any right of inspecting any account or book or
document of the company except as conferred by law or authorised by the Board or by the

company in general meeting.

Winding Up
Subject to the provisions of Chapter XX of the Act and rules made thereunder --
(i) If the company shall be wound up, the liquidator may, with the sanction of a special resolution
of the company and any other sanction required by the Act, divide amongst the members, in specie
or kind, the whole or any part of the assets of the company, whether they shall consist of property
of the same kind or not.
(i) For the purpose aforesaid, the liquidator may set such value as he deems fair upon any property
to be divided as aforesaid and may determine how such division shall be carried out as between
the members or different classes of members.
(i) The liquidator may, with the like sanction, vest the whole or any part of such assets in trustees
upon such trusts for the benefit of the contributories if he considers necessary, but so that no
member shall be compelled to accept any shares or other securities whereon there is any liability.

Indemnity
Every officer of the company shall be indemnified out of the assets of the company against any
liability incurred by him in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which
judgment is given in his favour or in which he is acquitted or in which relief is granted to him by
the court or the Tribunal.
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S. No

Name, Addresses,
Description and
occupation of Subscribers

Signature of
Subscriber

Signature, Name, Addresses,
Descriptions and occupations of
witnesses

SANJEEV KUMAR
S/ o0 JAI SINGH

R/0o GOHANA,
SONIPAT - 131301,
HARYANA.

OCCUPATION -
BUSINESS

RAKESH KUMAR
MISHRA

S/o DEVI PRASAD
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MARG,
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BUSINESS

Sd/-

Sd/-

Sd/-
VIKAS GANDHI
S/O SH. HARBANS LAL
R/0 259/9, MOHALLA KALAN,
SONEPAT - 131001,
HARYANA
M. NO. F10339
CP NO. 13266

Date:
Place:
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Date of Incorporation

Registered Address
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account and papers are maintained
Email Id

Whether Listed or not

ACTIVE compliance
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Date of last AGM

Date of Balance Sheet

Company Status(for efiling)
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ANNEXURE P-8 58
FORM NO. INC_20A Declaration for

commencement of business
(Pursuant to Section 10A(1)(a) of the Companies

Act, 2013 and Rule 23A of the Companies
(Incorporation) Rules, 2014]

Form language (e)English () Hindi

Refer the instruction kit for filing the form.
1 (a) Corporate identity number (CIN) of company [U;§99FR2£2?TC108630 Pre-fill !'

]

2 (a) Name of the company [G_NA ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED e —J

[ |
(b) Address of the registered office of the company
—

12861, SEC-46, GURUGRAM
|GURUGRAM

Gurgaon
|Haryana
122001

ﬂ
i

{b) Global location number (GLN) of company

(c)email ID of the company I[Sanjeevbhanwal‘a@gmail.com

3 (8) Whether the affairs of the Company is regulated by any sectoral regulator (like RBI in case of NBFI activities)

Yes s No
Attachments

List of attachments

1 Subscribers proof of payment for value of shares Attach
Bank Statement.pdf ‘

2 Certficate of Registration issued by the RBI
Attach

(Only in case of Non-Banking Financial Companies) /

from other regulators
3 Notfication declaration as a Nidhi Company

Attach

[ Remove attachment ]

4 Optional attachment(s) - (if any) Attach

Declaration

I am authorized by the Board of Directors of the Company vide resolution number * dated * 22/10/2022

to sign this form and declare that all the requirements of Companies Act. 2013 and the rules made thereunder in respect
of the subject matter of this form and matters incidental thereto have been complied with. | further declare that:

1 Whatever is stated in this form and in the attachments thereto is true, correct and complete and no information material

to the subject matter of this form has been suppressed or concealed and is as per the original records maintained
by the company

2 Allthe required altachments have been completely and legibly attached to this form.

3 Every subscriber lo the MOA has paid the value for shares agreed to be taken by him,

4 The company has filed with the registrar a verification of its registered office as provided in subsection (2) of section 12

Page 10f 2
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To be digitally signed by Sanrey
Director -

Director dentification number '0?163524 |

Certificate by practicing professional
| declare thal | have been duly engaged for the purpose of certification of this form. It is hereby certified that |
have gone through the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules thereunder relevant to this form and
I have venhied the above particulars (including attachment(s)) from the original records maintained by the

Company/applicant which i1s subject matter of this form and found them to be true, correct and complete and

no mlormation matenal tu ns form has been suppressed

Chartered accountar| (in whole-ime practice) or {  Cost accountant (in whole-time practice) or

e Company secrelary 1in whole-time praclice)

Whether associale or fellow O Associale @ Fellow

Membership number [1 0339 |

Certificale of praclice number ‘13256 ‘

Note: Attention is drawn to provisions of Section 448 and 449 which provide for punishment for false statement / certificate
and pumishment for false evidence respectively.

This eForm has been taken on file maintained by the registrar of companies through electronic mode
and on the basis of statement of correctness given by the company

Page 2 of 2
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INCOME TAX DEPARTMENT GOVT. OF INDIA

% — T @ S e
e - Permanent Account Number (e-PAN) Card
AAKCG0444P

% | Name GNA ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

e fras i o

Date of Incorporation / Formation 1/08/2022

Signature Not

Uerifiet
oo Tax anL
Daba: 2022.00.15

GMT+08:30

¥  Permanent Account Number (PAN) facilitate Income Tax Department linkng of vanous documents, inclodimng paymeni of taxcs, assessment, tax
demand tax arrears. matching of mformation and CASY MAITHEn:; tln._-..n!n. |'-..'|I:||.'-. il of "ebectronic ||'|||'1'rI|_|I|-|||:| el relating toa laxpayver
rarft = = (89) Trﬁ-'f.:l?"'mliln?ﬁ.ﬂ:mﬂ ;--1:‘-1 & g4 & e e ) woes ET"I'k Faem w1 f‘-""r'l"'- iR, 7 HI, S0 TR, ] o
oy A '::.—FF.;_‘I-".-Tw-'I'-\. ATET W1 ST T w e sk oft e R

¥ Quoting of PAN 15 now mandatory for several transactions specified under Income Tax Act, 1901 (Refer Rule 1 148 of Income Tax Rules, 19%6.2)
s srfufmm, 19681 % men iy v B & fow weefl aan muw (49) w1 78S o afard B (o B, 1062% B 1148, v and )
¥ Possessing or usmg more than one PAN 1s agaimst the Law & mL'- attract penalty of upto Hs. 10 (00N
v & i Tt B wEE () s W TR =1, A 1F~|-.I'¥-'3,'l" il ead S ":l"_‘llj (D) =90 7R W1 TR ETTRE W WA B
¥  The PAN Card enclosed contains Enhanced QR Code which s readable by a specific Androad Motile App. Keyword o search thes specific Mobale
A o L 'J-\. Ploy Stoere 15 Enhanced QR Code Reader for PAN Cand
wem &3 Wik ° vEEs g W wiE ko vttt orags vn g 3=fte R Google Play Store 91 38 Hrtae mhamgsr o7 ) @ & e g

‘Enhanced OR Cods Reader lor PAM Card™ R

.___-....---_________------___________-....-..__________....--____E.“.t___-_-----.__________....-.__________-_...---__________---__________-.

| rh*g::f'm -

'ltt. m.id. #li
w,

!i all m. P
A thin card is h.ﬂ'——u&h n-i’hjﬂ.
#*—h—!.: . o

Electronically issued and Digitally signed ePAN is a valid mode of issue of Permanent Account Number (PAN) post
ameandments in clause (c) in the Explanation eccurring after sub-section (8) of Saction 139A of Income Tax Act, 1961
and sub-rule (6) of Rule 114 of the Income Tax Rules, 1962, For more details, ©lick here




ANNEXURE P-10

CHHABRA NARANG & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Networth Certificate

This is to certify that Networth of GNA Energy Private Limited, having its registered office
address at Palm Spring Plaza, Sector 54, Gurugram, and Haryana 122009 has been calculated as
under:

Networth as on #:15/12/2022

Particulars Amount (in Rs.)
Paid up Capital : 1,54,00,000
Add: Reserve & Surplus (8,17,479)

Less: Accumulated losses, if any
Less: Miscellaneous Expenditure

Total Networth | 1,45,82,521

Book Value per share (in Rs.)
Total Networth / Total number of outstanding shares Rs. 9.47

# Networth calculated as per the unaudited financial statements as on 15.12.2022. The company
was incorporated on 15.09.2022.

This is to certify that the above mentioned information is true to the best of my knowledge and
belief, according to the books and documents produced before me for verification.

For Chhabra Narang & Assocaites
Chartered Accountants

i ™

Place: Sonepat Amit Chhabra

Date: 15.12.2022 Prop

UDIN: 22504676 BFMLEV3795 M No 504676
FRN 020350N

21, Pawan Plaza, 2nd Floor, Subhash Chowk, Atlas Road, Sonepat-131001 (Haryana)
Ph. - 9215676760, 9355976760, 9253041234 e-mail : cna.cafirm@gmail.com, amit.chhabra2010@gmail.com
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ANNEXURE P-11

TAILS OF S SASO .12.2022
Name of the Citizenship | Residential No. of shares | % Holding of total paid up
Shareholder Status held capital of the company
Sanjeev Kumar Indian Permanent 7.45.000 48.38
Bhoovan Singh Indian Permanent 7.45.000 48.38
Rakesh Kumar Mishra | Indian Permanent 50,000 3.24

For GNA ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

NA Energ‘)}yrivate Limited
I

Director
Sanjeev Kumar

Director
DIN: 07163824

@ GNA Energy Private Limited
Office Add: 706, Palm Spring Plaza, Sector 54, Gurugram, Haryana-1 22009

CIN: U74999HR2022PTC106630 | info@gna.energy
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SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL

Sr. No. Kind of Shares Number of Shares Face Value Total
1 Equity Shares 20,00,000 10 2.00.00.000
ISSUED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL
Sr. No. Kind of Shares Number of Shares Face Value Total
1 Equity Shares 15,40,000 10 1,54,00.000

For GNA ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

GNA Energy Private Limitjg

v
Sanjeev Kumar ie\{or

_ Director
DIN: 07163824

@ GNA Energy Private Limited
Office Add: 706, Palm Spring Plaza, Sector -54, Gurugram, Haryana-122009
CIN: U74999HR2022PTC106630 | info@gna.energy



ANNEXURE P-12(Colly)

Sanjeev Kumar

Entrepreneur and Angel Investor

Sanjeev has served at senior level positions in various organizations
from technology lead to Group Chief Executive Officer, which gave him
the exposure at different domains, including technical, operations and
strategic management. Leader in the field of technology, particularly in
field of architectural design, enablement and implementation of
advanced technology in the traditional business verticals. Exposure of
varied and multiples business verticals and experience of conceptualize,
develop and effective execution of the vision of organisation.

Sanjeev Kumar, a national level swimmer, completed his Bachelor in
Technology with Majors in Computer Science & Engineer from Punjab
Engineering College, Chandigarh in 2006. During his degree, he was
also awarded College Color for all-rounder achievements and
performance for the batch of 2002- 2006. He was also College Captain
during his undergraduate degree.

He has experience in implementing new age technologies to overcome
real life challenges which include Fintech company helping D2C
companies with higher conversions and reduced RTO.

In 2018, he joined as Chief Executive Officer in JSC, a group that is
currently into Highway Infrastructure Management, Mining and Software
Consultancy. JSC’s growth can be directly attributed to its ability to adapt,
endure and remain credible with all stakeholders.

In 2006, Sanjeev joined Keane, a leading Global IT service provider
through college campus selection as Software Engineer.
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AMAN CHHIKARA
ENTERPRENURE & SECURITY
PRACTITIONER

SKILLS & ABILITIES

-Virtual CISO / DPO
-Consulting & Advisory
-Solution Architecture & Design
-Risk Assessment & Mitigation
-Policy making & Governance
-Security strategy & Roadmap
-Global Service delivery

RECOGNITIONS
-Professional Awards received:

Infosec Maestros
Defenders 100
Innovative CIO
NEXTCSO

-Corporate Awards received:

Excellence award (Adobe)
Certificate of Appreciation
3 times at HCL

Innovative solution award
at Cyberoam.

GEM award at e4e
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PROFILE

Aman is a digital security professional with 19+ years of
experience in various information security domains. He holds
huge exposure in Governance, Risk and Compliance, security
architecture & solution design, development of Enterprise
Security framework and implementation of security controls &
their audits.

He has worked for Global companies including Adobe, HCL,
Hindalco, ASM Technologies, vCustomer, and security product
companies including SonicWall, Elitecore Technologies (now
Sophos) etc. Working with these renowned companies, he has
acquired expertise, starting from managing a home network to
complex and mission critical stock exchange environment. With
his strong technical background, he has lead the product analyst
team of UTM device Cyberoam to introduce many new features
and bring enhancement to few existing functionalities.

He is a man with sincerity and dedication, who has always excelled
in roles assigned to him. His contribution has been rewarded
multiple times by his employers and he has been honored several
prestigious awards by many security forums. He has participated
in several events organized by industry forums as a speaker and
trained few organizations on technology, privacy & cyber security
related topics.

Aman is a Post Graduate Diploma holder in Business Management,
but keenly remained close to technology. He has worked on large
number of technologies, regularly updating his skillset to match
the requirement of changing time.

His security certification list includes CISSP, AWS Solutions
Architect, ISO 27001 Lead Auditor, ITILv3, CCSA, CCNA, MCSSTP,
CCNSP, CSSA, ICCA.

He is a very good Relationship Manager with strong skills in
building trust, delivering value and creating strong long-term
relationships with customers, vendors, industry peers and team
members & holds ability to handle the overall security
operations



Hitesh Chawla

BTech and MTech IIT Delhi

Entrepreneur, Mentor and Investor

Hitesh is the founder of SilverPush, a technology company in
digital advertising space. SilverPush is a pioneer in the world in
privacy-safe advertising, helping brands reach consumers
without using any personal data of users. Hitesh has led
SilverPush to become a global company, built from India. With
presence across more than 20 countries, across 5 continents,
Silverpush is leading the digital advertising industry with its
technology and innovation.

Hitesh has also been supporting and mentoring other
entrepreneurs, having invested in more than 25 StartUps in
India. He completed his Masters and Bachelors from IIT Delhi in
Chemical Engineering in 2004. He also has multiple patents
granted for technology innovation.

He has prior experience working in academic institutes, global
analytics firm and a leading consumer market global leader.



Narender Kumar

Entrepreneur, Advisor & Investor

Narender Kumar, a national swimming champion, completed his Bachelor in
Technology with Majors in Computer Science & Engineer from Punjab Engineering
College, Chandigarh in 2003. During his degree, he was also awarded Advisor's
Gold Medal for all-rounder achievements and performance for the batch of 1999-
2003

He is an investor and advisor to many startups implementing new age technologies
to overcome real life challenges which include Fintech company helping D2C
companies with higher conversions and reduced RTO, Agritech company using loT
to automate operations, Al company using ANPR to build next generation Tolling
System for the country, Power Sector company with platform to bring Green Energy
to end consumers and an EV startup building charging infrastructure.

In pre-UPI days of 2015, he founded a digital payment platform Trupay. To build
Trupay, he successfully raised investment from international institutional funds.
Trupay, a mini-UPI platform, was the country's first mobile based application that
allowed multi banking real time payment solutions in B2B2C. During
demonetisation, he also contributed to the Government of India’s initiative to
expand digital footprints as part of a committee that framed guidelines for current
age digital solutions such as now omnipresent Universal QR code.

In 2006, he founded JSC, a group that is currently into Highway Infrastructure
Management, Mining and Software Consultancy. JSC's growth can be directly
attributed to its ability to adapt, endure and remain credible with all stakeholders.

In 2003, he joined Indian Oil Corporation through college campus selection as
Information Systems Officer where he managed complex legacy operation
monitoring systems. He also worked with one of the Refinery Management team
to prepare for a board level review meeting.
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NARESH KUMAR KAUSHIK

Accomplished senior consulting professional with outstanding analytical ability

extensive experience in engaging with senior executives, managing complex business
situations coupled with the ability to translate solutions into a practical and profitable
application

CORE
COMPETENCIES

Complex Data Analysis
Problem solving

Change Implementation
and management

Project Management &
Controls

Business Analysis &
Forecasting

Financial Evaluations
Qualitative analysis &

Integration with
Quantitative

Leadership & Team
management

Stakeholder Alignment
and management

EDUCATION AND
TRAININGS

Maters in Complex
Systems Engineering and
Management, Delft
University of Technology,
The Netherlands, 2013

Bachelor Of Civil
Engineering, PEC
university of Technology,
India , 2006

Fluor management
Institute, USA, 2017

Harvard New Leader
Program, HBR, 2016

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Sep’l2 -
Present

June’06 —

Jan'll

Director — Consulting and Analytics
Fluor Corporation — Netherlands / USA / Asia Pacific

Strategic Advisory, Cost efficiency and performance improvement Projects
for Corporate Management Team / Business Line management /7 SVP’s

. Reviewed business processes and validated their performance against 100+
datasets to identify performance leakage points, performing root cause analysis,
supported the design of new engineering organization with simplified processes
and easy to implement gate checks

. Strategy and consulting services for the corporate management team to get
insights for cost and schedule certainty for capital projects, provide Key metrics
to evaluate decision options

e Drove Structural problem identification, created numerous data models & deep
dive analysis for risk identification and aversion on 1.0 $B+ lump sum capital
projects. Deliverables include in-depth reports & recommendations on project
execution from technical, commercial and organization perspective. The total value
of capital projects reviews and analyzed ~ $20B, Key projects include

0 LNG facility in Canada

o0 Chemical projects in China, Europe & US
o Downstream Mega projects in Middle east
o0 An Offshore facility in Asia pacific

. Event and Disruption analysis — Strategic analysis of key disruptive events,
scenario planning and risk management

Digital Transformation and Analytics, Organizational Design

. Developed business case, choreographed and delivered a digital platform to
monitor project execution with predictive capabilities. The platform integrates
data from 10+ different functions and provides comprehensive on-the—fly
analysis capabilities

. Build a global digital and analytics organization (30+FTE) with data scientists,
data engineers, analysts, and back end operations to support global projects

. Supported Digital Strategy development and delivered multiple Initiatives to
drive a data-centric execution Model. Key notable projects

o Data Standardization and work process alignment for a digital way

o Data cycle evaluation and its reuse to reduce cost and schedule across
projects

o Design of management reporting to be forward-looking and their
standardization to reduce cost.

Master Thesis Research
Provided a framework on how to leverage data to improve the predictability of capital
projects in the energy & chemicals industry,

Project Management & Controls
Bechtel Corporation - India /7 South America

e Analysed and reporting the execution performance of engineering & procurement
functions for a copper concentrator and alumina refinery projects for project &
client executives.

. Designed & developed an automated early warning system for identifying
negative trends in project cost and schedules and their downstream impact of the
company’s Margin. The system was later integrated in the company’s standard
reporting process

. Managed project planning and associated interfaces between seven engineering &
supply chain disciplines

. Developed Various Level of project schedules and cost estimates for proposals



Pankaj Batra

Profile Summary

Qualifications

Competencies

Present Position

Ex-Chairperson CEA

Over 35 years’ experience in all aspects of the power sector
in India. About 4 years’ experience of the power sector in
South Asia. Currently, Project Director & Chief of Party,
USAID’s SARI/EI (South Asia Regional Initiative in Energy
Integration) program, which ended in September. Closeout
going on. Ex Chairperson and Member Planning, Central
Electricity Authority, Government of India.

B.Tech. in Electrical Engineering, from IIT, Varanasi, 1981
Diploma in Systems Management, from NMIMS, Mumbai,
1988

Diploma in Financial Management from IGNOU, 2002
Diploma in Public Speaking, Nazareth Speakers Academy,
1981

Policy, Regulatory, Standards making in the Power Sector in
India. Power sector Reforms. Energy Transition, including
sector efficiency, transition to Renewables, Electric Vehicles,
Smart Grid. Demand forecasting, Generation Planning, Grid
management. Standard Bidding Documents. Operation &
Maintenance of hydro power plant. System Operator. Power
sector status in the SAARC and BIMSTEC countries.
Engagement with BIMSTEC Secretariat, SAARC Secretariat,
SAFIR (South Asia Forum for Infrastructure Regulation). All
aspects of Cross border trade in electricity in the BBINS
(Bangladesh, Bhutan, India, Nepal and Sri Lanka) countries,
including harmonization of policies and regulations, advancing
transmission interconnections and creation of regional power
markets.  Proposals of funding of transmission
interconnections, fixing of tariff and philosophy of sharing of
transmission charges of interconnectors.

Project Director & Chief of Party, USAID’s SARI/EI (South Asia
Regional Initiative in Energy Integration) program being
implemented by IRADe (Integrated Research and Action for
Development), a reputed think tank in India, dealing in Energy
& Power Systems, Climate Change and Environment,
Sustainable Development, Poverty Alleviation and Gender,




Earlier positions
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Agriculture and Food Security, etc. The program has ended in
September 2022. The closeout is going on.

Chairperson and CEO of the Central Electricity Authority
(CEA), the technical arm of the Ministry of Power, Govt. of
India, responsible for overall development of the Indian power
system including Hydro, Thermal and Renewable Power as
well as the Transmission & Distribution System of the country.
Member (Planning) and ex-officio Additional Secretary to the
Government of India overseeing various policy and planning
functions, including Electric Power Survey Report on long term
demand forecasting, National Electricity Plan on generation
planning, coal and gas supply to power stations, renewable
sources of energy, etc.

Chief (Engineering) in Central Electricity Regulatory
Commission (CERC) formulating various technical and tariff
Regulations, including various provisions related to wind and
solar power in the revised Indian Electricity Grid Code,
Connectivity Regulations, Power Market Regulations, etc.
Director, Grid Management in the CEA Headquarters. Framed
the regulations of CEA on Technical Standards for
Connectivity to the Grid and regulations on Grid Standards.
Started the Division on Regulatory Affairs in CEA.

Director, Financial and Commercial Appraisal of power
generation and transmission projects in the CEA, and various

financial and commercial matters. Formulating and finalizing

the Standard Bidding documents for procurement of

generation and transmission services, Tariff Policy and
National Electricity Policy, etc.

Executive Engineer operation and maintenance of Power
House, Switchyard and Dam in Chukha Hydro Power
Corporation in Bhutan and later operation and maintenance of
transmission and distribution system of Bhutan.

Assistant Executive Engineer Western Regional Load
Despatch Centre (WRLDC) as a System Operator.




Other Merits

Currently

Member Secretary of the Government Task Force on Peaking
Power Plants and Creation of Adequate System Reserves
Member Secretary of the Government Task Force on
Integration of electricity from Renewable Energy sources in
the Grid.

Member of the Committee of Ministry of Power for formulation
of Model Smart Grid Regulations.

Actively involved in the finalization of the Tariff Policy with the
Hon’ble Minister of Power, Secretary, Power and other officers
of the Ministry of Power, Government of India.

Member Secretary of the Committee formulated by the
Ministry of Power on revision of the National Electricity Policy.
Chairperson of the the Technical Committee On Study of
Optimal Location of Various Types of Balancing Energy
Sources/Energy Storage Devices to Facilitate Grid Integration
Of Renewable Energy Sources And Associated Issues.
Chairperson of the Committee on preparing an approach
paper for charging of electric vehicles including the facility,
institutional arrangement and identification of regulatory
interventions, if any.

Mentored the study on Optimal Power Mix in India by 2030.

Chairperson of Working Group 4 on “Policy, Regulation and
Business Models” in the India Smart Grid Forum.
Chairperson of the BIS Committee of LITD 10 — “Power
System Control and Associated Communication”.

Chairperson of the BIS Committee for making technical

Standards on Grid Scale Storage. Finalised a number of
standards, including the first ever global standard on Battery
Management System.

Member of the Core Group of India Energy Transformation

Platform (IETP), conceptualized by the Center for Study of




Professional

72

Science, Technology and Policy (CSTEP) & Shakiti
Sustainable Energy Foundation (SSEF).

Member of the expert group of Niti Aayog for Energy Sector
Vision Document.

Member of the Consultative Group of Niti Aayog to discuss
Decarbonization Strategy for Indian Economy

President, International Association on Electricity Generation,

Transmission and Distribution (Afro-Asian Region)

Member of the Advisory Board of Central Board of Irrigation
and Power (CBIP), and various other Advisory Boards.
Independent Director in the West Bengal State Electricity

Distribution Company Ltd.

Member of IEEE
Member of Institution of Engineers (India)

Speaker in various forums, conferences, seminars,
Workshops on all aspects of the power sector
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Profile of Rakesh Kumar Mishra

Details of employment in the chronological order:

Office/Institution Post held on From Nature of Duties
regular basis To
Private
Secretary to
Ministry of HOIZ‘;b%:. Urzlon As PS to the Hon’ble
Fisheries, Animal Mir?is{cl;l? of 07.07.2021 | Minister, assisted him in all
Husbandry and Fisheries 06.01.2022 | the matters assigned to him
Dairying Animal ’ in his official capacity.
Husbandry
and Dairying
Private
Secretary to
Department of an’ble As' . PS - to . the .Hoﬁ,ble
Agriculture, Minister of 09.08.2019 Minister, assisted him in all
Cooperation and A:;iactlil‘fiie 07.07.2021 ?he r'natte'r\? assig ne_d to him
Farmers Welfare and Farmers in his official capacity.
Welfare
Private
Ministry of Secretary to As' . PS o . the .Hoﬁ,ble
Railways, Railway Hon’ble 15.10.2018 Minister, assisted him in all
; Minister of ‘A= the matters assigned to him
Board, State of 31.05.2019 | " o _
New Delhi. Railways in his official capacity.
Director As Diref:t.or.*, RPF had the
o Railway, responsibility _of
Ministry of Protection 98.07.2016 management of the entire
Railways, Railway Force and 15' 10' 2018 Gazetted cadre of RPF.
Board, New Delhi. Staff Officer to T As SO to DG/ RPF, assisted
DG /RPF him in all the matter
assigned to him.
Successfully coordinated
training of more than
6th Battalion, Senior 07.04.2014 | 16,000 newly recruited
RPSF, Commanding 27'07' 2016 | RPF/RPSF constables.
Dayabasti/Delhi. Officer T

Security of Rail Bhavan.
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Mobile and Static security

of Hon’ble Minister of
Railways in Delhi/ NCR.

Successfully organized
Different ceremonial

functions of RPF.

Senior

Supervising Security of
passenger and property
over the most crowded
division of Indian Railways.
Administration of all HR

Sealdah Division, | Divisional | 15.05.2012 |Télated issues  including
Eastern Railway. Security 04.04.2014 | Service matters 2250 RPF
Commissioner personnel in the division.
Constructed barracks and
modernized suburban
passenger  security in
Kolkata.
Led 1099 strong force to
. eliminate smuggled goods
Katihar Division .S(?n.lor transported through
’ Divisional 25.04.2010 ) i
quthea'st Security 14.05.2012 | raillways and eradicated
Frontier Railway. | ~ = . . er drugging menace from the
division.
Commanded 750 RPSF
personnel. Constructed
training infrastructure in
2nd Battalion, Commanding | 15.04.2009 | the RPSF Training Centre
RPSF, Gorakhpur. Officer 20.09.2010 | gnd battalion and provided
to basic training to
Constables of RPF.
Supervising Security of
passenger and property
over a division with 1600
Kms of railway track.
'Ahtmedabad DiVisiopal 17.09.2005 | Administration of all HR
Division, Western Security . . )
Railway. Commissioner 11.04.2009 | related issues including

service matters of all RPF
personnel in the division.
Constructed a Reserve
Police Line including
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barracks and houses for
1040 RPF personnel.

Supervising Security of
passenger and property
over a division with more

Bhavnagar Divisional 15.11.2004 than 1500 Kms. of railway
Division, Western Security 99 09.2005 | track. Administration of all
Railway. Commissioner HR related issues including
service matters all 500 RPF

personnel in the division.
Supervising Security of
passenger and property
Varanasi Division Assistant over sub-division.
North Eastern Security }???3882 Admmzstrqtzon of _ all I_{R
Railway. Commissioner L related issues including
service matters of 550 RPF

personnel.

Supervising Security of
passenger and property
. s . over sub-division.
Katihar Division, Ass1st§1nt 30.06.2003 | Administration of all HR

Northeast Security 15.08.2003 ) _ _
Frontier Railway. | Commissioner T related issues including

service matters of 600 RPF
personnel.

Trainings/Courses/Seminars attended:

(i) Certificate course on ‘Global Energy and Climate Policy’ from University
of London.
(i) Certificate course on leadership- ‘Leading from the Emerging Future’ from

Massachusetts Institute of Technology.

(iij) ‘Training of Trainers’ Course on National Security from 05.01.2009 to
16.01.2009 by Intelligence Bureau, New Delhi.

(iv) Advanced Weapon Training from 29.09.2008 to 04.10.2008 at JR RPF
Academy, Lucknow.

(V) Seminar on Disaster Management organized by NDMA and Karnataka
Government from 13.06.2008 to 14.06.2008 at Bengaluru.
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(vi)  Vertical Interaction Course for IPS and RPF Officers from 24.09.2007 to
28.09.2007 at Railway Staff College, Vadodara.

(viij Development of Forensic Science & Forensic Medicine from 19.06.2006
to 24.06.2006 at CFSL, Hyderabad.

Awards/Citations/Achievements:

(i) National Award for Outstanding Service presented by Hon’ble Union
Minister of Railways in 2013.

(i) Security Shield for Best Performing Division of Eastern Railway — Sealdah
(2013).

(iii) Security Shield for Best Performing Division of Western Railway -
Ahmedabad (2005 & 2007).

(iv) DG’s Insignia and Commendation in 2006.
(v) DG’s Insignia and Commendation in 2015.
(vi) DG’s Insignia and Commendation in 2017.

(vii) DG’s Insignia and Commendation in 2018.



77

Brief Profile of Shri RN Nayak

RN Nayak was former Chairman & Managing Director, Power Grid Corporation of India. Mr.
Nayak is having over 40 years of experience in various capacities in Power Sector i.e. NTPC
& POWERGRID. He was former Chairman and Managing Director, Power Grid Corporation
of India i.e. Central Transmission Utility of India. He is a first-class Bachelor of Electrical
Engineering from NIT, Rourkela and holds an MTech (Electrical Engineering) from IIT
Kharagpur. He was a founder member of POWERGRID and handled as Head of various multi-
disciplinary functions such as Engineering of UHV AC & DC, Quality Management, Contract
Management, Load Despatch & Communication, Diversification to Telecom business, O & M
& HR. He has introduced many new technologies in the Power Sector such as EMS & SCADA
System for real time Grid Management, 800 KV HVDC, 765 & 1200 KV AC UHV, Smart Grid
Technologies & Ultra Mega Solar Park Developments. He was also deeply involved in Real
Time Grid Management, Market Design, Trading, preparation of various Regulations and
procedures for Open Access in Power sector. He established one of the largest National Grid
in the World i.e. “One Nation, One Grid and One Frequency”. He has introduced many new
concepts in India for development of Renewable Energy like Green Energy Corridor
including Renewable Energy Management Centers at State, Regional & National level; Desert
Power to have Ultra Mega Solar; wind Parks in utilizing waste lands in Deserts. He is a Senior
Member of IEEE, CIGRE and has been honored with Fellow of FNAE in Electrical Engineering.
He was judged as Best CEO in Power Sector consecutively in “The 2013, 2014 & 2015 All Asia

Executive”.

Presently, he is CEO of SMARTEC & Emerging Control Systems and also the member of Board
of Corporates (presently in Tata Power Central Odisha Distribution Ltd & Tata Power
Western Odisha Distribution Ltd, Odisha Power Transmission Corporation Ltd, Grid
Corporation of Odisha, IRM Energy, Diamond Power); advising large Consulting Corporates,

International Consulting firms; the IFC/World Bank; Indian Power Exchanges etc.
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ANNEXURE P-13

BEFORE THE HON’BLE CENTRAL ELECTRICITY REGULATORY COMMISSION,

AT NEW DELHI
PETITION NO. /MP/2022
IN THE MATTER OF:
GNA Energy Private Limited ...Petitioner
AFFIDAVIT
1. I, Shri Sanjeev Kumar, son of Shri Jai Singh aged about 38 years working as

Director of GNA Energy Private Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”), incorporated
on 15.09.2022 under the Companies Act, 2013 having its Registered Office at 706, Palm
. Preste Hﬁatﬂcw.ibwﬁ
Spring Plaza, Sector 54, Gurugram, Haryana - 122009‘\ fnd' aving CIN No.
U74999HR2022PTC106630 do solemnly affirm and state as under:

2. The Company or any of its associates, or partners, or promoters, or Directors have
not been declared insolvent.

3. The Company or any of its associates, or partners, or promoters, or Directors have
not been convicted in cases for moral turpitude, fraud of economic offences during the
year of making the application and three years immediately preceding the year of making

application.

4, The Company or any of its Associates, or partners, or promoter, or Directors were
not found guilty of contravention of any of the provisions of the Act or the rules or the
regulations made there under or an order made by the Appropriate Commission, in any
proceedings.

[ solemnly state that the contents of this affidavit are true to the best of my knowledge
and belief and that it conceals nothing and that no part of it is false.
GNA Exergy P:ipte Limited
» q/
Signature: h! /\ Director

(Deponent)

VERIFICATION:

GNA Energy Pph)ate Limited
| %

¢ Dei) + |
* @AKEE et * "\} Signature: . :
Place: Nw_ba”’ \\f;\?de!w&m”m{ j AT T s T E U (Deponent)
Date: 16122022 Nobp v

h Notary L mﬁ
11 DEC 202__2_

Director
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BEFORE THE HON’BLE CENTRAL ELECTRICITY
REGULATORY COMMISSION

AT NEW DELHI
I.A. No. OF 2022 IN

PETITION NO. 380/MP/ 2022

IN THE MATTER OF:
New Age Markets in Electricity Private Limited (NAME)

...Interested Party/Applicant

IN THE MATTER OF:
GNA Energy Private Limited ...Petitioner
INDEX
S. NO. PARTICULARS PAGES

I. | APPLICATION FOR IMPLEADMENT OF
THE APPLICANT IN PETITION NO.
380/MP/2022  FILED BEFORE THIS| | = §
HON’BLE COMMISSION ALONG WITH
AFFIDAVIT

—

o

2. | VAKALATNAMA

Applicant
Through
\,.[(. \Y 2 G’P‘lﬂ
. / (
Abhishek Nath Tripathi/ Mani Gupta
Counsel for the Applicant |
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Sarthak Advocates & Solicitors,

S — 134 (LGF), Greater Kailash II,
New Delhi 110048

(M) 8800777922, 011-41715540

E: abhishek.tripathi@sarthaklaw.com
Place: New Delhi

Date: 18.01.2023


Babul Jha
Typewritten Text

Babul Jha
Typewritten Text

Babul Jha
Typewritten Text
7/IA/2023

Babul Jha
Typewritten Text


81
71A/2023

BEFORE THE HON’BLE CENTRAL ELECTRICITY
REGULATORY COMMISSION

AT NEW DELHI
I.A. No. OF 2022
IN
PETITION NO. 380/MP/ 2022
IN THE MATTER OF:
New Age Markets in Electricity Private Limited (NAME)
...Interested Party/Applicant
IN THE MATTER OF:

GNA Energy Private Limited ...Petitioner

APPLICATION FOR IMPLEADMENT OF THE APPLICANT IN
PETITION NO. 380/MP/2022 FILED BEFORE THIS HON’BLFE
COMMISSION

1. The Applicant, New Age Markets in Electricity Private Limited
(hereinafter “NAME) is the first platform in India that has been
granted registration to establish and operate as Over the Counter

(“hereinafter OTC”) Platform under Regulation 40 of Central

Electricity Regulatory Commission (Power Market) Regulations, 2021

(hereinafter “PMR 20217) and Clause § of the “Guidelines for
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Registration and Filing Application for Establishing and OTC
Platform” (hereinafter “the OTC Guidelines”).

. That, the Petitioner, GNA Energy Private Limited, has filed a petition
No. 380/MP/2022 before the Hon’ble Commission (“Petition”) seeking

permission for setting up an OTC Platform.

. The Applicant seeks leave of this Hon’ble Commission for
impleadment as the Respondent in the Petition for the reasons detailed

in paragraphs below.

The Applicant obtained the registration as an OTC Platform which was
also recorded in the order dated 29.09.2022 by the Central Electricity
Regulatory Commission, New Delhi in Petition No. 157/MP/2022

(hereinafter referred to as the “Registration Order”).

. Itis also submitted that noticing the need for a regulatory sandbox/pilot;
data reporting to the Commission, which has also been highlighted by
the stakeholders including POSOCO, Hon’ble Commission has
entrusted the Applicant with an additional responsibility of preparing a
report detailing the framework for digitalizing the process of
information sharing with the Market Monitoring Cell of the
Commission by the market participants along with 2 pilot

demonstration within six months, but not later than 31 3.2023.

. Furthermore, the Applicant has been directed by the Hon’ble

Commission to draft a detailed framework for collection of information
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and its dissemination, which shall include, but not be limited to the
following: (i) mechanism of collection of data; (ii) details of sources for
data collection; (iii) various data heads/fields to be displayed on the
OTC electronic platform; (iv) periodicity of data collection and
dissemination on OTC electronic platform; (v) details of repository of
data; vi) details of analytics to be conducted by the OTC Platform
operator, and (vii) various reports to be published by the OTC Platform
Operator. In addition, the data shall be made available to the

Commission through API or a suitable IT interface.

. Hon’ble Commission had recognised the need for a regulatory
sandbox/pilot for data reporting to the Commission, which has also
been highlighted by the stakeholders including POSOCO. Accordingly,
Hon’ble Commission has entrusted the Applicant with an additional
responsibility of preparing a report detailing the framework for
digitalizing the process of information sharing with the Market
Monitoring Cell of the Commission by the market participants along

with a pilot demonstration within six months, but not later than

31.3.2023.

. The reports that the Petitioner is required to submit is likely to set the
benchmarks for market design. Given the role that has been entrusted
upon the Applicant by the Hon’ble Commission in the Registration
Order, and the Applicant is still in the process of preparing the required
report, the Applicant’s views need to be taken into account in every new

application that is being made.
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9. The Applicant is a necessary and proper party to the captioned Petition
as the disposal of the Petition has a direct bearing on the prospects of
the Applicant and Respondent in a multitude of ways, including
affecting the ability of the applicant to operate the OTC Platform which
is as yet a nascent idea, the potential of which is still to be fully

explored.

10.That, as per Regulations 41 of the Central Electricity Regulatory
Commission (Conduct of Business) Regulations, 1999 (“COB
Regulations™), and subsequent amendments thereof, Hon’ble
Commission has the power to require any petitioner to serve notice to
any person affected or interested in the petition, besides the named
respondent(s).  Further, under Regulation 52(2) of the COB
Regulations, Hon’ble Commission also has the power to allow any
person to participate in the proceedings, if participation by such person
is likely to facilitate the proceedings and the decision in the matter. The
extracts of Regulation 41 and 51 of the COB Regulations are
reproduced below for the ease of reference:
“41. If the Commission admits the Petition. it may give such
orders and directions, as may be deemed necessary. for
service of notices to the respondent(s) and other affected or
interested parties: for the filing of replies and rejoinder in
opposition or in support of the Petition in such form as the
Commission may direct and for the petition 1o be placed for
hearing before the Commission or a Bench, as the case

be.

may
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52(1) Everv person vwho intends to file objection or comments
in regard to o matter pending before the Commission,
pursuant to the publication made for the purpose ( other than
the persons to vwhom notices. processes, ele. have been issued
calling for a reply) shall deliver to an Officer designated by
the Commission for the purpose of the statement of the
objection or comments with copies of the documents and
evidence in support thereof within the time fixed for the
purpose.

(2) The Commission mayv permit such person or persons
including associations. forms and body corporate as it may
consider appropriate to participate in the proceedings before
the Commission if. on the report received from the Officer, the
Commission considers that the participation of such person
or persons will facilitate the proceedings and the decision in

the matter.”

11.Moreover, it is submitted that the Applicant is a necessary and proper
party to the present proceedings, without whose presence the
proceedings cannot be effectively adjudicated. ‘Necessary party’ has
been defined by the courts as one who ought to be joined to the
proceedings and without whom no effective decree can be passed.
Similarly, it has been held by the courts in a catena of Judgments that a
proper party is one in whose absence an effective order can be made but
whose presence is necessary for a complete and fing] decision on the
question involved in the proceeding. A proper Party is a person whose

presence would enable the court to completely effectively and
| ] (4
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adequately adjudicate upon all matters in dispute in the suit, though he
need not be a person in favour of or against whom the decree is to be
made. It is submitted that in view of the fact that the Applicant is the
only person to have been granted the registration to operate an OTC
Platform and the responsibilities cast on the Applicant by the Hon’ble
Commission, the presence of the Applicant is necessary and proper for

a complete and effective adjudication of the petition filed by the

Petitioner.

12.1t is submitted that as the only OTC Platform Operator in the country
who has also been entrusted the task of preparing draft frameworks for
the Platform, the Applicant has an entrenched right to be heard. The
Applicant intends to get impleaded in the instant matter as respondent

so that it may be allowed to provide its necessary comments/feedback

based on its experience.

13.1t is submitted that no harm, loss, or injury would be caused to the
Parties to the instant petition if the Applicant is permitted to come on
record and place all relevant facts and materials which are necessary for

the proper adjudication of the issues raised in the Petition filed by the

Petitioner.
14.RELIEFS:

In the light of the aforementioned, it is humbly prayed before this
Hon’ble Commission that:

a. Implead the Applicant as Respondent in the Petitjon bearing
No. 380/MP/2022.
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b. Allow the Applicant to file a reply to the present petition in

the matter.

c. such other reliefas may be necessary in the interests of justice.

Through
Abhishek Nath Tripathi/ Mani Gupta

Counsel for the Applicant

Sarthak Advocates & Solicitors,

S — 134 (LGF), Greater Kailash II,
New Delhi 110048

(M) 8800777922, 011-41715540

E: abhishek.tripathi@sarthaklaw.com

Place: New Delhi

Date: /8.0/- 2023
VERIFICATION

Verified at New Delhi on this 78" day of January 2023 that the
facts stated and the contents mentioned in paras 1 to 14 thereof are
true and correct to my knowledge, no part of it is false and nothing

material has been concealed therefrom.

»
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BEFORE THE HON’BLE CENTRAL ELECTRICITY
REGULATORY COMMISSION

AT NEW DELHI
I.A. No. OF 2022
IN

PETITION NO. 380/MP/ 2022

IN THE MATTER OF:

New Age Markets in Electricity Private Limited (NAME)

...Interested Party/Applicant

IN THE MATTER OF:

GNA Energy Private Limited ] ...Petitioner

AFFIDAVIT

Kapil Dev, S/o (Lt.) Mr. Braham Prakash, aged adult, residing at SF 125,
Shastri Nagar, Kavi Nagar, Ghaziabad, Uttar Pradesh — 201002 presently

at New Delhi do hereby solemnly affirm and declare as under —

L That, I am the authorised representative of the Applicant and is
submitting this affidavit before the Hon’ble Commission and as

such, I am competent to swear this affidavit.

2, That para 1 to 14 of the attached impleadment application has been

drafted under my instructions and the contents of the same are true




-~

89

and correct. Facts stated therein are also true and correct to my

knowledge and believed by me to be correct.

VERIFICATION

% “
A

N i
%\w \{)eﬁcﬁebd%t New Delhi on this 48" day of January 2023 that the

& Q; %‘éts stated and the contents mentioned in the paras of my affidavit

B
T o
6 3" are true and correct to my knowledge, no part of it is false and

» nothing material has been concealed therefrom

9
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BEFORE THE HON’BLE CENTRAL ELECTRICTY REGULATORY COMMISSION,
AT NEW DELHI
PETITION NO. 380/MP/2022
IN THE MATTER OF:

Petition under Regulation 40 of Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (Power
Market) Regulation, 2021 and Clause 8 of Guidelines for Registration and Filing
Application for Establishing and Operating Over the Counter (OTC) Platform for grant of

registration to establish and operate the OTC Platform.

AND IN THE MATTER OF:
GNA Energy Private Limited ...Petitioner
VERSUS
New Age Markets in Electricity Private Limited ..Respondent
AMENDED MEMO OF PARTIES

1. GNA Energy Private Limited

Regd. Office: 706, Palm Spring Plaza,

Sector 54, Gurugram, Haryana - 122009 ...Petitioner
2. New Age Markets in Electricity Private Limited

Regd. Office: D. No. 248/36,

Thousand Light, Anna Salai,

Chennai, Tamil Nadu - 600006, India ...Respondent

Through

A
. Sagar Associates
dvocates for the Petitioner

B-303, 31 Floor, Ansal Plaza,
Place: New Delhi Hudco Place, August Kranti Marg,
Date: 01.02.2023 New Delhi - 110049
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BEFORE THE HON’BLE CENTRAL ELECTRICTY REGULATORY COMMISSION,

AT NEW DELHI

PETITION NO. 380/MP/2022

IN THE MATTER OF:
GNA Energy Private Limited ...Petitioner
VERSUS
New Age Markets in Electricity
Private Limited ...Impleaded Respondent/Objector
INDEX
S. No. Particulars Page Nos.
1. | Petition under Regulation 40 of Central Electricity Regulatory 1-23
Commission (Power Market) Regulation, 2021 and Clause 8 of
Guidelines for Registration and Filing Application for
Establishing and Operating Over the Counter (OTC) Platform for
grant of registration to establish and operate the OTC Platform.
2. | Annexure P-1: Certified Copy of Board Resolution dated 24
14.12.2022.
3. | Annexure P-2: Copy of the Original Power of Attorney dated | 25-26
16.12.2022.
4. | Annexure P-3: Copy of the Certificate of Incorporation. 27
5. | Annexure P-4: Copy of the GST Registration Certificate 28 -30
6. | Annexure P-5: Copy of Memorandum of Association. 31-37
7. | Annexure P-6: Copy of Articles of Association. 38-53
8. | Annexure P-7: Copy of the Master Data of GNA Energy Private 54
Limited.
9. | Annexure P-8: Copy of e-Form INC-20A filed by GNA Energy | 55-56

Private Limited for declaration of commencement of business

operations.
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10.| Annexure P-9: Copy of PAN of GNA Energy Private Limited. 59
11.| Annexure P-10: Copy of Net Worth Certificate dated 15.12.2022. 58
12.| Annexure P-11: Copy of the List of shareholders of GNA Energy 59

Private Limited.

13.

Annexure P-12: Copy of Special Balance Sheet of GNA Energy | 60 - 94

Private Limited.

14.

Annexure P-13 (Colly): Details of Key Managerial Personnel, | 95-114
their Profiles and Organizational Structure of GNA Energy

Private Limited.

15.| Annexure P-14: Affidavit 115
Through
J. Sagar Associates
Advocates for the Petitioner
B-303, 3rd Floor, Ansal Plaza,
Place: New Delhi Hudco Place, August Kranti Marg,

Date: 25.02.2023 New Delhi - 110049
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BEFORE THE HON’BLE CENTRAL ELECTRICTY REGULATORY COMMISSION,
AT NEW DELHI

PETITION NO. 380/MP/2022

IN THE MATTER OF:

GNA Energy Private Limited ...Petitioner
VERSUS

New Age Markets in Electricity

Private Limited ...Impleaded Respondent/Objector

APPLICATION ON BEHALF OF GNA ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED SEEKING APPROVAL
TO ESTABLISH AND OPERATE AN OVER THE COUNTER PLATFORM IN TERMS OF
THE CERC (POWER MARKET) REGULATIONS, 2021 READ WITH THE GUIDELINES
FOR REGISTRATION AND FILING APPLICATION FOR ESTABLISHING AND
OPERATING OVER THE COUNTER PLATFORM, 2022.

GNA Energy Private Limited respectfully submits as under:-

1. GNA Energy Private Limited (“GNA”/ “Applicant”), being a company incorporated
in terms of the Companies Act 2013 has preferred the present Petition to seek the
approval of this Hon’ble Commission to establish and operate an Over the Counter
(“OTC”) Platform in terms of the CERC (Power Market) Regulations, 2021 (“PMR 2021")
read with the Guidelines for Registration and Filing Application for Establishing and
Operating Over the Counter Platform, 2022 (“OTC Guidelines”).

2. The present Petition was filed before this Hon’ble Commission on 17.12.2022 by
the Applicant. It was listed for hearing on 24.01.2023. Accordingly, the present Petition
was heard by this Hon’ble Commission on 24.01.2023. By way of Record of Proceedings
(“RoP”) for hearing held on 24.01.2023, this Hon’ble Commission inter alia, directed as

follows:-

“6. Accordingly, after hearing the learned counsels for the Petitioner and NAME,
the Commission ordered as under:
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(a)  Admit

(b) The Petitioner to implead NAME as objector to the Petition and file revised
memo of parties within a week.

(c) The Petitioner to submit a revised application along with the following
information on affidavit, within six weeks:

(i) Special Balance Sheet in terms of Para 14(ii) of Form-I of the OTC
Platform Guidelines;

(ii)  Details of its Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and experience of the
Directors in the power sector;

(iii)  The proposed organizational structure and managerial capability
along with the role of key staff of the Petitioner;

(d) The Commission directed the Petitioner to give wide publicity to its proposed
OTC Platform by uploading the revised application again on its website for inviting
stakeholders’ comments within a period of 15 days from the date of issuance of this
Record of Proceedings

(e) The Petitioner to serve its revised application to the objector and the objector to
file its reply/objection, if any, within three weeks after serving to the Petitioner who
may file its response thereon within three weeks thereafter.”

3. In compliance with the above-mentioned directions of this Hon’ble Commission in
RoP for hearing dated 24.01.2023, arevised memo of parties has been filed on 01.02.2023
impleading New Age Market in Electricity Pvt. Ltd.

4, The Applicant is hereby submitting a revised application for grant of approval to
establish and operate an OTC Platform as per the provisions of PMR 2021 and OTC
Guidelines in compliance with the directions of this Hon’ble Commission in RoP for

hearing dated 24.01.2023, on affidavit.

5. In terms of Regulation 44(1) of PMR 2021 and Clause 8 of OTC Guidelines an
Applicant so desirous of establishing and operating an OTC Platform has been mandated
to file an online application on the website of this Hon’ble Commission, in in accordance

with the OTC Guidelines for registration of the said platform.

6. Accordingly, the details sought under Form I of the OTC Guidelines have been

provided hereinbelow:-
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FORM -1

Application form for grant of Registration for OTC Platform

General Information

S.N. Particulars Details
1. Name of the | GNA Energy Private Limited
Applicant
2. | Address (a) Registered Office Address: 706, Palm Spring Plaza, Sector 54,
Gurugram, Haryana - 122009
(b) Address for Correspondence: 706, Palm Spring Plaza, Sector
54, Gurugram, Haryana - 122009
(c) Website Address: www.gna.energy
3. Name, Name: Sanjeev Kumar
Designation and | Designation: Director
Address of the | Address: Park Road, Near Public Health Office, Gohana, Sonipat,
Contact Person Haryana - 131301
Certified Copy of Board Resolution dated 14.12.2022 for
authorizing the directors of the Applicant to file the Application
before the Ld. Central Electricity Regulatory Commission
(“CERC”) and original Power of Attorney dated 16.12.2022 is
annexed herewith and marked as Annexure P-1 and Annexure
P-2.
4. Contact +91 9780056010
Telephone Nos. | +91 124 4469919
5. Fax No. NA
6. Email ID sanjeev@gna.energy
7. Status of the | Private Limited Company incorporated under the Companies Act,
Applicant 2013
(whether a
company
incorporated

under the
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S.N. Particulars Details
Companies Act
1956 or 2013)
8. Place of | Manesar
Incorporation/ Copy of the Certificate of Incorporation and GST Registration
Registration Certificate are annexed herewith and marked as Annexure P-3
and Annexure P-4
9. | Year of | 2022
Incorporation/
Registration
10. | Clause of the | “(A) THE MAIN OBJECTS TO BE PURSUED BY THE COMPANY ON

Memorandum of
Association

which authorizes
to set up &
operate an OTC
Platform
(Extract the

relevant portion)

ITS INCORPORATION ARE:-

1. Carry on the business provide an electronic platform with the
information of potential buyer and seller of electricity; 2. maintain
a repository of data related to buyers and sellers and provide such
historical data to market participants; 3. Provide such services as
advanced data analysis tools to market participants and 4. To
establish, set up, operate, and maintain an over the counter
platform under the Electricity Act, 2003 and rules and regulations
issued thereunder, and to provide (i) an electronic platform with
the information of potential buyers and sellers of electricity (ii)
maintain a repository of data related to buyers and sellers and (iii)
historical data and services as advanced data analysis tools to
market participants, including grid connected entities such as
generating companies, distribution licensees, open access
consumers, trading licensees and any other entity as may be
notified by the appropriate regulatory commission or authority
under the Electricity Act, 2003 including any amendments thereof”
Copy of the Memorandum of Association and Articles of

Association are annexed herewith and marked as Annexure P-5

and Annexure P-6.
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S.N.

Particulars

Details

11.

Share Capital

(a) Authorised share capital: 2,00,00,000

(b) Issued share capital: Rs. 1,54,00,000/-

(c) Subscribed share capital: 1,54,00,000

(d) Paid up share capital: 1,54,00,000

Copy of the Master Data of the Applicant mentioning the share
capital of the Applicant, available on the website of the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs is annexed herewith and marked as

Annexure P-7.

The Applicant has infused an amount of Rs. 1,54,00,000 as the
Authorized share capital and Paid up share capital. The Applicant
will infuse further capital depending upon needs during the

implementation and operation of the proposed OTC Platform.

As on the date of filing of the Application, the Applicant
undertakes that it shall take every endeavour to ensure that the
functioning and operation of the proposed OTC Platform is not
compromised in any manner whatsoever for want of any
resources and that the Applicant shall take all necessary steps to

generate the resources, as and when required.

Copy of e-Form INC- 20A filed by the Applicant for declaration of
commencement of business operations of the Applicant has been

annexed herewith and marked as Annexure P-8.

Copy of PAN of the Applicant has been annexed herewith and

marked as Annexure P-9.
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S.N. Particulars Details
TAN of the Applicant is provided in the Certificate of
Incorporation, therefore, Annexure P-3 (Certificate of
Incorporation) may be referred for TAN of the Applicant.
12. | (i) Net worth as | NA.
per the last
year's  audited
accounts prior to
the date of
application  (if
applicable).
(ii) Net worth on | The Net worth of the Applicant as on 15.12.2022 is Rs.
the date of | 1,45,82,521/-
preparation  of
the special | Copy of Net Worth Certificate dated 15.12.2022 is annexed
balance sheet in | herewith and marked as Annexure P-10
accordance with
clause 6.3(i) of
these Guidelines
and
accompanying
the application.
13 | Details of | As on the date of Application, the Applicant has following

shareholding as
on the date of
making

application

(Give details of
each of the
shareholders

holding 5% and

shareholders holding 5% (five per cent) and above shares of the

Applicant directly or with relatives:-

Name Citizenship | Residential | No. of | % of holding

Status Shares total paid up
held share
capital
Sanjeev | Indian Permanent | 7,45,000 | 48.38

Kumar
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S.N. Particulars Details
above of the || Bhoovan | Indian Permanent | 7,45,000 | 48.38
shares of the || Singh
applicant Rakesh | Indian Permanent | 50,000 3.24
directly or with || Kumar
relatives) Mishra
List of shareholders of the Applicant as on the date of Application
is annexed herewith and marked as Annexure P-11
The Applicant proposes to involve strategic players into the
equity structure in accordance with PMR 2021 and OTC
Guidelines.
14 | (i) Annual | NA
turnover
as per  the

audited accounts
for the last FY
prior to the date
of application (if
applicable).

(ii) Turnover on
the

date of
preparation  of
the special
balance sheet in
accordance with
clause 6.3(i) of

these guidelines

and

In compliance with directions issued by this Hon’ble Commission
in RoP for hearing dated 24.01.2023 in the present Petition,
special balance sheet in terms of Para 14(ii) of Form I of the OTC

Guidelines is annexed herewith and marked as Annexure P-12.
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S.N. Particulars Details

accompanying

the application.

ENCLOSURES: LIST OF DOCUMENTS TO BE UPLOADED WITH THE APPLICATION

7. The Applicant i.e,, GNA is required to submit a brief description of the OTC
Platform for which authorization is sought in terms of the list of enclosures given under
Form I of the OTC Guidelines (@ Pg. 18 of the OTC Guidelines). Accordingly, the details

are as follows:-
(i) Details of services offered

8. The Applicant’s proposed OTC Platform will help in exchange of information along
with bringing together demand and supply side of the electricity market stakeholders on
the OTC Platform in a transparent and secure manner. The Applicant will attempt in
popularising the OTC Platform among the energy sector stakeholders so as to enable
them to list their energy requirements. The platform would strive to help in removing
information asymmetry among stakeholders. The Applicant will provide information to
the buyers and sellers of electricily in a transparent and neutral manner and help in the

making of informed decisions.

9. With the help of energy sector stakeholders, the Applicant’s proposed OTC
Platform would act as a data repository of sellers and buyers. This platform would assist
stakeholders in addressing their electricity optimization requirements and help in

bringing in efficiency and contribute to sustainable development of the country.

10.  The proposed OTC Platform of the Applicant shall make available historical data
related to buyers and sellers and provide such services as advanced data analysis, to all
market participants in a process that is fair and non-discriminatory. It would provide data

or information as requisitioned by this Hon’ble Commission in the required format.

11. The Applicant’s proposed OTC Platform will adhere to objective, fair and
transparent criteria for participation. While onboarding of the market participants, due
diligence will be conducted and in data repository. Such relevant information will be

maintained and may be furnished upon the direction and/or request of an Appropriate
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Authority. The proposed OTC Platform will use a unique identifier like Legal Entity
Identifier (“LEI”) or Permanent Account Number (“PAN”) during the onboarding process
for the participants. The said OTC Platform will maintain neutrality in all scenarios and

shall take care against influencing participants in their decision making.

12. The Applicant’s OTC Platform shall strive to provide a good user interface along
with data entry flexibility on the platform as per the stakeholder needs. Customization

and clean UI/UX will help in effective visibility of the desired needs of the stakeholders.

13.  The Applicant will formulate and implement state-of-art cyber security and cyber
resilience framework to manage risks to systems, networks and databases. In summary,

the proposed OTC Platform will provide:

(a)  Arobust technological electronic platform having information on potential buyer

and seller of electricity;

(b)  Secure and safe platform for exchange of information on real time basis or near

real-time basis;
() A repository of data related to buyers and sellers;
(d)  Advanced data analytical tools to stakeholders;

(e) Cyber security and cyber resilience framework to manage system, networks and

databases risks along with comprehensive risk management framework;
() An internal arrangement to address any dispute that may arise or likely to arise.
(ii) Key organizational structure
14.  The central/key structures of GNA’s OTC Platform would be:

(a)  Administration: It will help in day-to-day operations, aid in creation of neutral, fair
and transparent policies. It will be a unifying and binding force of the organisation.
The Chief Executive Officer will be running the day-to-day operations of the
organisation under the supervision of the Board of Directors(“Board”). This team
will lay down the plans, goals and policies of the organisation. The administration
team will ensure that the whole organisation works in unison to achieve its goals

in line with PMR 2021 and OTC Platform guidelines. It would make reports in
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regard to progress of the organisation and share them from time to time with
different stakeholders. This department will ensure neutrality, transparency and

fairness in the procedures and processes of the organisation.

Research and Development: This key vertical will consist of research analysts and

experts. They will experiment and validate the options and bring the best, efficient
and effective solution of the problems into the best possible solutions. Information
Technology (“IT”) experts will help in developing and maintaining the robust and
reliable platform with state-of-the-art IT infrastructure. Cyber experts will block
the invasive attacks along with blocking any activities disruption. They will also

be part of risk-assessment protocols.

Marketing and Sales: This vertical will play a crucial role in popularising the OTC
Platform. It would spread awareness about the functionalities of the platform,
provide real feedback from stakeholders and respond to requisite demands. It will
help in listing the requirements on the platform and bringing liquidity to the
platform. It will provide desired information to buyers and sellers of the electricity

and help in onboarding of the participants on the platform.

Accounting and Finance: This vertical will play a critical role in functioning of the
platform effectively, maintain records of financial transactions in form of financial

statements, including balance sheets, profit/loss statement, cash flow statements.

Regulatory and Security Compliance: The Applicant will formulate and implement

a cyber security and cyber resilience framework to manage risks to systems,
networks and databases. Regular security audits will be carried out as per the
norms. This vertical will help in creating system reliability protocols, risk
assessment protocols, back up plans and many more as per the requirement. It
will implement systems and controls to ensure that participants participate with
fairness and integrity and monitor the activities on a real time basis as well as

post-facto basis.

Human Resource: This vertical will help in finding efficient technical resources.

Further, it would help in talent retention, address their grievance and other issues
in regard to manpower. It will be responsible for providing a conducive working

environment. It would create and execute employee policies.
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(g) Customer Support: This vertical would form a crucial aspect of the grievance
redressal mechanism as required by the OTC Guidelines. It will provide quick
resolutions to the problems faced by the participants. It will also provide
awareness about various functionalities of the platform. Well defined escalation
matrix will further help in effective resolution of the disputes or issues faced by

the participants.
(iii) Key Processes

15.  The key processes required for the establishment and operation of the GNA’s OTC

Platform have been summarized hereinbelow:-

(a) Developing Vision and strategy:-

[ Deep technological platform
Transparent
Inclusive

Fair

Neutral

(b)  Developing and managing product:-

Development process
System Healthiness
Maintenance process

Continuous updation

Testing process
() Marketing and business development:-
[ Onboarding of stakeholders
[ Defining the requirements of listing

o Documentation of interested stakeholders
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[ Onboarding approval
[ Listing of requirements by onboarded stakeholders

(d)  Delivering Services:-

Providing enterprise infrastructure
network hardware to cloud-based services
online storage and virtualized applications

enhanced application performance monitoring

Machine Learning driven analysis of all event, metric, trace and log data

(e) Managing Customer service:-

[ Resolving the technical issues

[ Managing the log books

[ Timely updation of issues to stakeholders
[ Knowledge awareness

() Finance and account process:-

Budgeting
Payrolls

Audit

Daily accounting

Account keeping

Statutory Compliance

(g) Risk assessment and compliance process:-

[ Data Backup process
[ Cyber security and cyber resilience process

o Risk audits



(h)

(iv)
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[ Regulatory compliance process
[ Access Control process
o Surveillance

Dispute resolution process: The OTC Platform will put in place an internal

arrangement to address any dispute that may arise or are likely to arise between

the members.
Indicative Project Plan

The Applicant plans to operate and establish the OTC Platform through following

steps mentioned below:-

(a)

(b)

Submission of Application to this Hon’ble Commission for the grant of registration

of OTC Platform as per PMR 2021 and OTC Guidelines. The Applicant undertake to

complete all required documentations, reports and affidavits and submit it to this

Hon’ble Commission for its consideration.

Designing and Preparatory Phase: Designing the technical architecture along with

User Interface and user experience interface (“UI/UX”) is a crucial part of the
software development process. Seamless Ul/UX will smoothen the onboarding

process and capture the right type of data sets effectively.

The Applicant will fine tune the software modelling along with onboarding
processes. Also, the procedural aspects of the onboarding process will be

deliberated upon and be concluded during such process.

During this phase, security and cyber experts will be involved to guide and check
the reliability and robustness of the platform architecture. Various use cases about
the security aspect will be explored and the most viable and resilient solution will
be imbibed into the system. The Applicant’s technical team will take into account
the software architectural and safety processes and will design a robust and

reliable application.

The Applicant’s platform shall put in place a comprehensive risk management
framework with the help of risk and cyber experts. Risk assessment and mitigation

would be a crucial part and will stress and focus on it right from the architectural
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stage. All the risks associated with its operations shall be identified properly and
managed prudently. Risk assessment would be part of organisational structure
and a dedicated committee would be observing this aspect of the platform. Access
to the platform would be controlled and unauthorised access would be prevented.

Platform would fulfil all the requisite legal and regulatory requirements.

Development phase of protocols: The Applicant will design and develop the OTC

Platform using the latest technological infrastructure along with keeping in mind
the safety protocol as per Government of India guidelines and global best
practices. The cyber security team will develop protocols to protect the platform
from vulnerable environment. During this phase, process functionalities will be
finalised. The technical architecture after approval from internal technical experts

will be coded and materialized.

Developed OTC Platform shall provide information of potential buyers and sellers
of electricity. It will maintain a repository of data related to buyers and sellers and
provide such historical data to market participants. The proposed OTC Platform

will aim to provide services like advanced analysis tools to market participants.

The proposed OTC Platform will adhere to objective, fair and transparent criteria
for participation. During onboarding of the market participants, due diligence will
be conducted and in the data repository all such relevant information will be
maintained and whenever required by qualified authority it would be furnished
to them. It will use a unique identifier like LIE or PAN during the onboarding
process for the participants. Platform will maintain neutrality without influencing

the decision making of the participants in any manner.

Developed platform shall be available as a mobile application (Mobile App) and
web-application. Availability at both platforms shall make it more inclusive and
more participative. The proposed mobile application can be downloaded from the

mobile app stores.

Market Participants can access any of the platform applications. Easy access along
with a simple layout of the access page will help the participants to register
themselves without any technical help. With the presence of navigation tabs and

tools, participants can explore the platform with ease and utilise the platform
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effectively and efficiently. Various services offered by the platform will be listed in
a clean layout and participants can choose the services as per their convenience

and needs.

The proposed OTC Platform would be using continuous risk assessment and
monitoring tools along with utilisation of artificial intelligence (“Al”) and machine
learning language (“ML”) to observe the participants' behaviour and problems
faced. Al and ML will help in the ever-evolving nature of the platform and they will
detect the obstacles faced by participants and will work towards smoothing the
processes and removing the redundancy in the processes. The OTC Platform will
use various methods like Data encryption, decryption, hashing etc of high
standards to protect the data as per PMR 2021 regulations. It will bring data

anonymity and prevent leakage and theft of data.

The proposed OTC Platform will automatically raise alarm and create log reports
in the event of disruption of activities or market abuse and the same would be
intimated to the Hon’ble Commission without any delay. It will implement systems
and controls to ensure that participants participate with fairness and integrity and

monitor the activities on a real time basis as well as post-facto basis.

The OTC Platform would have grievance redressal mechanisms and dedicated
resources for its resolution. A dedicated customer support will be established for
immediate response and early and faster redressal of participants' issues.

Escalation matrix would be well defined in the organisational structure.

The Mechanism would be well defined on the platform and part of the
communications with the participants. The OTC Platform would be hosted on
reliable and well reputed service providers and data backups shall be maintained
in encrypted format and other system reliability protocols would be taken into

account.

Data Analytics tools: During this process queries will be developed to analyse the

data received by OTC Platform and further their graphical representation layouts
will be designed. The OTC Platform shall make available historical data related to
buyers and sellers and provide such services as advanced data analysis, to all

market participants in a fair and non-discriminatory basis.
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It would provide any data or information as required by the Hon’ble Commission
in the format as desired by them. Customised reports shall be created by the
platform as per requirements. Data logs of activities and various disruption
activities will also be maintained by the platform and provided to Hon’ble

Commission and various charts would be created for better understanding.

Data may be used to develop and use various tools and services to achieve the
Government of India’s mission of net zero emission. To achieve the above,
proposed OTC Platform will develop a power atlas which will encompass different

players from power sector value chain.

(e)  After approval, the implementation process will start. It includes testing of the

platform, onboarding the stakeholders and going live of the OTC Platform.
(v)  Organizational and Managerial capability of the Applicant

17. Asper PMR, 2021, a power exchange or trading licensee or any of their Associates
or grid connected entities are prohibited from operating or having shareholding in the
OTC Platform. Therefore, the Applicant shall not onboard any such entity as its partners

or shareholders.

18.  Further, the Applicant shall have clear demarcation between the ownership,
management, and members registered with the OTC Platform by ensuring that the
entities having a shareholding in the Applicant company would not be able to interfere in

the day-to-day management and operations of the OTC Platform.

19. The Board, the Advisory Board and the management of the Applicant will
comprise of the person(s) having relevant domain knowledge, experience and will be

persons of repute.

20. By way of RoP for hearing dated 24.01.2023 in the present Petition, this Hon’ble

Commission directed the Applicant to, inter alia, furnish the following information:-

(a) Details of its Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”) and experience of the Directors

in the power sector;

(b) The proposed organizational structure and managerial capability along with the

role of key staff of the Petitioner;
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21.  In compliance with the directions of this Hon’ble Commission in RoP for hearing

dated 24.01.2023 the following are being furnished:-

(a) Table capturing details of KMP and experience of the Directors in the power

sector;

(b)  Achartdepicting the proposed organizational structure and managerial capability

along with the role of key staff of the Applicant.

The table capturing details of KMP and experience of the directors, profile(s) and
Curriculum Vitae of KMP of the Applicant along with a chart depicting GNA’s

organizational structure, are annexed herewith and marked as Annexure P-13 (Colly).
22.  Accordingly, The KMP will comprise of:

(a) Chief Executive Officer: The highest-ranking executive in the company whose
primary responsibilities lies in taking corporate decisions and managing the
overall operations and resources of the company. In GNA, the CEO will be the

ultimate decision marker and involved in setting the agendas.

(b)  Chief Technology Officer: As one of the four agendas of GNA in setting the OTC
Platform is robust and resilient technology which will require CTO to assist and

guide the technical team in developing the OTC Platform to meet the end goal.

() Chief Operating Officer: COO is responsible for glitch free operations, contracts,
and procurement, maintaining data and information, and selective disposal of data

which is highly important for the seamless experience of stakeholder

(d)  Chief Security Officer: OTC Platform will have various information and data
services related to generating and distribution companies. Data security becomes

a critical part which calls for CSO.

(e) Chief Financial Officer: Finance department shall be responsible for accounts,
corporate finance, financial modelling, and budgeting which is the key step in the

action plan.

(0 Advisory team: It comprises of power market experts and technology experts who

can guide in implementation of the key activities for setting up OTC Platform
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23. The Applicant proposes that an independent specialized and competent
management team would be constituted with a Managing Director to run the day-to-day
operation of the OTC Platform. The proposed team will comprise of seasoned

professionals having expertise in the following:

(a) Developing and operating technological platform
(b)  Power Sector Experts

() Managerial capabilities

(d)  Cyber Security expertise

(vi) Approach and Methodology

24.  GNA’s approach for establishing the OTC Platform will stand on four pillars which
are related to: Organisational structure, technology, design of platform, and confidence

of stakeholders. The key activities involved in each of the approach is listed below:

(a) Planned Organizational Structure:-
(i) Building a strong and capable team
(i)  Designing robust process for training and building organizational culture
(iii)  Designing of KPI and rewards to ensure compliance via effective operation

(iv) Building a coherent reporting structure for quality assurance, compliance

and risk management
(b)  Robust and resilient technology:-

(i) Establishing a core team who are experienced in handling large scale IT

projects
(i)  Onboarding partners who have relevant capabilities, exposure and skills
(iii) Deployment of agile and scalable architecture
() Purposeful design of platform:-
(i) Designing a flexible and modular platform

(ii)  Incorporating easy accessibility across India
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(iii)  Secure, online and real time data
(iv)  Neutral, inclusive and transparent data
(v) Compliance and risk mitigation

Ensuring stakeholder confidence. Conducting meetings and taking inputs from

internal and external stakeholders including:-

(i) Government and regulatory bodies

(ii)  Electricity Market participants

(iii) Knowledge providers and experts

(iv)  Suppliers, partners and other related parties

GNA will undertake the six steps methodology to execute the above-mentioned

approach from developing the action plan to onboarding the relevant stakeholders:-

(a)

Developing action plan and strategy: An initial stage which will help in turning

vision into reality and increase efficiency and accountability. It describes the way
in which an organisation will meet its goal or an objective. GNA will undertake the

following activities to create a robust action plan:

(i) Contacting and consulting stakeholders, market participants and executive

board to gather information as well as formulating business strategy
(ii)  Creating list of activities needed to fulfil the requirements

(iii)  Assessing the need for resources and the skills to implement various

activities
(iv)  Undertaking financial modelling and budgeting plan for various activities
(v) Crating a list of resources required for formulating a business plan

(vi)  Identification of various partners who can help in implementation the

Platform
(vii) Creating a project management office

(viii) Preparing a risk mitigation plan to manage uncertain activities
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(ix) Identifying key milestones and assigning key KRAs and KPIs which will

help in current performance

Team Building: To develop the OTC Platform and meet the agendas, GNA is
committed in formulating a team to run and operate various systems, processes,
and organisation. GNA will initiate the process with onboarding of the KMP and

advisory team.

Seven major departments will be involved in formulation and implementation of
the activities involved: Operations, Technical, Financial, Regulatory affairs, Human

Resource, Business Development, and administration.

Developing Standard Operating Procedure (“SOP”): GNA has developed SOP for

end-to-end implementation of development and implementation of the platform

of which the following are the key activities:-

(i) Mapping the function and use case of OTC Platform, including the
development and introduction of services, pricing of services, onboarding

of stakeholders, data collection and data privacy requirements.

(ii)  Listing regulatory procedures for operating the OTC Platform including
compliances, risk management, audits and facilitation of internal

communication and managerial decision making;

(iii)  Identification of ancillary process to run and manage the OTC Platform
including developing IT protocols, development of project development
processes, testing and maintenance process, security and data storage

processes;

(iv) Conducting risk assessment and examining external threats including

scenario planning, identification of best practices;
(v) Creating review mechanism for setting up the platform;
(vi)  Creating SOP for onboarding partners and other stakeholders;

(vii) Preparation of documentation and training manual;
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(viii) Assess applicability in context of regulation and requirement of GNA for
implementing processes for review of actionable steps in line with

regulatory and legal needs

Technological Onboarding: The Applicant will design and develop using the latest
technological infrastructure along with keeping in mind the safety protocol as per

Government of India guidelines and global best practices.

Development will be done in in-depth along with cyber security team to protect
the platform from vulnerable environment. During this process functionalities will
be finalised and technical architecture after approval from internal technical
experts will be coded and will be brought into existence. Developed OTC Platform
shall provide information of potential buyers and sellers of electricity. It will
maintain a repository of data related to buyers and sellers and provide such

historical data to market participants.

The OTC Platform will adhere to objective, fair and transparent criteria for
participation. During onboarding of the market participants, due diligence will be
conducted and in the data repository all such relevant information will be
maintained and whenever required by qualified authority it would be furnished
to them. The Applicant’s platform shall put in place a comprehensive risk
management framework with the help of risk and cyber experts. Risk assessment
and mitigation would be a crucial part and will stress and focus on it right from
the architectural stage. All the risks associated with its operations shall be

identified properly and managed prudently.

Risk assessment would be part of organisational structure and a dedicated
committee would be observing this aspect of the platform. Access to the platform
would be controlled and unauthorised access would be prevented. Platform would

fulfil all the requisite legal and regulatory requirements.

Project Management and Development: Developed platform shall be available as

a mobile application (Mobile App) and web-application. Availability at both
platforms shall make it more inclusive and more participative. The proposed

mobile application can be downloaded from the mobile app stores.
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Market Participants can access any of the platform applications. Easy access along
with a simple layout of the access page will help the participants to register
themselves without any technical help. With the presence of navigation tabs and
tools, participants can explore the platform with ease and utilise the platform
effectively and efficiently. Various services offered by the platform will be listed in
a clean layout and participants can choose the services as per their convenience

and needs.

Platform would be using continuous risk assessment and monitoring tools along
with utilisation of Al and ML to observe the participants' behaviour and problems
faced. Al and ML will help in the ever-evolving nature of the platform, and they
will detect the obstacles faced by participants and will work towards smoothing
the processes and removing the redundancy in the processes. The Platform will
use various methods like Data encryption, decryption, hashing etc of high
standards to protect the data as per PMR 2021 regulations. It will bring data
anonymity and prevent leakage and theft of data. The Platform will automatically
raise alarm and create log reports in the event of disruption of activities or market
abuse and the same would be intimated to this Hon’ble Commission without any
delay. It will implement systems and controls to ensure that participants
participate with fairness and integrity and monitor the activities on a real time

basis as well as post-facto basis.

Onboarding of stakeholders: GNA will work with various stakeholders for

ensuring that the platform meets the requirements and provides value to all the

stakeholders in a robust manner.
The methodology deployed will be as follows:

Identification of relevant stakeholders to run the OTC Platform which will fulfil the

objective and regulatory requirements

Grouping the stakeholder based on the inputs needed and requirement of the

platform to attain the final goal

Affidavit as per Form-1V is annexed herewith and marked as Annexure P-14.
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28. In view of the facts and circumstances mentioned hereinabove and in the interest of

justice, it is most respectfully submitted that this Hon’ble Commission may be pleased to:-

(a) Grant approval to the application of GNA Energy Private Ltd to establish and operate
an OTC Platform in terms of the CERC (Power Market) Regu ations, 2021 read with the
Guidelines for Registration and Filing Application for Establishing and Operating Over
the Counter Platform, 2022; and

(b) Pass any such other and further reliefs as this Hon’ble Ccmmission deems just and

proper in nature and circumstances of the present case

GNA Enetgy Private Limited

M

L

Director
Mr. Sanjeev Kumar

Director
CGNA Energy Private Limited

WX
Through
J. Sagar Associates
Advocates for the Petitioner
B-303, 3rd Floor, Ansal Plaza,
Hudco Place, August Kranti Marg,

New Delhi - 110049

Place: New Delhi

Date: 25.02.2023
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CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF RESOLUTION PASSED AT THE MEETING OF THE BOARD DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

AT 706, 7™ FLOOR , PALM SPRING PLAZA, SECTOR 54, GURUGRAM, HARYANA — 122009 AT 14™ DECEMBER
2022 AT 11:00 AM

The Chairman informed the Board that a person is to be authorised

@i

(i)

To file an application before Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC) for obtaining
registration to operate as an Over the Counter (OTC) Platform Generator in accordance with the
Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (Power Market) Regulations , 2021 (PMR, 2021), as
amended from time to time , issued by CERC under Electricity Act, 2003 read with Guidelines for
Registration and Filling Application for Establishing and Operating Over the Counter (OTC) Platform
(OTC Guidelines) and applicable law, and to sign, verify, declare, affirm, present, submit and file all
necessary affidavits , reply, undertakings, declarations, applications, statements, papers and
documents in connection thereto as may be required by CERC or any other regulatory body.

To appear or give representation on behalf of the company before the CERC or any other
regulatory body in relation to application for obtaining registration for operating as OTC Platform
Operator and to do all such acts and deeds in this relation as may be necessary in connection
therewith and incidental or ancillary thereto

All Directors discussed the same and it was unanimously,

“RESOLVED THAT the Mr. Sanjeev Kumar S/o Sh. Jai Singh , presently residing at Park Road, Near Public Health
Office, Gohana, Haryana 131301 is authorised for the above.”

“EURTHER RESOLVED THAT all the directors is hereby providing their consent ,severally or jointly to enter, sign,
transact and/or do all deeds necessary for the execution of the registration and further process at Central
Electricity Regulatory commission (CERC).”

Certified True Copy
For GNA Energy.Private Limited
GNA Energy Blivate Limited
— Director
(Rakesh Kumar Mishra)
Director
DIN : 09605055

Address : CK 3/3, 4A,
Chanakya Rail Enclave,
Chanakyapuri, Delhi -110021

GN Energy;’{ivate Limited

v

(Sanj e<>\mar) Director

Director

DIN : 07163824

Address : Gohana, Sonipat
Haryana

131301

@ GNA Energy Private Limited
Office Add: 706, Palm Spring Plaza, Sector 54, Gurugram, Haryana-122009

CIN: U74999HR2022PTC106630 | info@gna.energy

’
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Purpose : POWER ATTORNEY to be submitted at Gurugram

Indian-Non Judicial Stamp %
Haryana Government )

Date : 08/12/2022

Certificate No.  TCH2022L6 [ T[T ]]]] Stamp Duty. Fad s £:401
Rs Only)
GRN No. 97015242 P R 20
T Penaty
Gna Energy Private limited
H.No/Floor : 706 Sector/Ward : 54 Landmark : 7th floor palm spring
City/Village : Gurugram District :  Gurugram State : Haryana

98“....39

The authenticity of this document can be verified by scanning this QrCode Through smart phone or on the website https://egrashry.nic.in

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that GNA ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED (hereinafter
referred to as the “Company”), having its registered office at #706, Palm Spring Plaza,
Sector-54, Gurugram, Haryana 122009, do hereby nominate, appoint and authorize Shri
Sanjeev Kumar S/o Shri Jai Singh aged 38 years residing at Park Road, Near Public Health
Office, Gohana, Haryana 131301 as our true and lawful attorney (hereinafter referred to as
the “Attorney”) to do in our name and on our behalf, all such acts, deeds and things as are
necessary or required in connection with or incidental to:

a) to file an application before Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (“CERC") for

obtaining registration to operate as an Over the Counter (OTC) Platform Operator in
accordance with the Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (Power Market)
Regulations, 2021 (“PMR, 2021"), as amended from time to time, issued by CERC
under Electricity Act, 2003 read with Guidelines for Registration and Filling
Application for Establishing and Operating Over the Counter (OTC) Platform (“OTC
Guidelines”), and applicable law, and to sign, verify, declare, affirm, present, submit
and file all necessary affidavits, reply, undertakings, declarations, applications,
statements, papers and documents in connection thereto as may be required by CERC
or any other regulatory body;

appear or give representation on behalf of the company before the CERC or any other

GNA Energy Private Limited

Director
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ry documents filed or presented by the Company
tion to application for obtaining registration to
or adopt such other course as the Attorney may
lication by the Company or on behalf of the
for operating as OTC Platform operator

c¢) withdraw the application or necessa
or on behalf of the Company in rela
operate as an OTC platform operator,
deem fit in relation to filling of the app
Company, in relation to obtaining registration
under PMR, 2021 and OTC guidelines;

d) appoint, or remove any advocates or other professionals for any of the foregoing;

and

e) take such other action as he may deem fit in relation to any of the foregoing.

The Company hereby undertake and agree that all lawful acts, deeds and things done or
executed by the said Attorney for the aforesaid purposes shall be considered as acts,
deeds and things done or executed by the Company, and the Company undertake to ratify
and confirm all such acts that the said Attorney shall do or cause to be done by the virtue

of these presents.

f Attorney shall be deemed to be effective

The Company hereby declare that this Power o
plication for

immediately and shall remain in effect until the final adjudication of the ap
registering as an OTC Platform Operator by the appropriate authority, or until duly

revoked before then.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Power of Attorney is executed on this _LG_ day of Decews lgd'

2022, in presence of the following witnesses:

A Energy Private Limited

Rakesh Kumar MishPirector

Director
For and on behalf of GNA Energy Private Limited

Witnesses:

e/g huﬁ“@/
1. Name? SHELLY ANA

T, Fast floer,
EMMR Emerald HilLs .

Address:
\S'ectev»-aéi &“*gamﬁnudd 122018 .

>
2. Name: é’ \,

KINby AT i
Address: AR MA =
Yo C11 f : JOGINDER SINGH
5 L1 Tk by ADVOCATE & NOTARY
;0 o 66 Tehsll Wazirabad Distt. Gurugram (Hr.)

16 DEC 2022



119

GOVERNMENT OF INDIA
MINISTRY OF CORPORATE AFFAIRS

Central Registration Centre

Certificate of Incor poration

[Pursuant to sub-section (2) of section 7 and sub-section (1) of section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 (18 of 2013) and
rule 18 of the Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014]

| hereby certify that GNA ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED isincorporated on this Fifteenth day of September Two
thousand twenty-two under the Companies Act, 2013 (18 of 2013) and that the company is limited by shares.

The Corporate | dentity Number of the company is U74999HR2022PT C106630.

The Permanent Account Number (PAN) of the company ~AAKCG0444P  *

The Tax Deduction and Collection Account Number (TAN) of the company is RTKG17202D *

Given under my hand at Manesar this Fifteenth day of September Two thousand twenty-two .

Digital Signature Certificate

Mr RAJENDER KUMAR

DEPUTY REGISTRAR OF COMPANIES

For and on behalf of the Jurisdictional Registrar of Companies
Registrar of Companies

Central Registration Centre

Disclaimer: This certificate only evidences incorporation of the company on the basis of documents and declarations
of the applicant(s). This certificate is neither a license nor permission to conduct business or solicit deposits or funds
from public. Permission of sector regulator is necessary wherever required. Registration status and other details of the
company can be verified on www.mca.gov.in

Mailing Address as per record available in Registrar of Companies office:
GNA ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

2861, SEC-46, GURUGRAM, GURUGRAM, Gurgaon, Haryana, India, , ) { ,
122001 N

* asissued by the Income Tax Department


http://www.mca.gov.in
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Gover nment of India

Form GST REG-06
[See Rule 10(1)]

Registration Certificate

Registration Number : 06AAKCG0444P17B

1. |Legal Name GNA ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

2. |TradeName, if any GNA ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

3. |Additional trade names, if any null

4, Constitution of Business Private Limited Company

5. |Addressof Principal Place of 2861, sector -46, gurugram, Gurugram, Gurugram, Haryana,
Business 122001

6. |Dateof Liability

7. Period of Validity From 27/10/2022 |To Not Applicable

8. [Typeof Registration Regular

9 Particulars of Approving Authority |Haryana

Signature

Name Sarthak Kohli

Designation Excise and Taxation Officer
Jurisdictional Office Gurgaon (East) Ward 7

9. Date of issue of Certificate 27/10/2022

Note: The registration certificate is required to be prominently displayed at al places of businessin the State.

Thisisa system generated digitally signed Registration Certificateissued based on the approval of application granted on 27/10/2022 by
thejurisdictional authority.



GSTIN 06AAKCG0444P12B
Lega Name GNA ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Trade Name, if any GNA ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

Additional trade names, if  null
any

Details of Additional Places of Business

Total Number of Additional Places of Businessin the State

0
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GSTIN
Legal Name
Trade Name, if any

Additional trade names, if
any

06AAKCG0444P12B

GNA ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

GNA ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

null

Detailsof Managing/ Whole-time Directorsand Key Managerial Persons

' 7
3

Name
Designation/Status
Resident of State
Name
Designation/Status

Resident of State

SANJEEV KUMAR
DIRECTOR

Haryana

RAKESH KUMAR MISHRA
DIRECTOR

Delhi
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(THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013)
(COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES)
MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION

OF

I.  The Name of the Company is GNA ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
II.  The Registered Office of the Company will be situated in the State of Haryana.
III. The objects for which the Company is established are:-
(A)THE MAIN OBJECTS TO BE PURSUED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS
INCORPORATION ARE:-
1. Carry on the business provide an electronic platform with the information of

2.

potential buyer and seller of electricity;

maintain a repository of data related to buyers and sellers and provide such
historical data to market participants; and

Provide such services as advanced data analysis tools to market participants.

To establish, set up, operate, and maintain an over the counter platform under the
Electricity Act, 2003 and rules and regulations issued thereunder, and to provide (i)
an electronic platform with the information of potential buyers and sellers of
electricity (ii) maintain a repository of data related to buyers and sellers and (iii)
historical data and services as advanced data analysis tools to market participants,
including grid connected entities such as generating companies, distribution
licensees, open access consumers, trading licensees and any other entity as may be
notified by the appropriate regulatory commission or authority under the Electricity
Act, 2003 including any amendments thereof.

(B) MATTERS WHICH ARE NECESSARY FOR FURTHERANCE OF THE OBJECTS

1

SPECIFIED IN CLAUSE III (A) ARE:-

GNA Energy Fyivate Limited GNA Energy Private Limited

) Lw YR/

-qirector — Director
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5. To establish and operate an office(s) for after sales services within India or abroad
in order to make the Cormpany’s objectives successful.

6. To open branch, depots, agencies in different parts of India and abroad for the
business of the Company.

7. Subject to Sections 391 to 394, 394A of the Act, to amalgamate with any other
company of which all or any of their objects companies having similar to the objects
of the Company in any manner whether with or without the liquidation.

8. To enter into partnership, or into any agreement for sharing profits or losses, or for
any union of interest, joint-venture reciprocal concession or co-operation with any
person or persons, or company or companies, firm and individuals, technical or
otherwise for the purpose of the business of the Company.

9. To take part in the management, supervision and control of the business operation
of any similar company or undertaking and for the purpose to appoint and
remunerate any directors, trustees, accountants, or other experts or agents.

10. To enter into any arrangement with any Government or any Governmental authority
conducive to the Company’s objects or any of them and to obtain from any such
government, authority, person or company and rights, privileges, charters,
contracts, licenses and concessions which the Company may think fit or desirable to
obtain and to carry out, exercise and comply therewith.

11.To pay out of the funds of the Company all costs, charges and expenses of the
Company incidental to the formation, registration of the Company and commission
for obtaining applications for or taking, placing or underwriting, or procuring the
underwriting of shares, debentures or other securities of the Company.

12. To adopt such means of making known the business of the Company as may seem
expedient, and in particular by advertising in the press, by circulars, by purchase
and exhibition of works of arts or interest, by publication of books and periodicals
and by granting prizes and rewards.

13.To lend and advance money or to give credit to such persons or companies and on
such terms as may seem expedient and in particular to customers and others having
dealings with the Company and to guarantee the performance of any contract or
obligations and the payment of money of or by any such persons or companies and
generally to give guarantees and indemnities provided that the Company shall not
carry on banking business as defined by the Banking Regulation Act, 1949.

GNA Energy Ryivate Limited GNA Epergy Private Limited

) v S
./%rector | ~ Director
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14.To invest the surplus funds of the Company from time to time in Government
Securities or in securities as may from time to time to sell or vary all such
investments and to execute all assignments, transfers, receipt and documents that

may be necessary in that behalf.

15.To draw, make, accept, endorse, discount, execute and issue bills of exchange,
promissory notes, bills of landing, warrants, debentures and other negotiable or
transferable instruments or securities or documents in course of Company’s

business.

16.To sell, improve, manage, develop, exchange, mortgage and dispose of, turn to
account or otherwise deal with all or any part of the property and rights of the

Company for the time being.

17.To insure the whole or any of the property of the Company either fully or partially to
protect and indemnify the Company from liability or loss in any respect either fully or
partially and also to insure and to protect and indemnify any part or portion thereof

either on mutual principle or otherwise.

18.To undertake and execute any contract for work and to carry out any ancillary or
other works comprised in contracts entered into by the Company.

19.To apply the assets of the Company in any way in or towards the establishment,
maintenance or extension of any association, institution or fund in any way
connected with any particular trade or business or with trade or commerce generally
including any association, institution or fund for the protection of the interest of
master, owners and employees against any loss by debt, strike, fire, accidents or
otherwise or for the benefit of any clerk, workmen or other at any time employed by
the Company or any of its predecessor in business or their families or dependents
and whether or not in common with other person or class of persons and in
particulars of friendly, co-operative and other societies, reading rooms, libraries,
educational and charitable institutions, refectories, dinning and recreation room,
churches, chapel, schools and hospitals and to grant gratuities, pensions and
allowances and to contribute to any fund raised by public or local subscription for

any purpose whatsoever.

20. To make contribution to such persons or institutions and in such cases & either of
cash or any other assets as may be thought directly or indirectly conductive to any
of the Company’s objects or otherwise expedient and in particular to remunerate any
person or corporation introducing business to this Company and also to subscribe,
contribute, or otherwise assist or guarantee money for charitable, scientific, religious
or benevolent, national, public or cultural, educational or other institutions, objects
or for any exhibition for any public objects and to establish and support or aid in the
establishment and support of associations, institutions, funds, trusts, and

GNA,Energy Private Limited

) v‘p I
/\ Director —  Director

GNA EnerQy Private Limited
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conveniences for the benefit of the employees or ex-employees (including directors)
of the Company or persons having dealings with the Company or the dependents,
relatives or connection of such person and in particular friendly or other benefit
societies and to grant pensions, allowances, gratuities and bonuses either by way of
annual payments or lump sum and to make payments towards insurance and to
form and contribute to provident benefit funds and other welfare funds of or for
such persons.

21.To make arrangements for the concessions of the Company’s members, staffs and
workers of any special rights and privileges and in particular in regards to the goods
dealt in by the company.

22.To guarantee the payment of money unsecured or secured by or payable under or in
respect of promissory note, hundies, bonds, debentures, debentures stock,
contracts, mortgage, charges, obligations, instruments and securities of any
company or of any authority supreme, municipal, local or otherwise or of any person
whomsoever, whether incorporated or not incorporated and guarantee or become
surety for the performance of contracts or obligations.

23.To take or otherwise acquire and hold shares/ securities of or make investment in
any other company or partnership firm or any other entity, having similar objects to
those of the Company or to establish or promote or concur in establishing or
promoting any company or companies having similar objects for the purpose of
acquiring all or any of the property, rights and liabilities of the Company or to enter
into partnership or amalgamate or enter into any arrangement for sharing of profits,
union of interest, reciprocal concession or co-operative with any person or company
carrying on or about to carry on business which this company is authorized to carry
on and/or to take or otherwise acquire and hold shares or stock in or securities of
and subsidies or otherwise assist any such company and to sell, hold, reissue with or
without guarantee or otherwise deal with such shares or securities or to amalgamate
with or into any company having objects either altogether or in part similar to the

objects of the Company.

24. To undertake or participate in the formation, management, supervision or cont_rol. of
the business operation of any other company, firm or persons  having similar

objects.

25.To lend money or borrow and raise or secure the payment of money or to receive
money at such time or times and in such manner as the Company may think fit gnd
in particular by the issue of debentures or debenture-stock perpetual or otherwise,
including debentures or debenture-stock convertible into shares of this or any other
Company or perpetual annuities and in security of any money so borrowed, raised or
received to mortgage, pledge or charge the whole or any part of the property,
assets or revenue of the Company, present or future including its uncalled capital,

. GMA Energy Private Limited
rivate Limited

P .

v
Director

GNA Energ

Director
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by special assignment or otherwise or to transfer or convert the same absolute'l){ or
any interest therein and to purchase, redeem or pay-off any sugh sgcu.rltles,
provided always that the Company shall not carry on business of banking wnthln the
meaning of Section (1) (b) of the Banking Regulations Act, 1949, subject to
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under and

directives of Reserve Bank of India.

26. To open account or accounts either current or overdraft with any bank or banks,
persons or company and to endorse cheques and operate such accounts.

27.To adopt, carry out or give effect to any pre-incorporation or post incorporation
agreements, or arrangements or any modifications and amendments thereto, arrived
at between the Company's shareholders, promoters and/or any Government
authority (Central, State, Municipal, local or otherwise), company (whether
incorporated in India or outside India), firm or person for promotion of the
Company, provision of technical knowhow to the Company and or in respect of any
matters concerning the affairs and business of the Company.

28.To do all such other things as are incidental or the Company may think conducive to
the attainment of the above objects or any of them and to carry on any others trade
or business whatsoever which can in the opinion of the Board of Directors, be
advantageously carried out by the Company in connection with or ancilliary to any of
the above businesses or the general business of the Company.

29.To import, buy, exchange, alter, improve and manipulate in all kinds of plants,
machinery, apparatus, tools and things necessary of convenient for carrying on the
main business of the Company.

30.To apply for, obtain, purchase or otherwise acquire and prolong and renew any
patents, patent-rights, brevets, inventions, processes, scientific technical or other
assistance, manufacturing processes know-how and other information, patterns,
copyrights, trade-marks, licenses concessions and the like rights or benefits,
conferring an exclusive or non-exclusive or limited or unlimited right of use thereof,
which may seem capable of being used for or in connection with the main objects of
the Company or the acquisition or use of which may seem calculated directly or
indirectly to benefit the Company on payment of any fee royalty or other
consideration and to use, exercise or develop the same under or grant licenses in
respect thereof or otherwise deal with same and to spend money in experimenting
upon testing or improving any such patents, inventions, right or concessions.

31.To procure the Cpmpany to be registered or recognized in or under the laws of any
place out5|qe India and to do all act necessary for carrying on in any foreign country
for the business or profession of the Company.

GNA Energy Private Limited
5] GNA Energy Private Limited

P
v
/\Director

Director
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32.To create any reserve fund, sinking fund, insurance fund or any other such special
funds whether for depreciation, repairing, improving, and research, extending or
maintaining any of the properties of the Company or for any other such purpose
conducive to the interest of the Company.

IV. The liability of the Member(s) is limited and this liability is limited to the amount
unpaid, if any, on the shares held by them.

V. The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 20,000,000 (Rupees Two crore
Lac) divided into 2000000 (Twenty Lac) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten)
each.

GN&Q Private Limited
GNA Energy Rrivate Limjted %

v
/\) Director
irector :

6|
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We, the several persons, whose names and addresses are subscribed, are desirous of being formed into
a company in pursuance of THIS MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION, and we respectively agree to take
the number of shares in the capital of the company, set against our respective names:-

S. | Name, Addresses, Description Number of shares| Signature of | Signature, Name, Addresses,
No. | and occupation of Subscribers taken by each | Subscriber | Descriptions and occupations
subscriber of witnesses
1. | SANJEEV KUMAR 50000 Sd/-
(FIFTY
S/o0 JAISINGH THOUSAND
ONLY)
R/0 GOHANA, SONIPAT -
131301, HARYANA.
OCCUPATION - BUSINESS Sdy/-
VIKAS GANDHI
S/O SH. HARBANS LAL
R/O 259/9, MOHALLA
2. | RAKESH KUMAR MISHRA | 50000 KALAN, SONEPAT -
(FIFTY 131001,
S/o DEVI PRASAD THOUSAND | Sd/- HARYANA
MISHRA ONLY) M. NO. F10339
CP NO. 13266
R/0CK3/3,4A,
CHANAKYA RAIL
ENCLAVE, NEAR CRIS
TENJING NORGE MARG,
CHANAKYAPURI, DELHI -
110021
OCCUPATION -BUSINESS
Date: 10.09.2022 GNA Energy Private Limited
Place: Gurugram GNA Energy Prifxate Limited ?
T
V))) %rgtn -Birector

7]

Eﬂ\ector
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ANNEXURE P-6

(THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013)
(COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES)
ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
OF
GNA ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

Preliminary
Subject as hereinafter provided that the Regulations contained in Table “F” in the Schedule I to the
Companies Act, 2013 shall apply to the Company except in so far as otherwise expressly
incorporated herein below
Interpretation
1. (1) In these Regulations :-

(a) "Company" means GNA ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

(b) "Office" means the Registered Office of the Company.

(c) "Act" means the Companies Act, 2013 and any statutory modification thereof.
(d) "Seal" means the Common Seal of the Company.

(e) "Director" means the Director appointed to the Board of the Company.

(2) Unless the context otherwise requires, words or expressions contained in these Articles shall
bear the same meaning as in the Act, or any statutory modification thereof in force at the date at
which these Articles become binding on the Company.

Private Company
3. The Company is a Private Company within the meaning of Section 2(68) of the Companies Act,
2013 and accordingly:-

(i) restricts the right to transfer its shares;
(i) except in case of one Person Company, limits the number of its members to two hundred:
Provided that where two or more persons hold one or more shares in a company jointly, they
shall, for the purposes of this clause, be treated as a single member:
Provided further that-
(a) persons who are in the employment of the company; and
(b) persons who, having been formerly in the employment of the company, were members of the
company while in the employment and have continued to be members after the employment
ceased, shall not be included in the number of members; and
(c) Prohibits any invitation to the public to subscribe for any securities of the company;
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Share Capital and Variation of Rights
Subject to the provisions of the Act and these Articles, the shares in the capital of the company
shall be under the control of the Directors who may issue, allot or otherwise dispose of the same or
any of them to such persons, in such proportion and on such terms and conditions and either at a

premium or at par and at such time as they may from time to time think fit.
(i) Every person whose name is entered as a member in the register of members shall be entitled to

receive within two months after incorporation, in case of subscribers to the memorandum or after
allotment or within one month after the application for the registration of transfer or transmission
or within such other period as the conditions of issue shall be provided, --

(a) one certificate for all his shares without payment of any charges; or

(b) several certificates, each for one or more of his shares, upon payment of twenty rupees for each
certificate after the first.

(i) Every certificate shall be under the seal and shall specify the shares to which it relates and the
amount paid-up thereon.

(i) In respect of any share or shares held jointly by several persons, the company shall not be
bound to issue more than one certificate, and delivery of a certificate for a share to one of several

joint holders shall be sufficient delivery to all such holders
If any share certificate be worn out, defaced, mutilated or torn or if there be no further space on the

back for endorsement of transfer, then upon production and surrender thereof to the company, a
new certificate may be issued in lieu thereof, and if any certificate is lost or destroyed then upon
proof thereof to the satisfaction of the company and on execution of such indemnity as the
company deem adequate, a new certificate in lieu thereof shall be given. Every certificate under
this Article shall be issued on payment of twenty rupees for each certificate.

Except as required by law, no person shall be recognised by the company as holding any share
upon any trust, and the company shall not be bound by, or be compelled in any way to recognise
(even when having notice thereof) any equitable, contingent, future or partial interest in any share,
or any interest in any fractional part of a share, or (except only as by these regulations or by law
otherwise provided) any other rights in respect of any share except an absolute right to the entirety
thereof in the registered holder.

(i) The company may exercise the powers of paying commissions conferred by sub-section (6) of
section 40, provided that the rate per cent or the amount of the commission paid or agreed to be
paid shall be disclosed in the manner required by that section and rules made thereunder.

(i) The rate or amount of the commission shall not exceed the rate or amount prescribed in rules
made under sub-section (6) of section 40.

(iii) The commission may be satisfied by the payment of cash or the allotment of fully or partly paid
shares or partly in the one way and partly in the other.



10.

132

(i) If at any time the share capital is divided into different classes of shares, the rights attached to
any class (unless otherwise provided by the terms of issue of the shares of that class) may, subject
to the provisions of section 48, and whether or not the company is being wound up, be varied with
the consent in writing of the holders of three-fourths of the issued shares of that class, or with the
sanction of a special resolution passed at a separate meeting of the holders of the shares of that
class.

(i) To every such separate meeting, the provisions of these regulations relating to general meetings
shall mutatis mutandis apply, but so that the necessary quorum shall be at least two persons
holding at least one- third of the issued shares of the class in question.

The rights conferred upon the holders of the shares of any class issued with preferred or other
rights shall not, unless otherwise expressly provided by the terms of issue of the shares of that
class, be deemed to be varied by the creation or issue of further shares ranking pari passu
therewith.

Subject to the provisions of section 55, any preference shares may, with the sanction of an ordinary
resolution, be issued on the terms that they are to be redeemed on such terms and in such manner
as the company before the issue of the shares may, by special resolution, determine.

Lien
(i) The company shall have a first and paramount lien --
(a) on every share (not being a fully paid share), for all monies (whether presently payable or not)
called, or payable at a fixed time, in respect of that share; and
(b) on all shares (not being fully paid shares) standing registered in the name of a single person, for
all monies presently payable by him or his estate to the company:
Provided that the Board of directors may at any time declare any share to be wholly or in part
exempt from the provisions of this clause.
(ii) The company's lien, if any, on a share shall extend to all dividends payable and bonuses
declared from time to time in respect of such shares.
The company may sell, in such manner as the Board thinks fit, any shares on which the company
has a lien:
Provided that no sale shall be made --
(a) unless a sum in respect of which the lien exists is presently payable; or
(b) until the expiration of fourteen days after a notice in writing stating and demanding payment of
such part of the amount in respect of which the lien exists as is presently payable, has been given
to the registered holder for the time being of the share or the person entitled thereto by reason of
his death or insolvency.
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(i) To give effect to any such sale, the Board may authorise some person to transfer the shares sold
to the purchaser thereof

(i) The purchaser shall be registered as the holder of the shares comprised in any such transfer.

(iii) The purchaser shall not be bound to see to the application of the purchase money, nor shall his
title to the shares be affected by any irregularity or invalidity in the proceedings in reference to the
sale.

(i) The proceeds of the sale shall be received by the company and applied in payment of such part
of the amount in respect of which the lien exists as is presently payable.

ii) The residue, if any, shall, subject to a like lien for sums not presently payable as existed upon
the shares before the sale, be paid to the person entitled to the shares at the date of the sale.

Calls on Shares

() The Board may, from time to time, make calls upon the members in respect of any monies
unpaid on their shares (whether on account of the nominal value of the shares or by way of
premium) and not by the conditions of allotment thereof made payable at fixed times:

Provided that no call shall exceed one-fourth of the nominal value of the share or be payable at less
than one month from the date fixed for the payment of the last preceding call.

(i) Each member shall, subject to receiving at least fourteen days' notice specifying the time or
times and place of payment, pay to the company, at the time or times and place so specified, the

amount called on his shares.
A call shall be deemed to have been made at the time when the resolution of the Board authorizing

the call was passed and may be required to be paid by instalments.

The joint holders of a share shall be jointly and severally liable to pay all calls in respect thereof.

If a sum called in respect of a share is not paid before or on the day appointed for payment thereof,
the person from whom the sum is due shall pay interest thereon from the day appointed for
payment thereof to the time of actual payment at ten per cent per annum or at such lower rate, if
any, as the Board may determine.

(i) Any sum which by the terms of issue of a share becomes payable on allotment or at any fixed
date, whether on account of the nominal value of the share or by way of premium, shall, for the
purposes of these regulations, be deemed to be a call duly made and payable on the date on which
by the terms of issue such sum becomes payable.

(i) In case of non-payment of such sum, all the relevant provisions of these regulations as to
payment of interest and expenses, forfeiture or otherwise shall apply as if such sum had become
payable by virtue of a call duly made and notified.
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The Board --
(a) may, if it thinks fit, receive from any member willing to advance the same, all or any part of the
monies uncalled and unpaid upon any shares held by him; and

(b) upon all or any of the monies so advanced, may (until the same would, but for such advance,
become presently payable) pay interest at such rate not exceeding, unless the company in general
meeting shall otherwise direct, twelve per cent per annum, as may be agreed upon between the
Board and the member paying the sum in advance.

Transfer of Shares
(i) The instrument of transfer of any share in the company shall be executed by or on behalf of both
the transferor and transferee.
(i) The transferor shall be deemed to remain a holder of the share until the name of the transferee is
entered in the register of members in respect thereof.
The Board may, subject to the right of appeal conferred by section 58 decline to register --
(a) the transfer of a share, not being a fully paid share, to a person of whom they do not approve;

or

(b) any transfer of shares on which the company has a lien.

The Board may decline to recognise any instrument of transfer unless --
(a) the instrument of transfer is in the form as prescribed in rules made under sub-section (1) of
section 56;

(b) the instrument of transfer is accompanied by the certificate of the shares to which it relates, and
such other evidence as the Board may reasonably require to show the right of the transferor to
make the transfer; and

On giving not less than seven days' previous notice in accordance with section 91 and rules made
thereunder, the registration of transfers may be suspended at such times and for such periods as
the Board may from time to time determine:

Provided that such registration shall not be suspended for more than thirty days at any one time or
for more than forty-five days in the aggregate in any year.

Transmission of Shares
() On the death of a member, the survivor or survivors where the member was a joint holder, and
his nominee or nominees or legal representatives where he was a sole holder, shall be the only
persons recognised by the company as having any title to his interest in the shares

(i) Nothing in clause (i) shall release the estate of a deceased joint holder from any liability in
respect of any share which had been jointly held by him with other persons.
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(i) Any person becoming entitled to a share in consequence of the death or insolvency of a member
may, upon such evidence being produced as may from time to time properly be required by the
Board and subject as hereinafter provided, elect, either --

(a) to be registered himself as holder of the share; or

(b) to make such transfer of the share as the deceased or insolvent member could have made.

(ii) The Board shall, in either case, have the same right to decline or suspend registration as it
would have had, if the deceased or insolvent member had transferred the share before his death or
insolvency.

(i) If the person so becoming entitled shall elect to be registered as holder of the share himself, he
shall deliver or send to the company a notice in writing signed by him stating that he so elects.

(ii) If the person aforesaid shall elect to transfer the share, he shall testify his election by executing a
transfer of the share.

(i) All the limitations, restrictions and provisions of these regulations relating to the right to
transfer and the registration of transfers of shares shall be applicable to any such notice or transfer
as aforesaid as if the death or insolvency of the member had not occurred and the notice or transfer
were a transfer signed by that member.

A person becoming entitled to a share by reason of the death or insolvency of the holder shall be
entitled to the same dividends and other advantages to which he would be entitled if he were the
registered holder of the share, except that he shall not, before being registered as a member in
respect of the share, be entitled in respect of it to exercise any right conferred by membership in
relation to meetings of the company:

Provided that the Board may, at any time, give notice requiring any such person to elect either to

be registered himself or to transfer the share, and if the notice is not complied with within ninety

days, the Board may thereafter withhold payment of all dividends, bonuses or other monies

payable in respect of the share, until the requirements of the notice have been complied with.
Forfeiture of Shares

If a member fails to pay any call, or instalment of a call, on the day appointed for payment thereof,

the Board may, at any time thereafter during such time as any part of the call or instalment

remains unpaid, serve a notice on him requiring payment of so much of the call or instalment as is

unpaid, together with any interest which may have accrued.

The notice aforesaid shall --

(a) name a further day (not being earlier than the expiry of fourteen days from the date of service

of the notice) on or before which the payment required by the notice is to be made; and

(b) state that, in the event of non-payment on or before the day so named, the shares in respect of
which the call was made shall be liable to be forfeited.
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If the requirements of any such notice as aforesaid are not complied with, any share in respect of
which the notice has been given may, at any time thereafter, before the payment required by the
notice has been made, be forfeited by a resolution of the Board to that effect.

(i) A forfeited share may be sold or otherwise disposed of on such terms and in such manner as the
Board thinks fit.

(i) At any time before a sale or disposal as aforesaid, the Board may cancel the forfeiture on such
terms as it thinks fit.

(i) A person whose shares have been forfeited shall cease to be a member in respect of the forfeited
shares, but shall, notwithstanding the forfeiture, remain liable to pay to the company all monies
which, at the date of forfeiture, were presently payable by him to the company in respect of the
shares.

A duly verified declaration in writing that the declarant is a director, the manager or the secretary,
of the company, and that a share in the company has been duly forfeited on a date stated in the
declaration, shall be conclusive evidence of the facts therein stated as against all persons claiming
to be entitled to the share;

(il The company may receive the consideration, if any, given for the share on any sale or disposal
thereof and may execute a transfer of the share in favour of the person to whom the share is sold
or disposed of;

(iii) The transferee shall thereupon be registered as the holder of the share; and

(iv) The transferee shall not be bound to see to the application of the purchase money, if any, nor
shall his title to the share be affected by any irregularity or invalidity in the proceedings in
reference to the forfeiture, sale or disposal of the share.

The provisions of these regulations as to forfeiture shall apply in the case of nonpayment of any
sum which, by the terms of issue of a share, becomes payable at a fixed time, whether on
account of the nominal value of the share or by way of premium, as if the same had been
payable by virtue of a call duly made and notified.

Alteration of Capital

34 The company may, from time to time, by ordinary resolution increase the share capital by such

sum, to be divided into shares of such amount, as may be specified in the resolution.
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Subject to the provisions of section 61, the company may, by ordinary resolution, --

(a) consolidate and divide all or any of its share capital into shares of larger amount than its
existing shares;

(b) convert all or any of its fully paid-up shares into stock, and reconvert that stock into fully paid-
up shares of any denomination;

(c) sub-divide its existing shares or any of them into shares of smaller amount than is fixed by the
memorandum;

(d) cancel any shares which, at the date of the passing of the resolution, have not been taken or
agreed to be taken by any person.

Where shares are converted into stock, --

(a) the holders of stock may transfer the same or any part thereof in the same manner as, and

subject to the same regulations under which, the shares from which the stock arose might before

the conversion have been transferred, or as near thereto as circumstances admit:

Provided that the Board may, from time to time, fix the minimum amount of stock transferable, so,
however, that such minimum shall not exceed the nominal amount of the shares from which the
stock arose.

(b) the holders of stock shall, according to the amount of stock held by them, have the same rights,
privileges and advantages as regards dividends, voting at meetings of the company, and other
matters, as if they held the shares from which the stock arose; but no such privilege or advantage
(except participation in the dividends and profits of the company and in the assets on winding up)
shall be conferred by an amount of stock which would not, if existing in shares, have conferred
that privilege or advantage.

The company may, by special resolution, reduce in any manner and with, and subject to, any
incident

authorised and consent required by law, --

(a) its share capital;

(b) any capital redemption reserve account; or

(c) any share premium account.

Capitalisation of Profits
(i) The company in general meeting may, upon the recommendation of the Board, resolve --
(a) that it is desirable to capitalise any part of the amount for the time being standing to the credit
of any of the company's reserve accounts, or to the credit of the, profit and loss account, or
otherwise available for distribution; and
(b) that such sum be accordingly set free for distribution in the manner specified in clause (ii)
amongst the members who would have been entitled thereto, if distributed by way of dividend
and in the same proportions.
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(c) been entitled thereto, if distributed by way of dividend and in the same proportions.
(i) The sum aforesaid shall not be paid in cash but shall be applied, subject to the provision
contained in clause (iii), either in or towards -

(A) paying up any amounts for the time being unpaid on any shares held by such members

respectively;

(B) paying up in full, unissued shares of the company to be allotted and distributed, credited as

fully paid-up, to and amongst such members in the proportions aforesaid;

(C) partly in the way specified in sub-clause (A) and partly in that specified in sub-clause (B);

(D) A securities premium account and a capital redemption reserve account may, for the purposes
of this regulation, be applied in the paying up of unissued shares to be issued to members of the
company as fully paid bonus shares;

(E) The Board shall give effect to the resolution passed by the company in pursuance of this

regulation.

(i) Whenever such a resolution as aforesaid shall have been passed, the Board shall --

(@) make all appropriations and applications of the undivided profits resolved to be capitalised
thereby, and all allotments and issues of fully paid shares if any; and
(b) generally do all acts and things required to give effect thereto.

(ii) The Board shall have power --

(a) to make such provisions, by the issue of fractional certificates or by payment in cash or
otherwise as it thinks fit, for the case of shares becoming distributable in fractions; and

(b) to authorise any person to enter, on behalf of all the members entitled thereto, into an
agreement with the company providing for the allotment to them respectively, credited as fully
paid-up, of any further shares to which they may be entitled upon such capitalisation, or as the
case may require, for the payment by the company on their behalf, by the application thereto of
their respective proportions of profits resolved to be capitalised, of the amount or any part of the
amounts remaining unpaid on their existing shares;

Buy-Back of Shares
Notwithstanding anything contained in these articles but subject to the provisions of sections 68 to
70 and any other applicable provision of the Act or any other law for the time being in force, the
company may purchase its own shares or other specified securities.
General Meetings
All general meetings other than annual general meeting shall be called extraordinary general
meeting.
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(i) The Board may, whenever it thinks fit, call an extraordinary general meeting.

(i) If at any time directors capable of acting who are sufficient in number to form a quorum are not
within India, any director or any two members of the company may call an extraordinary general
meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which such a meeting may be called
by the Board.
Proceedings at General Meetings
() No business shall be transacted at any general meeting unless a quorum of members is present
at the time when the meeting proceeds to business.

(i) Save as otherwise provided herein, the quorum for the general meetings shall be as provided in
section 103.

The chairperson, if any, of the Board shall preside as Chairperson at every general meeting of the
company.

If there is no such Chairperson, or if he is not present within fifteen minutes after the time

appointed for holding the meeting, or is unwilling to act as chairperson of the meeting, the

directors present shall elect one of their members to be Chairperson of the meeting.

If at any meeting no director is willing to act as Chairperson or if no director is present within
tifteen minutes after the time appointed for holding the meeting, the members present shall choose
one of their members to be Chairperson of the meeting.
Adjournment of Meeting
(i) The Chairperson may, with the consent of any meeting at which a quorum is present, and shall,
if so directed by the meeting, adjourn the meeting from time to time and from place to place.

(i) No business shall be transacted at any adjourned meeting other than the business left
unfinished at the meeting from which the adjournment took place.

(i) When a meeting is adjourned for thirty days or more, notice of the adjourned meeting shall be
given as in the case of an original meeting.

(iv) Save as aforesaid, and as provided in section 103 of the Act, it shall not be necessary to give any
notice of an adjournment or of the business to be transacted at an adjourned meeting.

Voting Rights
Subject to any rights or restrictions for the time being attached to any class or classes of shares, --

(a) on a show of hands, every member present in person shall have one vote; and
(b) on a poll, the voting rights of members shall be in proportion to his share in the paid-up equity
share capital of the company.
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A member may exercise his vote at a meeting by electronic means in accordance with section 108
and shall vote only once.

(i) In the case of joint holders, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in person or by
proxy, shall be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint holders.

(i) For this purpose, seniority shall be determined by the order in which the names stand in the
register of members.

A member of unsound mind, or in respect of whom an order has been made by any court having
jurisdiction in lunacy, may vote, whether on a show of hands or on a poll, by his committee or
other legal guardian, and any such committee or guardian may, on a poll, vote by proxy.

Any business other than that upon which a poll has been demanded may be proceeded with,
pending the taking of the poll.

No member shall be entitled to vote at any general meeting unless all calls or other sums presently
payable by him in respect of shares in the company have been paid

(i) No objection shall be raised to the qualification of any voter except at the meeting or adjourned
meeting at which the vote objected to is given or tendered, and every vote not disallowed at such
meeting shall be valid for all purposes.
(i) Any such objection made in due time shall be referred to the Chairperson of the meeting, whose
decision shall be final and conclusive.

Proxy
The instrument appointing a proxy and the power-of-attorney or other authority, if any, under
which it is signed or a notarised copy of that power or authority, shall be deposited at the
registered office of the company not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting or
adjourned meeting at which the person named in the instrument proposes to vote, or, in the case of
a poll, not less than 24 hours before the time appointed for the taking of the poll; and in default the
instrument of proxy shall not be treated as valid.

An instrument appointing a proxy shall be in the form as prescribed in the rules made under
section 105

A vote given in accordance with the terms of an instrument of proxy shall be valid,
notwithstanding the previous death or insanity of the principal or the revocation of the proxy or of
the authority under which the proxy was executed, or the transfer of the shares in respect of which
the proxy is given:

Provided that no intimation in writing of such death, insanity, revocation or transfer shall have
been received by the company at its office before the commencement of the meeting or adjourned

meeting at which the proxy is used.
The following shall be the First Directors of the Company.

1. SANJEEV KUMAR
2. RAKESH KUMAR MISHRA
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(i) The remuneration of the directors shall, in so far as it consists of a monthly payment, be deemed
to accrue from day-to-day.

(i) In addition to the remuneration payable to them in pursuance of the Act, the directors may be
paid all travelling, hotel and other expenses properly incurred by them --

(a) in attending and returning from meetings of the Board of Directors or any committee thereof or
general meetings of the company; or

(b) in connection with the business of the company.

The Board may pay all expenses incurred in getting up and registering the company.

The company may exercise the powers conferred on it by section 88 with regard to the keeping of a
foreign register; and the Board may (subject to the provisions of that section) make and vary such
regulations as it may think fit respecting the keeping of any such register.

All cheques, promissory notes, drafts, hundis, bills of exchange and other negotiable instruments,
and all receipts for monies paid to the company, shall be signed, drawn, accepted, endorsed, or
otherwise executed, as the case may be, by such person and in such manner as the Board shall from
time to time by resolution determine

Every director present at any meeting of the Board or of a committee thereof shall sign his name in
a book to be kept for that purpose.

(i) Subject to the provisions of section 149, the Board shall have power at any time, and from time
to time, to appoint a person as an additional director, provided the number of the directors and
additional directors together shall not at any time exceed the maximum strength fixed for the
Board by the articles.

(i) Such person shall hold office only up to the date of the next annual general meeting of the
company but shall be eligible for appointment by the company as a director at that meeting subject

to the provisions of the Act.
Proceedings of the Board

() The Board of Directors may meet for the conduct of business, adjourn and otherwise regulate its

meetings, as it thinks fit.

(i) A director may, and the manager or secretary on the requisition of a director shall, at any time,

summon a meeting of the Board.

(i) Save as otherwise expressly provided in the Act, questions arising at any meeting of the Board
shall be decided by a majority of votes.

(i) In case of an equality of votes, the Chairperson of the Board, if any, shall have a second or
casting vote.

The continuing directors may act notwithstanding any vacancy in the Board; but, if and so long as

their number is reduced below the quorum fixed by the Act for a meeting of the Board, the

continuing directors or director may act for the purpose of increasing the number of directors to

that fixed for the quorum, or of summoning a general meeting of the company, but for no other

purpose.
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(i) The Board may elect a Chairperson of its meetings and determine the period for which he is to
hold office.

(ii) If no such Chairperson is elected, or if at any meeting the Chairperson is not present within five
minutes after the time appointed for holding the meeting, the directors present may choose one of
their number to be Chairperson of the meeting.

(i) The Board may, subject to the provisions of the Act, delegate any of its powers to committees
consisting of such member or members of its body as it thinks fit.

(i) Any committee so formed shall, in the exercise of the powers so delegated, conform to any
regulations that may be imposed on it by the Board.

() A committee may elect a Chairperson of its meetings.

(ii) If no such Chairperson is elected, or if at any meeting the Chairperson is not present within five
minutes after the time appointed for holding the meeting, the members present may choose one of
their members to be Chairperson of the meeting.

(i) A committee may meet and adjourn as it thinks fit.

(i) Questions arising at any meeting of a committee shall be determined by a majority of votes of
the members present, and in case of an equality of votes, the Chairperson shall have a second or
casting vote.

All acts done in any meeting of the Board or of a committee thereof or by any person acting as a
director, shall, notwithstanding that it may be afterwards discovered that there was some defect in
the appointment of any one or more of such directors or of any person acting as aforesaid, or that
they or any of them were disqualified, be as valid as if every such director or such person had been
duly appointed and was qualified to be a director.

Save as otherwise expressly provided in the Act, a resolution in writing, signed by all the members
of the Board or of a committee thereof, for the time being entitled to receive notice of a meeting of
the Board or committee, shall be valid and effective as if it had been passed at a meeting of the
Board or committee, duly convened and held.

Chief Executive Officer, Manager, Company Secretary or Chief Financial Officer
Subject to the provisions of the Act, --
(i) A chief executive officer, manager, company secretary or chief financial officer may be
appointed by the Board for such term, at such remuneration and upon such conditions as it may
thinks fit; and any chief executive officer, manager, company secretary or chief financial officer so
appointed may be removed by means of a resolution of the Board;
(ii) A director may be appointed as chief executive officer, manager, company secretary or chief
financial Officer
A provision of the Act or these regulations requiring or authorising a thing to be done by or to a
director and chief executive officer, manager, company secretary or chief financial officer shall not
be satisfied by its being done by or to the same person acting both as director and as, or in place of,
chief executive officer, manager, company secretary or chief financial officer.

The Seal
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(i) The Board shall provide for the safe custody of the seal.

(i) The seal of the company shall not be affixed to any instrument except by the authority of a
resolution of the Board or of a committee of the Board authorised by it in that behalf, and except in
the presence of at least two directors and of the secretary or such other person as the Board may
appoint for the purpose; and those two directors and the secretary or other person aforesaid shall
sign every instrument to which the seal of the company is so affixed in their presence.

Dividends and Reserve
The company in general meeting may declare dividends, but no dividend shall exceed the amount
recommended by the Board.

Subject to the provisions of section 123, the Board may from time to time pay to the members such
interim dividends as appear to it to be justified by the profits of the company.

() The Board may, before recommending any dividend, set aside out of the profits of the company
such sums as it thinks fit as a reserve or reserves which shall, at the discretion of the Board, be
applicable for any purpose to which the profits of the company may be properly applied,
including provision for meeting contingencies or for equalizing dividends; and pending such
application, may, at the like discretion, either be employed in the business of the company or be
invested in such investments (other than shares of the company) as the Board may, from time to
time, thinks fit.

(i) The Board may also carry forward any profits which it may consider necessary not to divide,
without setting them aside as a reserve

(i) Subject to the rights of persons, if any, entitled to shares with special rights as to dividends, all
dividends shall be declared and paid according to the amounts paid or credited as paid on the
shares in respect whereof the dividend is paid, but if and so long as nothing is paid upon any of
the shares in the company, dividends may be declared and paid according to the amounts of the
shares.

(i) No amount paid or credited as paid on a share in advance of calls shall be treated for the
purposes of this regulation as paid on the share.

(iii) All dividends shall be apportioned and paid proportionately to the amounts paid or credited as
paid on the shares during any portion or portions of the period in respect of which the dividend is
paid; but if any share is issued on terms providing that it shall rank for dividend as from a
particular date such share shall rank for dividend accordingly.

The Board may deduct from any dividend payable to any member all sums of money, if any,
presently payable by him to the company on account of calls or otherwise in relation to the shares
of the company.
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() Any dividend, interest or other monies payable in cash in respect of shares may be paid by
cheque or warrant sent through the post directed to the registered address of the holder or, in
the case of joint holders, to the registered address of that one of the joint holders who is first
named on the register of members, or to such person and to such address as the holder or joint
holders may in writing direct.

Any one of two or more joint holders of a share may give effective receipts for any dividends,
bonuses or other monies payable in respect of such share.

Notice of any dividend that may have been declared shall be given to the persons entitled to share
therein in the manner mentioned in the Act.

No dividend shall bear interest against the company.

Accounts
(i) The Board shall from time to time determine whether and to what extent and at what times and
places and under what conditions or regulations, the accounts and books of the company, or any of
them, shall be open to the inspection of members not being directors.

(i) No member (not being a director) shall have any right of inspecting any account or book or
document of the company except as conferred by law or authorised by the Board or by the

company in general meeting.

Winding Up
Subject to the provisions of Chapter XX of the Act and rules made thereunder --
(i) If the company shall be wound up, the liquidator may, with the sanction of a special resolution
of the company and any other sanction required by the Act, divide amongst the members, in specie
or kind, the whole or any part of the assets of the company, whether they shall consist of property
of the same kind or not.
(i) For the purpose aforesaid, the liquidator may set such value as he deems fair upon any property
to be divided as aforesaid and may determine how such division shall be carried out as between
the members or different classes of members.
(i) The liquidator may, with the like sanction, vest the whole or any part of such assets in trustees
upon such trusts for the benefit of the contributories if he considers necessary, but so that no
member shall be compelled to accept any shares or other securities whereon there is any liability.

Indemnity
Every officer of the company shall be indemnified out of the assets of the company against any
liability incurred by him in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which
judgment is given in his favour or in which he is acquitted or in which relief is granted to him by
the court or the Tribunal.
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S. No

Name, Addresses,
Description and
occupation of Subscribers

Signature of
Subscriber

Signature, Name, Addresses,
Descriptions and occupations of
witnesses

SANJEEV KUMAR
S/ o0 JAI SINGH

R/0o GOHANA,
SONIPAT - 131301,
HARYANA.

OCCUPATION -
BUSINESS

RAKESH KUMAR
MISHRA

S/o DEVI PRASAD
MISHRA

R/0 CK 3/3, 4A,
CHANAKYA RAIL
ENCLAVE, NEAR CRIS
TENJING NORGE
MARG,
CHANAKYAPUR],
DELHI - 110021

OCCUPATION -
BUSINESS

Sd/-

Sd/-

Sd/-
VIKAS GANDHI
S/O SH. HARBANS LAL
R/0 259/9, MOHALLA KALAN,
SONEPAT - 131001,
HARYANA
M. NO. F10339
CP NO. 13266

Date:
Place:
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ANNEXURE P-7

Company Master Data

CIN

Company Name

ROC Code

Registration Number

Company Category

Company SubCategory

Class of Company

Authorised Capital(Rs)

Paid up Capital(Rs)

Number of Members(Applicable in case of
company without Share Capital)

Date of Incorporation
Registered Address

Address other than R/o where all or any books
of account and papers are maintained

Email Id

Whether Listed or not
ACTIVE compliance
Suspended at stock exchange
Date of last AGM

Date of Balance Sheet
Company Status(for efiling)

Charges
Charge Id Assets under charge

U74999HR2022PTC106630

GNA ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
RoC-Delhi

106630

Company limited by Shares
Non-govt company

Private

20000000

15400000

0

15/09/2022

706, PALM SPRING PLAZA, SECTOR - 54
GURUGRAM Gurgaon HR 122009 IN

Info@gna.energy
Unlisted

Active

Charge Amount Date of Creation Date of Modification Status

No Charges Exists for Company/LLP

Directors/Signatory Details

DIN/PAN Name
07163824 SANJEEV KUMAR
08322458 PANKAJ BATRA
09605055 Rakesh Kumar Mishra

https://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do

Begin date End date Surrendered DIN
15/09/2022 -
16/02/2023 -

15/09/2022 -

1/1
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FORM NO_ INC_ZOA Declaration for

commencement of business
(Pursuant to Section 10A(1)(a) of the Companies

Act, 2013 and Rule 23A of the Companies
(Incorporation) Rules, 2014]

Form language (e)English () Hindi
Refer the instruction kit for filing the form.

1 (a) Corporate identity number (CIN) of company [u?g;éggﬂ_-ﬁzosz_TEn_oss_ao Prefill |
(b) Global location number (GLN) of company E - ______ —_J

2 (a) Nameof the company  [GNA ENERGY PRIVATELIMITED . 7

[ - |

(b) Address of the registered office of the company

12861, SEC-46, GURUGRAM
|GURUGRAM

Gurgaon
Haryana
122001

(c)email ID of the company I[Sanjeevbhanwan‘a@gmail.com

3 (8) Whether the affairs of the Company is regulated by any sectoral regulator (like RBI in case of NBFI activities)

Yes = No
Attachments
1 Subscribers proof of payment for value of shares Attach List of attachments

Bank Statement.pdf [

2 Certficate of Registration issued by the RBI |
Attach

(Only in case of Non-Banking Financial Companies) /

from other regulators
3 Notfication declaration as a Nidhi Company Attach

[ Remove attachment ]

.f

4 Optional attachment(s) - (if any) Attach

Declaration
I am authorized by the Board of Directors of the Company vide resolution number * dated *
to sign this form and declare that all the requirements of Companies Act. 2013 and the rules made thereunder in respect
of the subject matter of this form and matters incidental thereto have been complied with. | further declare that;

1 Whatever is stated in this form and in the attachments thereto is true, correct and complete and no information material
to the subject matter of this form has been suppressed or concealed and is as per the original records maintained

by the company
2 Allthe required altachments have been completely and legibly attached to this form.
3 Every subscriber lo the MOA has paid the value for shares agreed to be taken by him.

4 The company has filed with the registrar a verification of its registered office as provided in subsection (2) of section 12

Page 10of 2
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To be digitally signed by Sanrey
Director -

Director dentification number '0?163524 |

Certificate by practicing professional
| declare thal | have been duly engaged for the purpose of certification of this form. It is hereby certified that |
have gone through the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules thereunder relevant to this form and
I have venhied the above particulars (including attachment(s)) from the original records maintained by the

Company/applicant which i1s subject matter of this form and found them to be true, correct and complete and

no mlormation matenal tu ns form has been suppressed

Chartered accountar| (in whole-ime practice) or {  Cost accountant (in whole-time practice) or

e Company secrelary 1in whole-time praclice)

Whether associale or fellow O Associale @ Fellow

Membership number [1 0339 |

Certificale of praclice number ‘13256 ‘

Note: Attention is drawn to provisions of Section 448 and 449 which provide for punishment for false statement / certificate
and pumishment for false evidence respectively.

This eForm has been taken on file maintained by the registrar of companies through electronic mode
and on the basis of statement of correctness given by the company

Page 2 of 2
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AR A WALHY
GOVT. OF INDIA

BT farsT

INCOME TAX DEPARTMENT

% — T @ S e
e - Permanent Account Number (e-PAN) Card
AAKCG0444P

% | Name GNA ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

e fras i o

Date of Incorporation / Formation 1/08/2022

Signature Not

Uerifiet
ndone 7o Boot
GMT+08:30

¥  Permanent Account Number (PAN) facilitate Income Tax Department linkng of vanous documents, inclodimng paymeni of taxcs, assessment, tax
demand tax amears, matching of information .:|||.!-..'._|-.1'. mammienEnce & retneval of elecironic information eic. relating toa iaxpayer
Far = w (89) wE S 3 s fafes semaa W Iea J e e ) o o X, faeE 0 % ynom, JEeeE, 9 A, A S, 59 &
forems it gerR e T w1 Sees T a e sk mEE R

v Quoting of PAN is now mandatory for several transactions specified under Income Tax Act, 1961 { Refer Rule 1 148 of Income Tax Rules, 1962)
s sfufm, 1961 & wen iy v vy i fom verdt Aan wew (4 w0 s i B (e Bam, 1062 % B 1148, W En )

¥ Possessing or using mone than one PAN is against the law & may attract penalty of upto Rs. 10,000
T 5 AT Tl EEn W (=) W T O T =, CAECE F-.ﬂ';, B v T 10000 T T W TR ST W R

¥  The PAN Card enclosed contains Enhanced QR Code which s readable by a specific Androad Motile App. Keyword o search thes specific Mobale
App on Uoogle Play Store 15~ Enhanced QR Code Reader for PAN Card
Fem 9 w7 o vaEEs SR W wwiae b v fafe vgivr mhags on gm w3-fte B Google Play Store 91 ¥R frtae mamgs o7 w8 @ & e g

‘Enhanced OR Cods Reader lor PAM Card™ R

Ll -*MH—&'M N
Tl

; el sa, Wl mil'

' whem w4 wen e

; L EEITR IS -

; 1 this cand is Jout / someome s foat card is foud.
Please inglorm / rerrn o © -

Electronically issued and Digitally signed ePAN is a valid mode of issue of Permanent Account Number (PAN) post
ameandments in clause (c) in the Explanation eccurring after sub-section (8) of Saction 139A of Income Tax Act, 1961
and sub-rule (6) of Rule 114 of the Income Tax Rules, 1962, For more details, ©lick here




ANNEXURE P-10

1
CHHABRA NARANG & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Networth Certificate

This is to certify that Networth of GNA Energy Private Limited, having its registered office
address at Palm Spring Plaza, Sector 54, Gurugram, and Haryana 122009 has been calculated as
under:

Networth as on #:15/12/2022

Particulars Amount (in Rs.)
Paid up Capital : 1,54,00,000
Add: Reserve & Surplus (8,17,479)

Less: Accumulated losses, if any
Less: Miscellaneous Expenditure

Total Networth | 1,45,82,521

Book Value per share (in Rs.)
Total Networth / Total number of outstanding shares Rs. 9.47

# Networth calculated as per the unaudited financial statements as on 15.12.2022. The company
was incorporated on 15.09.2022.

This is to certify that the above mentioned information is true to the best of my knowledge and
belief, according to the books and documents produced before me for verification.

For Chhabra Narang & Assocaites
Chartered Accountants

= A ——F

Place: Sonepat Amit Chhabra

Date: 15.12.2022 Prop

UDIN: 22504676 BFMLEV3795 M No 504676
FRN 020350N

21, Pawan Plaza, 2nd Floor, Subhash Chowk, Atlas Road, Sonepat-131001 (Haryana)
Ph. - 9215676760, 9355976760, 9253041234 e-mail : cna.cafirm@gmail.com, amit.chhabra2010@gmail.com



ANNEXURE P-11

151

TAILS OF SHA SASO .12.2022
Name of the Citizenship | Residential No. of shares | % Holding of total paid up
Shareholder Status held capital of the company
Sanjeev Kumar Indian Permanent 7.45.000 48.38
Bhoovan Singh Indian Permanent 7.45,000 48.38
Rakesh Kumar Mishra | Indian Permanent 50,000 3.24

For GNA ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

NA Energ‘p"rivate Limited

bl

Sanjeev Kumyar
Director
DIN: 07163824

Director

Y

GNA Energy Private Limited
Office Add: 706, Palm Spring Plaza, Sector 54, Gurugram, Haryana-122009
CIN: U74999HR2022PTC106630 | info@gna.energy
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- NA Enerpy Privaie Limited
Registered Address Office No. 706, Palm Spring Plaza, Sector — 54, Gurgaon, Haryana - 122009.
CIN: U7499911R20221"TC106630, Info@gnn.energy, Ph. 9780056010

. Special Purpose Balnnce Sheet ns at 31.01.2023
f (Amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise staled)
| o rti : Noles As at As at
i Particulars . 31 January 2023 31 March 2022
[ Assets
Current assets
L Financial assets
t Cash and cash cquivalent - 5 13,988.61 -
! Other current nssels ‘ 4 811.17 -
Total current assets ‘ 14,799.78 -
v Total assets ) 14,799.78 -
5 Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital GA 15,400.00 -
Other equity
Retained carnings TA -2,201.83 -
: Total equity 13,198.17 -

Current liabilities
Financial liabilitics

Short-term borrowings 8 - N
Trade payables
L " Outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small 9 25.00 N
! enlerprises
» Others 9 - N
Other current liabilities T 10 1,576.61 -
E Total current liabilities 1,601.61 -
L Total liabilities 1,601.61 -
I‘.
[ Total equity and liabilities 14,799.78 -
: Summary of significant accounting policics K)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements
As per our report of even date attached
E: For and on behalf of the
For Chhabra Narang And Associates GNA Energy Private Limited
. Chartered Accountant o s c
’ K e T = =&
— |
e Amit Chhabra Director Director
§ Prop (Sanjeev Kumar) (Rakesh Kumar Mishra)
F M.No. 504676 . DIN- 07163824 DIN- 09605033
FRN - 0020350N ' Place: Gohana Place: Delhi
- Place: Soncpat . Date: 22/02/2023 Date: 22/02/2023

Date: 22/02/2023

L UDIN:ZBSOHb76B§Vvsyzog7

Scanned with CamScanner
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GNA Encrgy Private Limited
Registercd Address Office No. 706, Palm Spring Plaza, Scelor — 54, Gurgaon, Haryana - 122000,
CIN: U7499911R2022PTC106630, info@gnn.cnergy, I'h. 9780056010
Specinl Purpose Statement of Profit & Loss for the period ended as at 31.01.2023

(Amounts in INR thousands, unless olherwise slaled)

ol For the perind ended 31st Ifor the year ended st March
Particulars Noles January 2023 2022
Income:
Expenses:
Other expenses 11 2,201.20
Totnl expenses 2,201.20
Earning before interest, tax, depreciation nnd amorlization -2,201.20 =
(EBITDA)
Finance costs 12 0.63 -
Loss for the period -2,201.83 e
Earnings per share:
(face value per share: INR 10)
(1) Basic 13 -0.14 -
(2) Diluted 13 -0.14 =
Summary of significant accounting policics 3.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial
Statements

As per our report of even date attached

For Chhabra Narang And Associates
Chartered Accountant

{ i
“Ztnc

Amit Chhabra
Prop

M.No. 504676
FRN - 0020350N
Place: Sonepat
Date: 22/02/2023

UDIN: 2 2 So1676 BGVVSY2087

Y LR E Ao~

2 &/

% S
R

7y

For and on behalf of the
GNA Energy Private Limited

Rty S

Director
(Sanjeev Kumar)
DIN- 07163824
Place: Gohana
Date: 22/02/2023

Director

(Rakesh Kumar Mishra)
DIN- 09605055

Place: Delhi

Date: 22/02/2023

Scanned with CamScanner



. GNA Encrgy Private Limited

Registered Address Office No. 706, Palm Spring Plasa, Sector - § I, Gu
CIN: U749991112022 1 TCI06630, info'w gna.energy, Ph,
Special Purpose Statement of Cash Flow for the perind ended as

154

rgaon, Haryana - 122009,
DTRONSG010
at3nng2o2s

{Amounts in INR thourands, unless othenwise stote 1)

Particulars For the period ended 31 Fnr\lhr year ended
Cush Now from operating activitics January 2023 31 March 2022
Loss before tax
Adiustments for FHRE
Operating profit(loss) before w orking capifal changes 2101 83
Movement in working capital SR
(Acreased Jdecrease i other current assels RIN 17
Inerease (decrease) in other current halilitics ;-sm 6l
Increase (decrease) in trade ravables . 25 f‘ffj
Cash generated from operations T90.44
Direct tanes pad (net of refunds) .
Net cash used in operating activities 790.44
Cash Nlow from financing activitics
Proceads from issue of equity shares 15,400 10
(ncluding premuum) (net of share 1ssue expenses)
Procesds from shont-term barrowings -
Net cash generated from financing activitics 15,400.00 -
Net (deerease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents 13,988.61
Cash and cash cquivalents at the beginning of the year -
Cash and cash cquivalents at the end of the year 13.958.61 |
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
- On current accounts 13,988 61 -
13,988.61
Less: Fixed deposits with original maturity of between 3 months and 12 months -
Total cash and cash equivalents (note 5) 13,984.61 =
Symmary of significant accounting policies 31
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements
As per our report of even date attached
For Chhabra Narang And Associates N o/u)", For and on behalf of the
Chartered Accountant TN D/\ GNA Enerzy Private Limited
r\ — ; r 2y o
T ind éa;  —
Amit Chhabra Director Director

(Sanjeev Kumar)
DIN-07163824
Place’ Gohana
Date: 22/02/2023

Prop

M.No. 504676
FRN - 0020350N
Place: Sonepat
Date: 22/02/2023

LDIN: 22504676 RB4 vvg V2087

(Rakesh Kumar Mishra)
DIN- 09603053
Place Delhi

Date. 22/02,72023

Scanned with CamScanner
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GNA Energy Private Limited

Registered Address Office No. 706, Palm Spring Plaza, Sector — 54, Gurgaon, Haryana - 122009,
CIN: U74999HR2022PTC106630, info@gna.cnergy, Ph. 9780056010

Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended on 31.01.2023
(Amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Attributable to the equity holders of the Company

. iy Reserves and Surplus .
Equity share capital Retained carninr:;s Total equity

(refer note 6A) (refer note 7A)
At 31 March 2022 - - -
Loss for the period - -2,201.83 -2,201.83
Total Comprehensive Income - -2,201.83 -2,201.83
Equity shares issued during the period 15,400.00 - 15,400.00
At 31 January 2023 15,400.00 -2,201.83 13,198.17
Summary of significant accounting policies 3.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial
Statements

As per our report of even date attached

For Chhabra Narang And Associates
Chartered Accountant

—
Amit Chhabra /.= %
Prop

M.No. 504676
FRN - 0020350N

Place: Sonepat
Date: 22/02/2023

UDIN: 2250676 RGVVSY2087

‘o

/\

Director
(Sanjeev Kumar)
DIN- 07163824
Place: Gohana
Date: 22/02/2023

For and on behalf of the R
GNA Energy Private Limited ||/ |
Pl

Director =
(Rakesh Kumar Mishra)
DIN- 09605055

Place: Delhi

Date: 22/02/2023
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. GNA Energy Private Limited
Registered Address Office No. 706, Palm Spring Plaza, Sector — 54, Gurgaon, Haryana - 122009.
CIN: U74999HR2622PTC106630, infol@gna.cnergy, Ph. 9780056010

Notes to Finnncial Statements for the period ended on 31.01.2023
(Amounts in TNR thousands, unless otherwise stated)
1 General Information
GNA Encrgy Private Limited (“the Company') is a private limited company domiciled in India

The regrstered effice of the Company 15 located a1 706, Palm Spring Plaza, Scetor 54, Gurugram, Haryana 122008, The Company 15 carrying out business activities relating to generation of power through non-conventional
and rencwable energy sources,

2 Basis of preparntion . ;
The Company prepared its Financial Statements as per Ind AS prescribed under Scction 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

The Financial Statements have been prepared using presentation and disclosure requirements of the Schedule 111 of Companics Act, 2013,
The Financual Statements have been prepared on o histoncal cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:
= Demvative financial instruments
- Finanoial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments)

3.1 Summary of Significant Acconnting Palicies

a) Carrent versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / nen-current classification
An asset 1s trested as current when it 1s.
= Expected 1o be realised or intended to sold or consumed 1 normal operating cycle
= Held pnmanly for the purpose of trading
= Expected to be realised wathin twelve months after the reporting period, or i
« Cash or cash equivalents unless restricied from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months afier the reporting period
All other assets are classified as nen-current.
A liablity 15 treated as current when ilas:
= Expected 1o be settled in normal operating cycle
* Held pnmanly for the purpose of trading
* Due to be sealed wathin twelve months after the reperting period, or
* There 1s no unconditional nght 10 defer the settlement of the liability for ot least twelve months after the reporting period
All gther liabilities are classified as non-cumrent
Deferred tax assets / Labilives are classified as non-current assets / liabilities.

The operating cycle 1s the ime between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation / seitlement in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twele months as their operating cycle for
classification of thetr current assets and hiabilines
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BY Falr value measprement

The Company measres financial tstments, such as, denvatives al toe value o cach repartini date

Saor value s th ™ . < . . 3

Far value 1 the prace that would be vevenad 1o sell an asset o pand 1o transtes o lialihity i an onderly transaction between marhet parmcipants ol the measurement date. Tha G value measurement 15 based on the

presumprion that the tansachion ta sell the asset o tanster the Talahity 1akes place either g

« In the pamaipal market for the asset o Tiabihiiy, o

1 the abeenee of a pranerpal markey, in the most advantageous market for the asset or hiability

The prnaipal o the mast advantagesus market must be aceessible by the company

The far value of an asset o a bability is measurad nang the asumplions that matket partieipants would use when pneng the nssel of lability, nssuming that market participants actin therr economic best interest The fur
> &, 3 i i

value measurement of a pon-financial assel lakes mid aceount & matkel participant’s ability to generate economie benefits by using the wsset i it Bighest o bestuse or by selling 1t 10 anather market participant that would

s the azset in it ghest and best use

The Company wves valuahon techniques that are appropaate he carcumsiances and for wiieh sullicient data are wwatlable to measure e value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and mimmising the use of
unabsenyablemputs *e e

ALl sxeets and Babhines for which Tar valug 1s measured of disclosad 1 the fnancial statements are eategonsed within the fair value hierarchy, desenbed as follows, based on the lowest level input that is sigmificant to the
farr value measuremant as awhale

<Lavel | Quorad (unadjustead) market pnoes in active matkels Cor wentieal assets or habihties

+ Level T - Valuauon techmiques for which the lowest level input that 15 significant to the fare value measurement 15 ditectly or indirectly observable

e Leve! T« \aliaton techaiques far which the lowest level mput that s sigmbicant to the fw value measurement 1s unobservable

For masets and hatalines that are recognnad in the finanenl statements at e value on i recuming basis, the Company Jdetermines whether translers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
eatepetsaton (hasad on the lowedt tevel inpat that s sygmticant 10 the Ty valiie measurement as a whole) ot the end of each reparting peniod

The management of the Company desernmines the policres and procedures for both recwiting Fur value measurement, such as wngquated financiol nssets, and for non-recurting measurement, such as assets held
for sale

External valuers are imvolvad for valuaton of sigmibicant assets, und sigmlicant hatihies. tnvolvement of external valuers is detcrmned annuatly by the management aller discussion with and approval by the
Cempam s Avdit Commmee Sclevhion entena inehnde market knowledge, reputation, inlependenee and whether professional standards e mamtamed The management decides, after disgussians with the Company’s
extormal valeer, which valuation rechmiques and inputs to wse tor each ease

AL each reparting date, the management of the Company analyaes the movements i the values of assets and absilities which are requived to be remeasured or re-assessed as pef the accounting pohiorey of the Company
The management alss compares the change i the farr value oF each assel and liability swath relevant external sourees o Jetenmine whether the change is reasonable .

On an interam basty, the management presents he valuation results 1o the Audit Comamttee and the Company*s mdependent anditors. This meludes a discussion of the magor assumptions usad in the valuatens. For

the parpese of fair value diclosures, the Company has deteminal classes o nssets and Tiabilities on the basis of e nature, chamclensties aod risks of he asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy, a3

explainad above
This note summansss the aocounting palicy for determmanion of fur valoe Other fiur value telatad disclosutes are given in the relevant notes as tollowing
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c) Revenue recopnition

(i) Revenue from contrnets with customers '

Rc\:nuc f:-urn contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or senvices are transferred to the customer ot an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects Lo be entitled in

n:;ccq ::nbcr or those goods or scrvices The Company has generally concluded that it 15 the principal in its revenue amangements, because it typically conlrols the goods or services before transferring them to the customer

1) Sale of power

Income from supply of power 1s recognised over ime on the supply of units generated from plant to the gnd as per terms of the Power Purchase Agreement (PP'A) entered into wath the customers

The Company considers whether there nre other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations 1o which a portion of the transachion pnce needs to be allocaled Tn determining the teansaction price for the

sale of power, the Company considers the effects of vaniable consideration and existence of a significant financing component There 1s only one performance obligation in the armangement and therefore, ollacalion of
transaction price 15 not required,

b) Income from services (management consullancy) i e
The Company recognises revenue from projects management / techmical consullancy over time because the customer
entered wilh the customer.

c) Sale of equipment

Revenue from sle of equipment 1s recognised ot the point in time when control of the asset 15 transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the equipment. The Company considers whether there are other promises in
the contract that are scparale performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated. In delermining the transaction price for the sale ol equipment, the Company considers the effects

of variable consideration, the cxistence of significant financing components, non-cash consideration, and consideration payable 1o the customer There is only one performance obligalion in the arrangement and
therefore, allocation of transaction price is nol required.

simultancously receives nnd consumes the benefits provided to them, as per the terms of the agreement

d) Income from operation and muinlenance services

Revenue from operation and mainlenanee services arc recognised over time as per the terms of agreement

¢) Revenue from Engineering Procurement and Censtruction (EPC) Contracts )

Revenue from provision of service Is recognised over a peniod of time on the percentage of completion method. Percentage of complelion is determined as a proportion of cost incurrcld 1o date to the tqla] csh!m:ed contract
cosL. Profit on contracts is recognised on percentage of completion method and lasses are accounted as soon os these are antieipated . In case the total cost of a conlmcl.bascd on lcchmcal.n.nd ull?:r eslimales 1s expected lo
exceed the corresponding contract value such expecied loss 1S provided for The revenue on account of exira claims on construction contracts are accounted for ot the time of aceeptance in principle by the customers duc to
uncertainties attached. o

Contract revenue camed in excess of billing has been reflected under other current assels and billing in excess of coniract revenue has been reflected under current linbilities in the balance sheel.




18UUDPISWDY YlIM PauunIg

159

N Sale of Restuction Tnussion Cemifieates (111Cs)
Tneome fiom salo of RECs s vecopnived on sale of tiese certifleates

Vauable consisderation

10 he consrderaton v a comteact inclndes o vanahle amount, the Company estimales the nmount of consideration o whieh it will bo entitled exchimngeo for transferning the goods or service 1o the eustomer The vanable

comsderation i estimnted at contiact ineeption and constramed vntil i s highly probable that o sipnificant revemie rexersal i the amount of comulative revente recognised will not occur when the associated nncertainty
with the vanablo consideration i subsequenly resolved. T estimite the varinhle comideration, the Company applics the most likely method
- Rebates

Insome PPAX, the Company provide rebates i iwoice i poyment is made before the due date. These are adpsted apainst revenue and aro ofThel against amonnts p

ayable by the customera
< Stgmficant oancmg component

Stglicant finneing companent s customer contracts is consisderend for the lengih of time between the customers’ payment wd the tansfer of the perfarmance obligation, s well as the prevailing interest rate in the
market The transaction price for these contrnets is disconniel, using the tnterest rte tmphicit in the contract Ths rate 15 commensurate watl the rte tiat would be sellected 1 o separate financing transaction belween the
Company and the customer ol contract ieeplion ’ '

(1) Contenct balances
n) Contract nasels

A contract naset as the nght to consideration In exchianpe for goods or services transferredl to the customer 1 the Company performs by transferring poods or serv
ot before payment 15 due, n e
non-finaneial nssety

1eea o n customer before the customer pays conmideration

ontracl naset s tecognised for the camed considerntion that is conditional. Continet asscts nre sulyeel to impanment nssessment. Refer to nccounting policies i section (0) Impairment of

) Contract liabilities

A contract habuliy 1s the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or.an amoennt of considerntion is due) from he customer If  customer pays conaideration,
before the Conmany transfers poods or services ta the customer, o contract linbility 15 recognised when the payment is mado or the payment s due (whichever 18 earlier) €
the Company performa under the contract (i.e., transfers conlrol of the related goods or services 1o (he customer)

) Trade recevables

‘ontract liabilities are recognised ns revenue when

Acrecenvable represents the Camprny*s npht to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i e, only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is duc)
(i) Others

a) Income from compensation for loss of revenue

Income from compensation for loss of revene 18 recopnised aller certninty of receipt of the same 15 established
b) Dividend

The Company recopmises a hatulity 1o pay n dividend when the distrnbtion 1s mithorised nnd the distnbution is no langer at the diseretion of the Company

d) Foreign currencies
The finaneial statements ore presented in Indinn rupees (INR), which is also the functionnl currency in which the Company operate,

Forcign currency transiatlon

Transactions in foreign currencies are initinlly recorded by the Company at functions! curvency spot rates ot the date the transaction firsl qualifies for recogmition. Monclary nssets and liabilities denominated in foreign

currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchiange al the reporting date. These are recognised in OCHuntil the net investment is dispased of, at which time, the cumulative amount 13 reclassified 1o
profit or loss. Tax charges and eredits atinbulable to exchange dilferences on those monelary items ore also recogmised in OCI

Non-monctary items that arc measured in terms of histoncal cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchinn
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the foir value 1s determined

The gan or loss arising on translation of non-monclary items measured al fair value 15 treated 1n line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (¢, translalion differences on items whose
fair value pan of loss i1s recogmsed in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively)

e rates at (he dates of the initial transachions. Non-monetary items measured at fur value ina foreign

) Taxes
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Con ion work in ~rens 1% tated & - f acs oy if Prop reent - = e {2 rETEr e srcurriiletad memirment
e l!r 1 e coa, net of accumulated impatrmen n YPETTY. ant a pmic n nd 1% stal i st 1l & mialat enreciatiom and pocuminis mgmrment
o ‘ : : e , | /] A 1 W any Propert .pl.. 1 and eqmipmenl © ..t,l-rﬂ'_ll 1d land 15 stated at oost, net of acoumuy ed depr ’
““--J- l'“'\ : I:‘ I ‘. 11"- = U‘ Eli !‘E. (n; lﬂ r‘l‘;’" ACINRE pan o '.c p‘ I'!ntl :\I'\ cql m“'f- and berrawang costs for |f‘ﬂ;,t term construchion projecis e e recoymibion crilenia are me / hen significant pa " '
t 3 < d h f ] d 1 and TN R 3 Mt T f th i 1 W, fic ; ri : ) ‘
I:]- '(l L‘ -l‘. ito l"" ‘rc'--‘ll-.lh l n t'l'\-l : r\'li. 1"‘ : :h . m .l =r- I"! 1 ..cd n theer £ f ceful ives Lakewise, when a major inspection 5 per formed, ils cont )3 TeCoam ped i the carring smount Gl the g b g
{ i ately based on ther specithc uitlu . L, H pe e L/ . - .
e quifesd to b 1sced ot imtervals, the mpany deprecizies them eparately Iy f ¥ ’ ” L A “ s % f ’
-‘ -: : e lacamnce 2 n cntena are atisfied All other repair and manlenance couts are I‘CCO;I'II‘-EL’ in the sttement of pr ofit of loss a3 incurred  Freehol 4 land 1 stated 2t eont ret
end eyupment 3 a replacenant if the recogmnio - !

of accumulated 1mpzirment losses zad 18 not depreciated

e — . 21 the futy snomie benefits embrdied wathin
1: t::'l::‘ :::a:mﬂ a part of an 1tem of property, plant and equipment s recognised 1n the eamying amount of the item of property, plant and equipment, il 1115 probable that the future car}m—: ; [

-hl:-.::x \;-ﬂl.ﬂm E;n t;\z Company a0d 115 cost ean be mexsured reliably with the camying amount of the replaced part gettng derccognised The cost for day-to-day sennaing of propesy, pis
the par o } mpany L

recosmised m statement of profit or loss as and when incurred

Derecegnition

1 roT efits are expected from s
An oy propery, plant and equipment and any sigmificant part intially recognised is detecognised upon disposal (i e, at the date the reciprent obtains control) or when no future ccz:..a...:c‘l:-,‘c...._i ...r- -:!;o:"‘»[ e
or "-';:\.:-s.:ll -\m gam or loss anmng on dc:nc:os.mhoa of the asset (calculated as the difference between the et disposal proceeds and the carmying amount of the asse1) 15 included in the satement of prefit of loss when
2sset 15 derecogmsed

1 ) - b o
Gaas or lasses =msing from de-recognition of fixed assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carmying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or less when the
astet 18 deresopmsed.

£) Intangible assets

Inmnsble sssets asquired seprately are measured m initial recognition at cost The cost of intangible assets and intangible aszets under development acquired 1n a busmess combination s therr furvalue at
the dxe of ascumrmon. Followng mitial recogmition, intangible assets are camed 2t cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated imparment losses and intanmble assets under development 2z carmed 3t cost less
v ascemulated rmparment losses.

The esefd Inves of intzngble 2ssets are assessed as enther fimte or indefimte.

& z2sems with fimne lives 2re z2mornsed over the useful life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amomuisanon peniod and the —menmation mehed
~zible esset wath finnte life 2re reviewed at lezst at the end of each reporiing penied.

te asset 18 derecogmsed upon disposal (1.e, at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future cconomic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gan or loss ansing vpon derecozmten ef the
asset (ez!zulxted as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) 1s included in the statement of profit or loss.

Custome relzed inmagibles are capilised if they meet the definimons of an intangible assct 2nd the recognition entena are sausfied. Customer-related intangibles sequired as pant of a business combrmanen are valoed 22
farr value and those acquired separately are measured at cost Such intangibles are amomised over the remaming useful life of the customer relationships or the penied of the contrzctual armngemets

lazmgtle 2esms with indefimnte useful hves are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, ether mdividually or at the eash-generating unit level The assessment of mdefinite life 1s reviewed anmually o
deemime wheber the mdefinite life continues to be supponable. Ifnot, the change in useful hife from indefinite 1o finite is made on a prospective basis

Development costs

Development expenditures on an individual project are recogrused as an intangible asset when the Campany can demonstrate:

= The techmcz! fezsbiliny of completng the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for use or sale

» Its mtenron 10 complete and its ability and intentron 1o use or sell the asset

= How the zgse will generate future econermie benefits

= The svalability of resourses 1o complete the asset

* The ablny to messure rehiably the expenditure duning development

Followmg 't:'.l‘.:.;l recogmition of the development expenditure as an asset, the assel is camed at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impaiment losses. Amertisanen of the asset beu
when development 1s complete 2nd the asset1s nvailable for use. Tt is amortised over the penod of expecied future benefit )




JauupndsSWo) YlIM pauupndg

162

h) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly atiributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessanly takes a substantial pened of tme to el ready for ils miended use or snle. Dorrowing costs consist of inlerest
discount on 1ssue, premium payable on redempuion and other costs that an entify incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds (this cost also includes exchange differcnees to the extent regarded as an adjusiment 1o l"hn
borrowing costs) The borrowing costs are amortised basis the Effective Literest Rate (EIR) method over the term of the loan The EIR amortisation 15 recogmsed under finance costs in the statement of profit or loss The
amount amortised for the penod from disbursement of borrewed funds upto the date of capitalisation of the qualifying asse1s 15 added to cost of the qunhfyl_ng ssels

To the extent, Company borrows funds for general purpose and uses them for the purpose of abtaiming a quahfying assct, the Company determines the amount of borrowang costs chigible for capialisation by npplying a
capilalisabion rate to the expenditures on that asset. The eapitalisation rate used 15 weighted average of the borrowng costs applicable Lo the borrowings of the Company that are outstanding during the period, other than
borrowings made speaifically for the purpose of obtmming o qualifying asset. In case any specific barrowing remains oulstanding after the related assct 1s ready for its itended use or sale, that borrowing becomes
part of the funds that an entity borrows generally when caleulating the capitalisation rate on general borrowangs. The Company treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing origimally made 1o develop a
quahfying assel when substanually all of the activilies neeessary lo prepare that assel for 11s intended use or sale are complete

i) Impnirment of non-financinl nssets ‘s e
The Company assess, at cach reporting date, whether there1s an indication that an asset may be impaired If any indication exists, of when annual impairment testing for an assel is required, the Company estimatc the asset’s
recoverable amount An assel's recoverable amount is the ngher of an asset’s or cash-generaling units (CGU) far value less costs of disposal and its value in use Recoverable amount 1s deternuined for an individual asset,
unless the asset docs not gencrate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other asscts or group of asscts When the carrying amount of an assct or CGU cxceeds s recoverable amount, the asset
1s considered impaired and is wntien down to ils recoverable amount

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted 1o their present value using a pre -tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the nme value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Tn determining fair value Jess costs of disposal, recent markel transactions are taken inlo account 1 no such transactions can be \dentificd, an oppropniate valuation model 1s used. These caleulations are corroborated
by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded compamies ar other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases 1ts impairment calculation on detniled budgels and forceast calculanions, which are prepared separately for each of the Company's CGUs to which the individual asscls are allocated
These budgets and farecast calculations generally cover a remnining life of the power purchase ngreements of the project considenng the long term fixed.rate firm agreements available,

Imparment losses of continuing opcrations, including impairment on invenforics, are recognised in the statement of prafit or loss

rmino whether there 1s an indication that previously recogmsed impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such mdication

exists, the Company estmales the assct's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised smpairment Joss 15 reversed only il there has been a change in the assumptions used 1o determine the assel’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recogmsed The reversal is Timited so that the earrying amount of the asscl docs not exceed ils recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying smount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asscl in prior ycars Such reversal 1s recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the assct 1s carried at a revalued amount, in which case,

reversal 1s treated as an increase in revaluation

For asscts excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at cach reporung date to dete

j) Provisions
Provisions are recogrased when the Company has a present obligation (legal or construclive) as
the obligation and a relizble esumate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When
reimbursement 15 recogmised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The cxpense relating to a provision 1s presented |

2 result of a past event, it is probable that an oulflow of resources embodying econamic benefits will be required to settie
the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example. under an insurance contract, the
n the statement of profit or loss net ef any reimbursement

If the effect of the ime value of moncy 1s matenal, pravisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropnate, the nisks specific to the liabilty. When discounting is used, the inerease in the

prowision due to the passage of ume 1s recognised as a finance cost
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umated cash flows and are resognized as part of the eoxt of the releam azvet The cash flows diszzgnted = 3 curment pre-lae e the rikes specific to the Comommuiisning
wd 1n the sxtement of profit or loss 232 finmze cont. The exmated fiture costs of decommutsioning &€ reaewed annuzlly and sdjuned 23

“The Company considers €o
settle the pbligahen unng €

liabihity The unwanding of the discount 18 expened as incurred and recogn
appropnate Changesan the estimated future costs, or 10 the discount rate spplied, we added 1o or deducted from the cont of the et

%) Financial Instrumenty

A financial instrument 15 @y © naneial hability of equity insniment of anather entity

ontract that gives rize to o financial azct of oneentity end a fi

Financial assely

Initial recognition and measurement
recarded x far value through profit o loss, transaction €3S {hat are pnbutsklc 1o the azquision of the finzncie) zseet

All financia) assets are recognised imually at fair value plus, in the case of financial zssets not )
delivery of assets within a ime frame cxtzblished by regulation or coavention m the market place (reguler w3y trades) are recogmecd on the trade date, 1 €, the dete that the

Purchases or wales of inancizl assets that require
Company commits 10 purchase or sell the nseet.« + .

.

Subsequent measurement

For purpozcs of subsequent measurement, financial assels are classified in four categones

Dbt rstruments af amortised cost

A “debt instrument” 1s measured at 1he amortised cost if both the following condilions are met

) The asset 1s held within a business modc] whose objective 15 10 hold assets for collecting contrz=tual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give nse on speaificd dates to cazh flows that zre salely payments of pnneipal and interest on the pnincipzl amount outstandmng.
Afler mmal measurement, such financial asscts are subsequently measured al amorised cost uing the EIR mcthod Amortized cost 13 calculated by taking tnto account ny discount or premium on acquisilion
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR The EIR amortisation 15 included in other income In the statement of profit or loss The loszes ansing from mmparment are recognised in Lhe statement of profit or loss

Debt instruments af fair valae through other comprehensive income
A *debi instrument” 15 classificd as ot the fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) (f both of the follewing cntena are mel
a) The objective of the business model 13 achieved both by callecting contractual cash flows and selling the finanoial assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash Nows represent solcly payments of prncipal and interest
Debt instruments included withm FYTOC] category are measured mitially as well as at cach reporung date ot fur value Fair value movements arc reengmised in OCL However, the Company recognises 1nlerest Income,

impaurment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gon or loss 1n the statement of profitor lass On derecognition of the asset, cumulatrve gain or loss previously recognised OC! 15 reclassified from the equity 1o
satement of profit or loss. [nterest carned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument 15 reported as interest Income using the EIR method

Debt instruments at fair value through profit orloss

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 15 a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not mzet the critena for categorisation as al amortised coslor as FVTOCI, 15 classificd as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect ta designate a debt instrument, which otherwise mects amertised cost of FVTOC] critena, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing o reduces or ehiminates 2
measurement of recognilion inconsisicney’ (referred to as ‘accounting mismaich’). The Company has not designated any debt instrument as al FVTPL

Debt insruments included wathin FVTPL calegory are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the statement of profit or loss
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GNA Encrgy Private Limited -

Notes to Financinl Statements for the peried ended at 31st January, 2023 : i

(Amounts 1n INR thousinds, unless otherwise stated) ) .

A denvauve embedded 1n a hybnd contract, with a finzncial liabality or non-financial host, is separated frem the host and accounted for as a separate derivative af' the econamic characternistics and nisks are not closely related
the embedded denvative would meet the definition of a demvative, and the hybnd contract 1s not measured at fair value through profit or loss Embedded

to the host, a separale mstrument with thie same lerms 25
eassessment only occurs if there 1s cither a change m the terms of the contract that sigmficantly modifies the cash flows

denvanves are measured at far value with changes n fair value recogmised 1n profit or loss R
that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category

Embedded derivatives
A dervative embedded 1n a hybrid contract, with a financial iabiliry or non-financial host, 1s scparated from the host 2and zccounted for as a separate denvalive iF: the econamic characteristics and nisks are not closcly related

1o the host; a 5-:p:xr:nemstnsmmlw|lh the same terms as the embedded derivetive would meet the definition of a denvative, and the hybnd contract 1s mot measured at fair volue through profit or loss Embedded
derivatives are measured al far value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss Reassessment only occurs if there 15 eather o change in the terms of the contract that 5|gmﬁcan|l','_rpnd|ﬁl:sl.hc cash Mlows

that would otherwise bc'fcqmrcd or a reclassification of a financial asset oul of the far value through prefit or loss eategory

Equity investments
All other equity mvesiments n scope of Ind AS 109 are measured ot fair valve. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent conswderation reco
which Ind AS 103 applics are classified as at four value through profit or loss. For all other cquity instrumeats, the Company may make an ey ocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes

1n the farr value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification 15 mad

gnised by an acquirer in a business combination Lo
 on iniial recognition and is imevecable.

1f the Company decides 1o classify an equity instrument as ol FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on {he instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCL. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCl 10

statement of profit or loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or less within equity

Equity instruments included within FVTPL calegory arc mensured at fair value with all changes recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Derecagnition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, apartof o finoncial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) 1s pamanly derccognised when:

- The nghts to receive cash flows from the nsset have expired, of
- The respective Grovp has transferred their rights to receive cash flows from the assct or have assumed the obligation to pay the reccived cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a *pass-through’
prrangement; and

- Either the Company has (ransferred substantially all the risks ond rewards of the assel, or has neither transferred nor retamed substantially all the nisks and rewards of the asset, but have transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred it's nghts to receive cash fows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, 1 evaluates if and 1o what exient it has retained the nsks and rewards of ownership. When it
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor rransferred control of the asset, the Company conlinues 10 Tecognise the transferred asset to the extent of the continuing
involvement of Company. In \hat case, the Company also recagnises an assacioted liability. The transferred asset and the associated lability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the

Company has retained

assel is measured at the lower of the onginal cammying amount of the asset and the maximurm amount of consideration that the Company could

Continuing involvement that takes {he form of a guarantee over the transferred
be required 1o repay.
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Impairment of finoncial asvers

In necordance wath Ind AS 109, the Company applics expected credit loss (TCL) model for measurement and recognilion of inprament loss for all debt instruments not held at far vatue thraugh profit or foss ECLs are
based on the difference between the contractun! cash flows due i accordance with the contract and all the cash Aows that the Company expects o receive, discounted at an appreamanton of the onginal effective interest
rate N ‘

The Compam follows ‘smplified approach’ for recopmtion of impanment loss allowance on trade scceivables or contract revenue recervables The Comparsy has established a provision mateothat i3 based on 05 histaneal
credit loss experience, adjusied for forwnrd-looking factors specific Lo the deblors and the econormic environment

The assessment of the correlation between Instorieal abserved default rates, foreeast economic condihions and ECLs 18 o sigmficant estimale The amount of ECLa s sensilive 1o changet in errcumatances and of foracaat
economic conditions: The Company's listoncal credil lass expenence and forceast of cconamic conditions may also not be representalive of customer’s actual default in the future

The application of simphfied approach does not require the Company to wwack changes in credit nisk. Rather it recognises impurment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right feam inatial
recogmtion

For recogninion of impairment lass on other financinl assets and nisk exposure, the Company determimes that whether there hias been a significant inerease an the eredit resk sines intal reeognition 7 credat nsk has nar
snereased sipnificanthy, 12-month ECL s used to provide for lmpnlrlnénl loss. However, |l credit nisk has increased significantly, ifeume FCL s used 1If, in a subsequent pened, credit quality of the instrument improves

such that there 1s no longer a sigmificant increase in credit nsk since imtial recogniion, then the enbity reverts (o recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-menth LCL. The Comparry considers that there has been a
significant increase in avedit sk when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due

Lietime ECL are the expecied credit losses resulting from all possible defaull events over the expeeted hife of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL s a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events
that are posuble within 12 months after the reporting date

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset tn be in default when mter=al ar excterral
informanon indicates that the Company 1s unlikely to receive the outstanding contractunl amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company A financial a1set @@ wrtten off when thers
15 no reasonable expectation of recovening the contractual cash flows

ECL imparment loss allowance (of reversal) duning the period 18 recogmsed as income / expense in the statement of profit or loss

Financial liabilities

Imtal recopmition and measurement

Financal habilihes are classified, at iniial recognition, as financial habilities ot fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as detivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedue, as
sppropnale

All financial habilibes are recogmsed nmally at fair value and 1n the casc of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs

The financual habilines of the Company include trade and other payables, denvative finuncinl instruments, loans and borrowings sncluding bank overdraft
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. GNA Energy.Private Limited . :
Registered Address Office No. 706, Palm Spring Plaza, Sector — 54, Gurgaon, Haryana - 122009.
CIN: U74999HR2022PTC106630, info@gna.cnergy, Ph. 9780056010

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended on 31.01.2023

(Amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise slated)
Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as discussed below: i
Leans and borrowings :
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borro
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecogniscd as well as through the EIR amortisation process.
Amorused cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit or loss. This category generally applies to borrowings.

wings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in

Compulsorily convertible preference shares
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) are separated into liability and equity components based on the terms of the contract.

On issuance of the CCPS, the fair value of the liability component is determined using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible instrument. This amount is
classified as a financial liability measured at amortised cost (net of transaction costs) until it is extinguished on conversion or redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds is allocated (o the conversion option that is recognised and included in equity since conversion option meets [nd AS 32 criteria for
fixed to fixed classification. Transaction costs are deducted from equity and liability on pro-rata basis, net of associated income tax, The carrying amount
of the conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent years, :

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the CCPS based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity components

when the mstruments are mitially recognised.

Compound instruments - C, ompulsorily Convertible Debentures
Compulsonly Convertible Debentures (CCDs) are separated into liability and equity components based on the terms of the contract

The Company recognises interest, dividends, losses and gains relating to such financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability as income or expense in
the starement of profit or loss.

The present value of the liability part of the compulsorily convertible debentures classified under financial liabilities and the equity component is calculated by
subtracting the liability from the total proceeds of CCDs,

'I'ransa_ction costs that relate to the issue of a compound financial instrument are allocated to the liability and equity components of the instrument in Pproportion to the
allocation of proceeds. Transaction costs that relate jointly to more than one transaction (for example, cost of issue of debentures, listing fees) are allocated to those

statemeni 6f profit or loss,
I - ; s %
§ ~< / LOMERPAT Y=

|
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Reclassification of financial assets and linbilities )

The Company determines classification ol financial assels and liabilities on initial recognition. After inilial recognition, no reclassilication is made for financial assets
which are cquity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassificatian is made only if there is a change in the
business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent.

The Company’s senior management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal clranges which are significant to the Company’s
operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model oceurs when the Company cither begins or ceases to perform an activity that
is significant to its opcrations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applics the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first
day of the inimediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses
(including impairment eains or losses) or interest. ’

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to scitle on a net basis, to realise the assets and seltle the liabilities simultaneously.

I} Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
Initiaf recognition and subsequent measurement
The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as foreign currency forward contracts, cross currency swaps (CCS), call spreads, foreign currency option
contracts and interest rate swaps (IRS), to hedge its interest rate risks and foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair
value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value, Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair
value is posilive and as financial liabilities
when the fair value is negative,

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which
is recognised in OCI and Iater reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge item affects profit or lass or treated as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction
subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial ifability.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:
- Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or an unrecognised {irm commitment

- Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability
or a highly

probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment

- Hedges of a net investment in a foreigm operation

Fo.

.

-y
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At he inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the hedge rclinlio‘nship to which the Cornpfm'y \.\f'rishc,'s. tn‘uppliy hc(.J;_'_'t.: |
accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The dOCl:ln'ICI'Il{\lIOII includes thl(: Con.lpany srisk |.1mnng:.n’-u_nl (zlmjccllwl., fxn .
strategy for undertaking hedge, the hedging/ economic relationship, the hedged item or transaction, he nature of 111(:. risk being I1c:(.lgcd‘, hcc!gc ratio an‘ how the entity
will assess the elfectiveness of changes in the hedging instrument’s fair value in offsctting the exposure to changes in lhl.: hedged item’s [air value or cash flows
attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in [fair v.nluc or c:1§h flows and arc assessed
on an ongoing basis to delermine that they actually have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were designated.

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below:
(i) Cash flow hedges

The efTective portion of the gain orloss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCI in the cash flew hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in the statement of profit or loss.

The cash flow hedge reserve is adjusted to the lower of the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument and the cummulative change in fair value of the hedged
item.

The Company uses forward currency contracts as hedges of its exposure to foreign currency risk in forccast transactions and firm commitments, as well as forward
commodity contracts for its exposure to volatility in the commadity prices. The ineflective portion relating to foreign currency contracts is recognised as other
expense and the ineffective portion relating to commodity contracts is recognised in other operating income or expenses.

The Company designates only the spot element of forward contracts as a hedging instrument. The forward clement is recognised in OCI and accumulated in a
separate component of equity under cost of hedging reserve.

The amounts accumulated in OCI are accounted for, depending on the nature of the underlying hedged transaction. If the hedged transaction subsequently resulls in
the recognition of a non-financial item, the amount accumulated in equity is removed from the separale component of equity and included in the initial cost or other
carying amount of the hedged asset or liability. This is not a reclassification adjustment and will not be recogmised in OCI for the period. This also applies

where the hedged forecast transaction of a non- financial asset or non-financial liability subsequently becomes a {irm commitment for which fair value hedge
accounting is applied.

For any other cash flow hedges, the amount accumulated in OCI is reclassified to
which the hedged cash flows affect profit or loss.

If cash flow hedge accounting is discontinued, the amount that has been accumulated
still expected to occur. Othenwise, the amount will be immediately reclassified t

the hedged cash flow occurs, any amount remainin
above,

profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment in the same period or periods during

in OCI must remain in accurnulated OCT if the hedged furure cash flows are

o profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. After discontinuation, once
g n accumulated OCI must be accounted for depending on the nature of the underlying transaction as described

m) Cash and bank balances
Cash and cash-equivalents

Ca_?h and shor?‘.—lcn'n dci?osits i‘n the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and cash in hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, -
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i i : nosils, Jined ahove, net of bank overdraflts as they are
TFor the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash cquivalents consist of cash and short term deposils, as defined ahove, net of .
considered an integral part of the Company's cash management
er the - ivalents
Bank balances other than cash and cash equiva ‘ . ‘ ) ‘ T,
Bank balanees other than cash and cash cquivalents consists of deposits with an original maturity of more than three months. These balance 35
current and non- current portions based on the remaining term o! the deposit
n) Measurement of EBITDA o o ' ’ . . e o
The Company has elected to present carnings before interest, lax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) asa separate line item on the f.xcnl. of 1 arm,.» i
Profit and Lt;ss. The Company measure EBITDA on the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations. In theirr measurement, the companies e
interest income but do not include depreciation and amortisation expense, finance costs and tax expense.

0) Events occurring after the reporting period . ' . _ o o
Impact of events occurring afier (he reporting date that provide additional information materially effecting the determination of the amounts relating to conditions
existing at the reporting date are adjusted to respective asscls and liabilities. . . r
The Company does not adjust the amounts recognised in its financial statements lo reflect non-adjusting cvents afier the reporting period. The Company makes
disclosures in the financial stalements in cases of significant events.

n) Contingent liabilitics ) )
Conungent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible abligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or

non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that anses from past events where 1it1s
either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

q) Earnings per cquity share (EPS)
Basic camings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equty
shares and instruments mandatorily convertible into equily shares outstanding during the period. Diluted camings per equity share is computed by dividing the net
profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic €amings per equity share and
also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares The dilutive potential 2qun
shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at fair value (i.c. the average market value of the outstandinz equity shares)
Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are detemmuned
independently for each period presented.
The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for any share splits and benus shares issues
including for changes effected prior to the approval of the consolidated financial statements by the Board of Directors.
"The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted eamings per share.
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i GNA Energy Private Limited
Registered Address Office No. 706, Palm Spring Plaza, Sector — 34, Gurgaon, Haryana - 122009.
CIN: U74999HR2022PTC106630. info@ gna.energy. Ph. 9780056010
Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended on 31.01.2023
(Amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

' Asat Asat

4 |Other assets ) .
i 31 January 2023 31 March 2022 |
I ]
|Current (Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated) ;
|
| N . — o~ - |
|Security Deposit for Office 02741
{Security Deposit to Palm Drive 11.80 !
{Gst Receivable 171.96 -
‘Total S11.17 | -
; Asat Asar

3 iCash and cash equivalents 31 January 2023 31 March 2022
IE-BE_T&-;ce with bank ' i,
|- On current accounts 1398801 -
i 13.988.61 | .
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GNA Energy Private Limited

Registered Address Office No. 706, Palm Spring Plaza, Sector - 54, Gurgnon, Haryana - 122009.
CIN: U74999HR2022PTC106630, info@gna.energy, Ph. 9780056010
Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended on 31.01.2023

(Amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

6A

Share capital

Authorised share capital

Equity shares of INR 10 each
At1 April 2021

Increase during the period

At 31 March 2022

Increase during the year

At 31 January 2023

Issued share capital

Number of shares Amount

- -

2,000.00 20,000.00
2,000.00 20,800.00

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and paid up

At 1 April 2022
Shares issued during the period
At 31 January 2023

Terms/rights attached to equity shares

Number of shares Amount

1,540.00 15,400.00
1,540.00 15,400.00

The Company have only one class of equity shares having par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to
one vote per share. If declared, the Company will declare and pay dividends in Indian rupees.

In the event of liquidation of a Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company,
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the

shareholders of the Company.
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6C

6D

Shares held by the holding Company

31 January 2023
Number Amount
of shares

31 March 2022
Number
of shares

Particular Amount

Equity shares of INR 10 each - -
Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
31 January 2023

" 31 March 2022

. Number |% Holding Number % Holding
Particular
of shares of shares
Equity shares of INR 10 each
Sh. Bhuvan Singh 745.00 48.38% - 0%
Sh. Sanjeev Kumar 745.00 48.38% - 0%

As per the records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members the above shareholding represents
both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

No shares have been allotted without payment of cash or by way of bonus shares during the period of five years
immediately preceding the balance sheet date.

7A

Other equity
Retained earnings
At 31 March 2022 -
Loss for the period -2,201.83
At 31 January 2023 -2,201.83
Nature and purpose

Retained eamings are the profits/(loss) that the Company has earned/incurred till date, less any transfers to general
reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders. It is a free reserve available to the Company and eligible
for distribution to shareholders, in case where it is having positive balance representing net earnings till date.
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Notes to Financial Statéments for the period ended on 31 January 2023
(Amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

173

8 |Short term borrowings As at As at
. 31 January 2023 31 March 2022
Loan from related party (unsecured) (refer note 14) -
Total -
As at As at
2 | Trade piayables 31 January 2023 31 March 2022
Current
Chhabra Narang & Associates 25.00
Others 25-00
Total R ’ -
Trade payables are non-interest bearing in nature. For explanations on the Company’s liquidity risk management processes, refer to
Note 17
// V
%
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10|{Other current liabilities As at
31 January 2023 31 March 2022
Other payables 917.24
Salary Payable 635.70
TDS payable 23.67 -
Total 1,576.61 -

As at

This space has been left blank intentionally




JauupndsSWo) YlIM pauupndg

GNA Energy Private Limited

Registered Address Office’No. 706, Palm Spring Plaza, Sector — 54, Gurgaon, anyzma - 122009.
CIN: U74999HR2022PTC106630, info@gna.energy, Ph. 9780056010

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended on 31st January, 2023
(Amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

11

Other expenses

For the period ended
31 January 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Electricity Expenses 6.17 -
Internet Expenses 12.00
MCA Comwpliance Expenses 279.00
OTC Plateform Licence Fees 300.00
Preliminary Expenses ' 25.00
Professional Fees 22.00
Rent 836.55 -
Repair and maintenance 84.78
Salary 635.70
Short and Excess 0.00
Total 2,201.20 -

175

*Payment to Auditors

For the period ended
31 January 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

As auditor:

Audit fee
In other capacity:
Reimbursement of expenses

=y

i
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For the period ended

For the yca;' ended

31 « H J

12| Finance costs January 2023 31 March 2022
Interest on Tds Late Payment 0.63 -
Total . 0.63 -

13|Earnings per share (EPS) For the period ended | For the year ended

31 January 2023 31 March 2022

The following reflects the profit and share data used for the basic and diluted
EPS computations:
Profit attributable to equity holders for basic earnings - =
Net loss for calculation of basic EPS - -
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating basic EPS 1,540.00 -
Basic earnings per share -0.14 -
Net loss for calculation of diluted EPS -2,201.83 -
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating diluted EPS 1,540.00 -
Diluted earnings per share -0.14 -
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IV. Feilow Subsidiaries

b) Details of transactions with holding Company:

177

Particulars

For the period ended
31
January 2023

For the period ended
31
March 2022

Equity issued during the year

Unsecured loan received

¢) Compensation of Key management personnel

Remuneration to the key managerial personnel is paid by the holding Company of the company and is allocated between the
subsidiary companies as management shared services and is not separately identifiable.

This space has been left blank intentionally
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GNA Encergy Private Limited
Registéred Address Oftice No. 706, Palm Spring Phivza, Sector — 54, Gurgaon, Haryana - 122009,
CIN: U749991TR20221"TC 106630, info@gna.energy, Ph. 9780056011
Notes to Fimnneinl Statements for the period ended on 31 danuary 2023
(Amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

IS Segment Information

____This space has been o blank intentionally
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) . GNA Energy Private Limited .
Registered Address Office No. 706, Palm Spring Plaza, Sector — 54, Gurgaon, Haryana - 122009.
CIN: U74999HR2022PTC106630, info@gna.energy, Ph. 9780056010

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended on 31st January 2023
(Amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

16 Fair values
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the financial instruments of the Company, other than those with'’

carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values:
31 January 2023

Carrying value Fair value

Finamcial assets
Measured at amortised cost
13,988.61

Cash and cash 13,988.61
Financial liabilities

Measured at amortised cost
Short-term borrowings

Trade payables
The management of the Company assessed that current investments, cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, short term

borrowings, other current financials liabilities and other current financial assets approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the
short-term maturities of these instruments.

The financial assets above do not include investments in subsidiaries which are measured at cost in accordance with Ind AS 101, Ind AS 27 and

Ind AS 28
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; GNA Energy Private Limited
Registered Address Office No. 706, Palm Spring Plaza, Sector — 54, Gurgaon, Haryana - 122009.
CIN: U74999HR2022PTC106630, info@gna.cnergy, Ph. 9786056010

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended on 31st Janunry, 2023

(Amounts in INR thousands, unless othenwise slated)
17 Finaneial Risk Management ohjectives and policics

"The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise Joans and borrowings, trade and other payables,
The niain purpose of these financial liabilities is to linance the Company's operations and to support its operations. The Company's financial assets include loans. trade and other
receivables, and cash & cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations. -

The Company is exposed o market risk, caedit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior m
supported by a various sub conumittees that advises on financial risks
assurance to the Company's senior management that the Company’
measured and managed in accordance with the Company’
below.

anagement oversees the management of these risks. The Company's senior management is
and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. These committees provides

s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedure and that financial risks are identified,

s policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policics for managing each risk, which are summarised as

Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the Company's assets and liabilitics will be exposed to due to

comprises 3 types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk such as equ
borrowings and deposits.. *

a change in market prices that determine the valuation of these financial instruments. Market risk
lity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by markel risk include loans and

Forcign Currency Risks: :
Foreign Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an CNposurce w
currency exposures as on 31 March 2021, In case of foreign currency exposures,
Company does not undertake any speculative transaclions.

Foreign currency sensitivity

Foreign Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure w
currency exposures as on 31 March 2019, In case of foreign currency exposures,
Company docs not underlake any speculative transactions.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the power procurer will not meet their obligations under a fin

risk from their operating activities (primarily trade reccivables) but this credit risk expo
utilities/government entitics.

ill fluctuate beeause of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company does not have any foreign
the Company monitors that the hedges do not exceed the underlying foreign currency exposure. The

ill fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company does not have any foreign
the Company moriitors that the hedges do not exceed the underlying foreign currency exposure. The

ancial instrument or customer comtract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed 10 credit
sure is insignificant given the fact that substantially whole of the revenues are from state

Further the Company sought to reduce counterparty credit risk under long-term contracts in part by entering
quality and we monitor their credit quality on an on going basis.

The maximum credit exposure to credit risk for the componenis of the balance sheet at 31st January,

into power sales contracts with utilities or other customers of strong credit

2023 is the carrying amount of all the financial assets.
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Financial instruments and credit rigk
Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by company's treasury department. Investments, in the fiorm of fixed deposils, loans and ather invesiments. of surplus funds are made only

with banks & group companies and within eredit limits assigned to cach counterparty. Counterparly credit limits are reviewed on an annual basis by the Company, and may be
updated thronghout the year subject to approval of company's finance committec. The limils arc sct to minimize the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through
counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

Other financial assets

Credit risk from other financial assets including loans is managed basis established policies of Company, pro
receivables are regularly monitored. The Company does not hold collateral as security."

cedures and controls relating to customer credit risk management. Outstanding

This space has been left blank intentionally
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Liquidity Risk
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(Amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will cncounter in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilitics that are scttled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The approach of
the Company to manage liquidity is to ensure , as far as possible, that these will have sufTicient liquidity to meet their respective Imhlhllcs when they are due, under bath normal and stressed
vondinons, without incurring unacceptable [nsscs or risk damage to their rcpuhlmn
The Company asscssed the concentration of risk with respeet to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Company has access to a sufficient varicty of sources of funding and debt maturing
within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders.

The Company rely mainly on long-term debt obligations to fund their construction activities. To the extent available at acceptable terms, utilized non-recourse debt to fund a significant portion of the

capital expenditures and investments required ta construct and acquire our wind and solar power plants and related assets. The Company’s non-recourse financing is designed to limit default nsk and 15

a combination of fixed and variable interest rate instruments. In addition, the debt is typically denominated in the currency that matches the currency of the revenue expected to be generated from the

benefiting project, thereby reducing currency risk. The majority of non-recourse debt is funded by banks and financial institutions, with debt capacity supplemented by unsecured loan from related

party.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of financial liabilities of Company based on contractual undiscounted payments:

Year ended 31 January 2023

On demnand

Less than 3 months 3 to 12 months

1 to 5 years

> 5 years

Total

Trade payables
Trade payables

25.00

25

The Company expect liabilities with current maturities to be repaid from net cash provided by operating activities of the entity to which the debt relates or through oppertunistic refinancing actrvity or

some combination thereof.

This space has been left blank intentionally
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{(Amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

18 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenucs, expenses, assels and liabilities and
the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a imaterdal adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liahilities
affected in future periods.

In the process of applying the accounting policies management has made certain judgements, estimates and assumptions. The key assumptions concemning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertaint at the reporting date. that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below. The Company based their assumptions and estimates on parameters available when (he financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about
future developments, however. may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when
they eccur.

A) Accounting judgements:

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategices.

The Company makes various assumptions and estimates while computing deferred taxes which include production related data (PLFs), projected operations and maintenance costs. projected
finance costs. proposed availment of deduction under section 80IA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and the period over which such deduction shall be availed, accelerated depreciation. other
applicable allowances. usage of brought forward losses etc. While these assumptions are based on best available facts in the knowledge of management as on the balance sheet date however,
they are subject to change vear on year depending on the actual tax laws and other variables in the respective year. Given that the actual assumptions which would be used 1o file the
return of income shall depend upon the tax laws prevailing in respective year, management shall continue to reassess these assumptions while calculating the deferred taxes on each balance
sheet date and the impact due to such change, if any. is considered in the respective year.

-
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B) Estimates and assumptions:

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Assumptions include considerations of in i i itri ili i :

puts such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors ¢ { i i
. - Ju S ould afTect the reported f
instruments. See note 16 and 17 for further disclosures. P air value of financial

Related party transactions

Management Shared Services

Employee benefit costs and other common expenscs are incurred by the Holding Company & fcllow subsidiary. These expenses are allocated 1o all the entities of the Group in the form
of 'Management Shared Services'. Allocation of cost to the entities involves various cstimates, rcasonability of which is assessed through an external expert.

Estimates used:

Retention of shareholders cost by the Holding Company / fellow subsidiary: 7.50%
Allocation of Cost for Projects under construction vis-a-vis operating projeets: 5:1
Profit mark-up: 5% plus applicable taxes

Inter-group unsecured loan

The Group uses unsecured loans to fund requirements of various entities. These loans carry interest rate of 8% (approximales 3-ycar government bond yield).

Inter-Group EPC . . . o
The Group through a few companics undertake the EPC activity for entities within group and for third parties. The Group basis a report from an external expert charges a profit margin in the

range on 3-5%.
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19 Capital manapement

For the purpose of the capial management,

M) includes issued equity eapital, compulsanty convertible
reseives attnbutable to the equity holders of ol

debentures, compuleanly convertible preference shares, Scounilios premivm and afl oher cquily
he parent The pmany objective of the Company's man

apenient 15 to maximise the shareholder value

The Company manages itx capital structure and makes adiustments i leht of changes in cconamic conditions and the requirenients of the financial covenants

To mazotan or adjut the eapital ricture, the “ompany may adjudt the divadend payment fo shareholder, retum capital 10 sha
i, which s netdebt divided by 1ot

a1 capital plus net Jebt The Company includes within net debl, interest beanng
sutenutically evaluates oppartunines for managing its avsety including that of buying new

reholders or issue new shares. The Company monitar capital using a gearing

loans and borrowings and other payables, less cash and short-term deposits The Campany
asscts, partally or entirely sell existing assets and rotential new

The palicy of the Company i 1o keep the geanng mtio of the power project ta 3 1 dunng the constniction

phate and aim to enhance it ta 4:1 post the construction phase. This is in line with the indosiry
standand mane. The curent geanng mtsos of the vanous projects in the Company 15 between 31 to -1,

In ender to azhicve this overall ehyective,

e caprtal management of the Company, amongst oter things, aims 1o cnsure that they meet financial covenams
that define capinl structure requirements

attached to the interest-bearing loans and boarowings

No changes were made m the obyecuves, palicies or processes for managing capilal during the years ended 3181 January 2023
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< Particulars

20 Commitments Liabilities and Contingencics
(to the extent not provided for)
(i) Contingent liabilities

At 3t Januany 2023, the Company has cantingent liabilitics of INR Nil -

"(ii) Commitments:

Estimated of contracts ining to be exceuted on capital account and not provided for
AL 3Ist Januany 2023 | the Company has capiml commitment (net of ady ances) pertuning to commissioning of solar encrgy projects of INR Nil

21 Details of dues to Micra, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

Under the Micro, Small and Madium Enterprises Development Act. 2006, (MSMED) which came nto farce from 2 October 2006, certun disclosure are required to be made relating 1o Micro,

Small and Modium Enterprises. On the basis of the nformahon and reconds available with the management, there are no outstanding dues to the Micro, Small and Medium Enterpnses
development Act, 2006

_— Asat .y
31.01.202)

The prncipal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown scpamtely) remaining unpaid to any supplicras at the end of each accounung vear/penod Nil

The amount of interest pard by the buyerinwrms of seetion 16, of the Micro Small and Medium Enlerprise Development Act, 2006 along wath the amounts of the

payment made 1o the supplicr bevond the appomted day during each accounting year/penod Nil
The amount of interest due and pavable for the pened of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day dunng the year/penod) but

without adding the interest specified under Micro Small and Medium Entepnse Development Act, 2006. Nil
The amvount of imterest accrued and remaning unpaid at the end of cach accounung vear/penod, and Nil
The amount of Rurther interest remaining due and  payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest ducs as above are actually paud to the

small cnterpnse for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro Small and Medum Enterpnise Development Act, Nil
2006

22 There are no employees on the molls of the company and therefore no employee benefit expense accrued in the financial statements

23 Duc to cntbreak of COVID-19 globally and in India, the Company has made initial asscssment of likely adverse impact on economic enviroament in general and financial nsks on account of
COVID-19 Considenng that the Compamy is in the business of gencration of electnenty which 1s granted “must run™ status. the management belicves that the impact of outbreak on the
business and financual posinon of the company will not be sigmificant. The management docs not see any nsks in the Group's abiliny to continue as a gong concem and meeting its habilibies as
and when they fall due For under construction projects, though the physical activities have been construned and partally impacted, however management does not anncipate any delay in
mecung the original amelines and expects that overall completion timelines for respechive projects shall be achicved as sct out in fespective pawer purchase agreements with customers Further,
Ministry of New and Renewable Encrgy (MNRE) has issucd office memorandum dated Apnl 17, 2020 staling the Time-Extension in Scheduled Commissioning date of RE projects for lockdown
time and additional thirty days (30 days) for nomalization after the end of such lockdown doe to COVID- 19 which further negates any potential sk of hquidated damages. The Company 15

closcly ing develop s hqudity and capital resources and 1s actively working to minimize the impact of the unprecedented situation

24 Absolute amounts less than INR 500 arc appeanng in the financial statements as "0* due o presentation in thauends

As per our report of even date attached \ J
/
|
For Chhabra Narang And Assuci:ltcg‘ w For and on behalf of the |
Chartered Accounl_.a_nt WLm A '\\ / GNA Encrpy Private Limited \ |
— 5 At

AmitChhabra‘v\'.' (R g V] Director

Prop . xS (Sanjeev Kumar) (Rakesh Kumar Mishra)
MNo. 504676 - - DIN- 07163824 DIN- 09605055

FRN - 0020350N —— Place: Gohana Place: Delhi

Place: Sonepat Date: 22/02/2023 Date: 22/02/2023
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Details of Key Managerial Personnel of GNA Energy Pvt. Ltd.

Management Personnel:

S.No. | Name Details

1 Sanjeev Kumar | Sanjeev Kumar is a Member of Board of Directors of GNA
Energy Private Limited.

He has over 17 years’ experience working in different
industries including, new-age technology. Sanjeev has
served at senior level positions in various organizations
from technology lead to Group Chief Executive Officer, which
gave him the exposure at different domains, including
technical, operations and strategic management. Leader in
the field of technology, particularly in field of architectural
design, enablement and implementation of advanced
technology in the traditional business verticals. Exposure of
varied and multiples business verticals and experience of
conceptualize, develop and effective execution of the vision
of organisation.

Sanjeev Kumar, a national level swimmer, completed his
Bachelor in Technology with Majors in Computer Science &
Engineer from Punjab Engineering College, Chandigarh in
2006. During his degree, he was also awarded College Color
for all-rounder achievements and performance for the batch
of 2002- 2006. He was also College Captain during his
undergraduate degree.

He has experience in implementing new age technologies to
overcome real life challenges which include Fintech
company helping D2C companies with higher conversions
and reduced RTO.

In 2018, he joined as Chief Executive Officer in JSC, a group
that is currently into Highway Infrastructure Management,
Mining and Software Consultancy. JSC's growth can be
directly attributed to its ability to adapt, endure and remain
credible with all stakeholders.

In 2006, Sanjeev joined Keane, a leading Global IT service
provider through college campus selection as Software
Engineer.

2 Pankaj Batra Pankaj Batra is a Member of Board of Directors of GNA
Energy Private Limited.

He has 35+ years’ experience in all aspects of the power
sector in India; and ~4 years’ experience of the power sector
in South Asia.
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During his career with the Government of India, he has
served as Chairperson and Member Planning, Central
Electricity Authority, Ministry of Power.

Shri Batra has varied experiences of Policy, Regulatory,
Standards making in the Power Sector in India. He has
worked on Energy Transition, including sector efficiency,
transition to Renewables, Electric Vehicles, Smart Grid. His
personal focus areas to work have been Demand forecasting,
Generation Planning, Grid management. Standard Bidding
Documents. He is hands on with all aspects of Cross border
trade in electricity in the BBINS (Bangladesh, Bhutan, India,
Nepal and Sri Lanka) countries, including harmonization of
policies and regulations, advancing transmission
interconnections and creation of regional power markets.

Rakesh Kumar
Mishra

Rakesh Kumar Mishra is a Member of Board of Directors of
GNA Energy Private Limited.

He has over 25 years’ experience in policy formulation and
implementation, in particular of the transportation sector.
Shri Mishra has served as Chief of Staff (Private Secretary)
of Union Ministers giving him experience of working at CXO
level.

He has completed a certificate course on ‘Global Energy and
Climate Policy’ from University of London; and a certificate
course on leadership- ‘Leading from the Emerging Future’
from Massachusetts Institute of Technology.

Narender
Kumar

Narender Kumar is a KMP of GNA Energy Private Limited.

He is a national swimming champion, completed his
Bachelor in Technology with Majors in Computer Science &
Engineer from Punjab Engineering College, Chandigarh in
2003. During his degree, he was also awarded Advisor's Gold
Medal for all-rounder achievements and performance for
the batch of 1999- 2003.

He is an investor and advisor to many startups
implementing new age technologies to overcome real life
challenges which include Fintech company helping D2C
companies with higher conversions and reduced RTO,
Agritech company using IoT to automate operations, Al
company using ANPR to build next generation Tolling
System for the country, and an EV startup building charging
infrastructure.

In pre-UPI days of 2015, he founded a digital payment
platform Trupay. To build Trupay, he successfully raised
investment from international institutional funds. Trupay, a
mini-UPI platform, was the country's first mobile based
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application that allowed multi banking real time payment
solutions in B2B2C. During demonetisation, he also
contributed to the Government of India’s initiative to expand
digital footprints as part of a committee that framed
guidelines for current age digital solutions such as now
omnipresent Universal QR code.

In 2003, he joined Indian Oil Corporation through college
campus selection as Information Systems Officer where he
managed complex legacy operation monitoring systems. He
also worked with one of the Refinery Management team to
prepare for a board level review meeting.

IL. Advisory Board:
S.No. | Name Details
1 RN Nayak RN Nayak was former Chairman & Managing Director,

Power Grid Corporation of India. Mr. Nayak is having over
40 years of experience in various capacities in Power Sector
i.,e. NTPC & POWERGRID. He was former Chairman and
Managing Director, Power Grid Corporation of India i.e.
Central Transmission Utility of India. He is a first-class
Bachelor of Electrical Engineering from NIT, Rourkela and
holds an MTech (Electrical Engineering) from IIT
Kharagpur.

He was a founder member of POWERGRID and handled as
Head of various multi-disciplinary functions such as
Engineering of UHV AC & DC, Quality Management, Contract
Management, Load Despatch & Communication,
Diversification to Telecom business, O & M & HR. He has
introduced many new technologies in the Power Sector such
as EMS & SCADA System for real time Grid Management,
+800 KV HVDC, 765 & 1200 KV AC UHV, Smart Grid
Technologies & Ultra Mega Solar Park Developments. He
was also deeply involved in Real Time Grid Management,
Market Design, Trading, preparation of various Regulations
and procedures for Open Access in Power sector.

He established one of the largest National Grid in the World
i.e. “One Nation, One Grid and One Frequency”. He has
introduced many new concepts in India for development of
Renewable Energy like Green Energy Corridor including
Renewable Energy Management Centers at State, Regional &
National level; Desert Power to have Ultra Mega Solar; wind
Parks in utilizing waste lands in Deserts. He is a Senior
Member of IEEE, CIGRE and has been honored with Fellow
of FNAE in Electrical Engineering. He was judged as Best
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CEO in Power Sector consecutively in “The 2013, 2014 &
2015 All Asia Executive”.

Presently, he is CEO of SMARTEC & Emerging Control
Systems and also the member of Board of Corporates
(presently in Tata Power Central Odisha Distribution Ltd &
Tata Power Western Odisha Distribution Ltd, Odisha Power
Transmission Corporation Ltd, Grid Corporation of Odisha,
IRM Energy, Diamond Power); advising large Consulting
Corporates, International Consulting firms; the IFC/World
Bank; Indian Power Exchanges etc.

Aman Chhikara

Aman is a digital security professional with 19+ years of
experience in various information security domains. He
holds huge exposure in Governance, Risk and Compliance,
security architecture & solution design, development of
Enterprise Security framework and implementation of
security controls & their audits.

He has worked for Global companies including Adobe, HCL,
Hindalco, ASM Technologies, vCustomer, and security
product companies including SonicWall, Elitecore
Technologies (now Sophos) etc. Working with these
renowned companies, he has acquired expertise, starting
from managing a home network to complex and mission
critical stock exchange environment. With his strong
technical background, he has lead the product analyst team
of UTM device Cyberoam to introduce many new features
and bring enhancement to few existing functionalities.

He is a man with sincerity and dedication, who has always
excelled in roles assigned to him. His contribution has been
rewarded multiple times by his employers and he has been
honored several prestigious awards by many security
forums. He has participated in several events organized by
industry forums as a speaker and trained few organizations
on technology, privacy & cyber security related topics.

Aman is a Post Graduate Diploma holder in Business
Management, but keenly remained close to technology. He
has worked on large number of technologies, regularly
updating his skillset to match the requirement of changing
time.

His security certification list includes CISSP, AWS Solutions
Architect, ISO 27001 Lead Auditor, ITILv3, CCSA, CCNA,
MCSSTP, CCNSP, CSSA, ICCA.

Hitesh Chawla

Hitesh is the founder of SilverPush, a technology company in
digital advertising space. SilverPush is a pioneer in the world
in privacy-safe advertising, helping brands reach consumers
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without using any personal data of users. Hitesh has led
SilverPush to become a global company, built from India.
With presence across more than 20 countries, across 5
continents, Silverpush is leading the digital advertising
industry with its technology and innovation.

Hitesh has also been supporting and mentoring other
entrepreneurs, having invested in more than 25 StartUps in
India. He completed his Masters and Bachelors from IIT
Delhi in Chemical Engineering in 2004. He also has multiple
patents granted for technology innovation.

He has prior experience working in academic institutes,
global analytics firm and a leading consumer market global
leader.

Naresh Kumar
Kaushik

Naresh is an accomplished senior consulting professional
with outstanding analytical ability extensive experience in
engaging with senior executives, managing complex
business situations coupled with the ability to translate
solutions into a practical and profitable application.

He completed his Maters in Complex Systems Engineering
and Management, Delft University of Technology, The
Netherlands, 2013. Naresh has also undergone Harvard New
Leader Program, HBR, 2016.




Sanjeev Kumar

Entrepreneur and Angel Investor

Sanjeev has served at senior level positions in various organizations
from technology lead to Group Chief Executive Officer, which gave him
the exposure at different domains, including technical, operations and
strategic management. Leader in the field of technology, particularly in
field of architectural design, enablement and implementation of
advanced technology in the traditional business verticals. Exposure of
varied and multiples business verticals and experience of conceptualize,
develop and effective execution of the vision of organisation.

Sanjeev Kumar, a national level swimmer, completed his Bachelor in
Technology with Majors in Computer Science & Engineer from Punjab
Engineering College, Chandigarh in 2006. During his degree, he was
also awarded College Color for all-rounder achievements and
performance for the batch of 2002- 2006. He was also College Captain
during his undergraduate degree.

He has experience in implementing new age technologies to overcome
real life challenges which include Fintech company helping D2C
companies with higher conversions and reduced RTO.

In 2018, he joined as Chief Executive Officer in JSC, a group that is
currently into Highway Infrastructure Management, Mining and Software
Consultancy. JSC’s growth can be directly attributed to its ability to adapt,
endure and remain credible with all stakeholders.

In 2006, Sanjeev joined Keane, a leading Global IT service provider
through college campus selection as Software Engineer.
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Pankaj Batra

Profile Summary

Qualifications

Competencies

Present Position

Ex-Chairperson CEA

Over 35 years’ experience in all aspects of the power sector
in India. About 4 years’ experience of the power sector in
South Asia. Currently, Project Director & Chief of Party,
USAID’s SARI/EI (South Asia Regional Initiative in Energy
Integration) program, which ended in September. Closeout
going on. Ex Chairperson and Member Planning, Central
Electricity Authority, Government of India.

B.Tech. in Electrical Engineering, from IIT, Varanasi, 1981
Diploma in Systems Management, from NMIMS, Mumbai,
1988

Diploma in Financial Management from IGNOU, 2002
Diploma in Public Speaking, Nazareth Speakers Academy,
1981

Policy, Regulatory, Standards making in the Power Sector in
India. Power sector Reforms. Energy Transition, including
sector efficiency, transition to Renewables, Electric Vehicles,
Smart Grid. Demand forecasting, Generation Planning, Grid
management. Standard Bidding Documents. Operation &
Maintenance of hydro power plant. System Operator. Power
sector status in the SAARC and BIMSTEC countries.
Engagement with BIMSTEC Secretariat, SAARC Secretariat,
SAFIR (South Asia Forum for Infrastructure Regulation). All
aspects of Cross border trade in electricity in the BBINS
(Bangladesh, Bhutan, India, Nepal and Sri Lanka) countries,
including harmonization of policies and regulations, advancing
transmission interconnections and creation of regional power
markets.  Proposals of funding of transmission
interconnections, fixing of tariff and philosophy of sharing of
transmission charges of interconnectors.

Project Director & Chief of Party, USAID’s SARI/EI (South Asia
Regional Initiative in Energy Integration) program being
implemented by IRADe (Integrated Research and Action for
Development), a reputed think tank in India, dealing in Energy
& Power Systems, Climate Change and Environment,
Sustainable Development, Poverty Alleviation and Gender,




Earlier positions
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Agriculture and Food Security, etc. The program has ended in
September 2022. The closeout is going on.

Chairperson and CEO of the Central Electricity Authority
(CEA), the technical arm of the Ministry of Power, Govt. of
India, responsible for overall development of the Indian power
system including Hydro, Thermal and Renewable Power as
well as the Transmission & Distribution System of the country.
Member (Planning) and ex-officio Additional Secretary to the
Government of India overseeing various policy and planning
functions, including Electric Power Survey Report on long term
demand forecasting, National Electricity Plan on generation
planning, coal and gas supply to power stations, renewable
sources of energy, etc.

Chief (Engineering) in Central Electricity Regulatory
Commission (CERC) formulating various technical and tariff
Regulations, including various provisions related to wind and
solar power in the revised Indian Electricity Grid Code,
Connectivity Regulations, Power Market Regulations, etc.
Director, Grid Management in the CEA Headquarters. Framed
the regulations of CEA on Technical Standards for
Connectivity to the Grid and regulations on Grid Standards.
Started the Division on Regulatory Affairs in CEA.

Director, Financial and Commercial Appraisal of power
generation and transmission projects in the CEA, and various

financial and commercial matters. Formulating and finalizing

the Standard Bidding documents for procurement of

generation and transmission services, Tariff Policy and
National Electricity Policy, etc.

Executive Engineer operation and maintenance of Power
House, Switchyard and Dam in Chukha Hydro Power
Corporation in Bhutan and later operation and maintenance of
transmission and distribution system of Bhutan.

Assistant Executive Engineer Western Regional Load
Despatch Centre (WRLDC) as a System Operator.




Other Merits

Currently

Member Secretary of the Government Task Force on Peaking
Power Plants and Creation of Adequate System Reserves
Member Secretary of the Government Task Force on
Integration of electricity from Renewable Energy sources in
the Grid.

Member of the Committee of Ministry of Power for formulation
of Model Smart Grid Regulations.

Actively involved in the finalization of the Tariff Policy with the
Hon’ble Minister of Power, Secretary, Power and other officers
of the Ministry of Power, Government of India.

Member Secretary of the Committee formulated by the
Ministry of Power on revision of the National Electricity Policy.
Chairperson of the the Technical Committee On Study of
Optimal Location of Various Types of Balancing Energy
Sources/Energy Storage Devices to Facilitate Grid Integration
Of Renewable Energy Sources And Associated Issues.
Chairperson of the Committee on preparing an approach
paper for charging of electric vehicles including the facility,
institutional arrangement and identification of regulatory
interventions, if any.

Mentored the study on Optimal Power Mix in India by 2030.

Chairperson of Working Group 4 on “Policy, Regulation and
Business Models” in the India Smart Grid Forum.
Chairperson of the BIS Committee of LITD 10 — “Power
System Control and Associated Communication”.

Chairperson of the BIS Committee for making technical

Standards on Grid Scale Storage. Finalised a number of
standards, including the first ever global standard on Battery
Management System.

Member of the Core Group of India Energy Transformation

Platform (IETP), conceptualized by the Center for Study of
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Science, Technology and Policy (CSTEP) & Shakiti
Sustainable Energy Foundation (SSEF).

Member of the expert group of Niti Aayog for Energy Sector
Vision Document.

Member of the Consultative Group of Niti Aayog to discuss
Decarbonization Strategy for Indian Economy

President, International Association on Electricity Generation,

Transmission and Distribution (Afro-Asian Region)

Member of the Advisory Board of Central Board of Irrigation
and Power (CBIP), and various other Advisory Boards.
Independent Director in the West Bengal State Electricity

Distribution Company Ltd.

Member of IEEE
Member of Institution of Engineers (India)

Speaker in various forums, conferences, seminars,
Workshops on all aspects of the power sector
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Profile of Rakesh Kumar Mishra

Details of employment in the chronological order:

Office/Institution Post held on From Nature of Duties
regular basis To
Private
Secretary to
Ministry of HOIZ‘;b%:. Urzlon As PS to the Hon’ble
Fisheries, Animal Mir?is{cl;l? of 07.07.2021 | Minister, assisted him in all
Husbandry and Fisheries 06.01.2022 | the matters assigned to him
Dairying Animal ’ in his official capacity.
Husbandry
and Dairying
Private
Secretary to
Department of an’ble As' ) PS— to . the .Hoﬁ,ble
Agriculture, Minister of 09.08.2019 Minister, assisted him in all
Cooperation and A:;Eiactlil‘fiie 07.07.2021 ?he r'natte'r\? assig ne_d to him
Farmers Welfare and Farmers in his official capacity.
Welfare
Private
Ministry of Secretary to As' . PS o . the .Hoﬁ,ble
Railways, Railway Hon’ble 15.10.2018 Minister, assisted him in all
; Minister of ‘A= the matters assigned to him
Board, State of 31.05.2019 | " o _
New Delhi. Railways in his official capacity.
Director As Dire.ctc.)r.*, RPF had the
o Railway, responsibility _of
Ministry of Protection 98.07.2016 management of the entire
Railways, Railway Force and 15' 10' 2018 Gazetted cadre of RPF.
Board, New Delhi. Staff Officer to T As SO to DG/ RPF, assisted
DG /RPF him in all the matter
assigned to him.
Successfully coordinated
training of more than
6th Battalion, Senior 07.04.2014 | 16,000 newly recruited
RPSF, Commanding 27'07' 2016 | RPF/RPSF constables.
Dayabasti/Delhi. Officer B

Security of Rail Bhavan.
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Mobile and Static security

of Hon’ble Minister of
Railways in Delhi/ NCR.

Successfully organized
Different ceremonial

functions of RPF.

Senior

Supervising Security of
passenger and property
over the most crowded
division of Indian Railways.
Administration of all HR

Sealdah Division, | Divisional | 15.05.2012 |Télated issues  including
Eastern Railway. Security 04.04.2014 | Service matters 2250 RPF
Commissioner personnel in the division.
Constructed barracks and
modernized suburban
passenger  security in
Kolkata.
Led 1099 strong force to
. eliminate smuggled goods
Katihar Division .S(?n.lor transported through
’ Divisional 25.04.2010 ) i
quthea'st Security 14.05.2012 | raillways and eradicated
Frontier Railway. | ~ = . . er drugging menace from the
division.
Commanded 750 RPSF
personnel. Constructed
training infrastructure in
2nd Battalion, Commanding | 15.04.2009 | the RPSF Training Centre
RPSF, Gorakhpur. Officer 20.09.2010 | gnd battalion and provided
to basic training to
Constables of RPF.
Supervising Security of
passenger and property
over a division with 1600
Kms of railway track.
'Ahtmedabad DiVisiopal 17.09.2005 | Administration of all HR
Division, Western Security . . )
Railway. Commissioner 11.04.2009 | related issues including

service matters of all RPF
personnel in the division.
Constructed a Reserve
Police Line including
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barracks and houses for
1040 RPF personnel.

Supervising Security of
passenger and property
over a division with more

Bhavnagar Divisional 15.11.2004 than 1500 Kms. of railway
Division, Western Security 99 09.2005 | track. Administration of all
Railway. Commissioner HR related issues including
service matters all 500 RPF

personnel in the division.
Supervising Security of
passenger and property
Varanasi Division Assistant over sub-division.
North Eastern Security }???3882 Admmzstrqtzon of _ all I_{R
Railway. Commissioner L related issues including
service matters of 550 RPF

personnel.

Supervising Security of
passenger and property
. s . over sub-division.
Katihar Division, Ass1st§1nt 30.06.2003 | Administration of all HR

Northeast Security 15.08.2003 ) _ _
Frontier Railway. | Commissioner T related issues including

service matters of 600 RPF
personnel.

Trainings/Courses/Seminars attended:

(i) Certificate course on ‘Global Energy and Climate Policy’ from University
of London.
(i) Certificate course on leadership- ‘Leading from the Emerging Future’ from

Massachusetts Institute of Technology.

(iij) ‘Training of Trainers’ Course on National Security from 05.01.2009 to
16.01.2009 by Intelligence Bureau, New Delhi.

(iv) Advanced Weapon Training from 29.09.2008 to 04.10.2008 at JR RPF
Academy, Lucknow.

(V) Seminar on Disaster Management organized by NDMA and Karnataka
Government from 13.06.2008 to 14.06.2008 at Bengaluru.
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(vi)  Vertical Interaction Course for IPS and RPF Officers from 24.09.2007 to
28.09.2007 at Railway Staff College, Vadodara.

(viij Development of Forensic Science & Forensic Medicine from 19.06.2006
to 24.06.2006 at CFSL, Hyderabad.

Awards/Citations/Achievements:

(i) National Award for Outstanding Service presented by Hon’ble Union
Minister of Railways in 2013.

(i) Security Shield for Best Performing Division of Eastern Railway — Sealdah
(2013).

(iii) Security Shield for Best Performing Division of Western Railway -
Ahmedabad (2005 & 2007).

(iv) DG’s Insignia and Commendation in 2006.
(v) DG’s Insignia and Commendation in 2015.
(vi) DG’s Insignia and Commendation in 2017.

(vii) DG’s Insignia and Commendation in 2018.
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Narender Kumar

Entrepreneur, Advisor & Investor

Narender Kumar, a national swimming champion, completed his Bachelor in
Technology with Majors in Computer Science & Engineer from Punjab Engineering
College, Chandigarh in 2003. During his degree, he was also awarded Advisor's
Gold Medal for all-rounder achievements and performance for the batch of 1999-
2003

He is an investor and advisor to many startups implementing new age technologies
to overcome real life challenges which include Fintech company helping D2C
companies with higher conversions and reduced RTO, Agritech company using loT
to automate operations, Al company using ANPR to build next generation Tolling
System for the country, Power Sector company with platform to bring Green Energy
to end consumers and an EV startup building charging infrastructure.

In pre-UPI days of 2015, he founded a digital payment platform Trupay. To build
Trupay, he successfully raised investment from international institutional funds.
Trupay, a mini-UPI platform, was the country's first mobile based application that
allowed multi banking real time payment solutions in B2B2C. During
demonetisation, he also contributed to the Government of India’s initiative to
expand digital footprints as part of a committee that framed guidelines for current
age digital solutions such as now omnipresent Universal QR code.

In 2006, he founded JSC, a group that is currently into Highway Infrastructure
Management, Mining and Software Consultancy. JSC's growth can be directly
attributed to its ability to adapt, endure and remain credible with all stakeholders.

In 2003, he joined Indian Oil Corporation through college campus selection as
Information Systems Officer where he managed complex legacy operation
monitoring systems. He also worked with one of the Refinery Management team
to prepare for a board level review meeting.



202

Brief Profile of Shri RN Nayak

RN Nayak was former Chairman & Managing Director, Power Grid Corporation of India. Mr.
Nayak is having over 40 years of experience in various capacities in Power Sector i.e. NTPC
& POWERGRID. He was former Chairman and Managing Director, Power Grid Corporation
of India i.e. Central Transmission Utility of India. He is a first-class Bachelor of Electrical
Engineering from NIT, Rourkela and holds an MTech (Electrical Engineering) from IIT
Kharagpur. He was a founder member of POWERGRID and handled as Head of various multi-
disciplinary functions such as Engineering of UHV AC & DC, Quality Management, Contract
Management, Load Despatch & Communication, Diversification to Telecom business, O & M
& HR. He has introduced many new technologies in the Power Sector such as EMS & SCADA
System for real time Grid Management, 800 KV HVDC, 765 & 1200 KV AC UHV, Smart Grid
Technologies & Ultra Mega Solar Park Developments. He was also deeply involved in Real
Time Grid Management, Market Design, Trading, preparation of various Regulations and
procedures for Open Access in Power sector. He established one of the largest National Grid
in the World i.e. “One Nation, One Grid and One Frequency”. He has introduced many new
concepts in India for development of Renewable Energy like Green Energy Corridor
including Renewable Energy Management Centers at State, Regional & National level; Desert
Power to have Ultra Mega Solar; wind Parks in utilizing waste lands in Deserts. He is a Senior
Member of IEEE, CIGRE and has been honored with Fellow of FNAE in Electrical Engineering.
He was judged as Best CEO in Power Sector consecutively in “The 2013, 2014 & 2015 All Asia

Executive”.

Presently, he is CEO of SMARTEC & Emerging Control Systems and also the member of Board
of Corporates (presently in Tata Power Central Odisha Distribution Ltd & Tata Power
Western Odisha Distribution Ltd, Odisha Power Transmission Corporation Ltd, Grid
Corporation of Odisha, IRM Energy, Diamond Power); advising large Consulting Corporates,

International Consulting firms; the IFC/World Bank; Indian Power Exchanges etc.



AMAN CHHIKARA
ENTERPRENURE & SECURITY
PRACTITIONER

SKILLS & ABILITIES

-Virtual CISO / DPO
-Consulting & Advisory
-Solution Architecture & Design
-Risk Assessment & Mitigation
-Policy making & Governance
-Security strategy & Roadmap
-Global Service delivery

RECOGNITIONS
-Professional Awards received:

Infosec Maestros
Defenders 100
Innovative CIO
NEXTCSO

-Corporate Awards received:

Excellence award (Adobe)
Certificate of Appreciation
3 times at HCL

Innovative solution award
at Cyberoam.

GEM award at e4e
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PROFILE

Aman is a digital security professional with 19+ years of
experience in various information security domains. He holds
huge exposure in Governance, Risk and Compliance, security
architecture & solution design, development of Enterprise
Security framework and implementation of security controls &
their audits.

He has worked for Global companies including Adobe, HCL,
Hindalco, ASM Technologies, vCustomer, and security product
companies including SonicWall, Elitecore Technologies (now
Sophos) etc. Working with these renowned companies, he has
acquired expertise, starting from managing a home network to
complex and mission critical stock exchange environment. With
his strong technical background, he has lead the product analyst
team of UTM device Cyberoam to introduce many new features
and bring enhancement to few existing functionalities.

He is a man with sincerity and dedication, who has always excelled
in roles assigned to him. His contribution has been rewarded
multiple times by his employers and he has been honored several
prestigious awards by many security forums. He has participated
in several events organized by industry forums as a speaker and
trained few organizations on technology, privacy & cyber security
related topics.

Aman is a Post Graduate Diploma holder in Business Management,
but keenly remained close to technology. He has worked on large
number of technologies, regularly updating his skillset to match
the requirement of changing time.

His security certification list includes CISSP, AWS Solutions
Architect, ISO 27001 Lead Auditor, ITILv3, CCSA, CCNA, MCSSTP,
CCNSP, CSSA, ICCA.

He is a very good Relationship Manager with strong skills in
building trust, delivering value and creating strong long-term
relationships with customers, vendors, industry peers and team
members & holds ability to handle the overall security
operations
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Hitesh Chawla

BTech and MTech IIT Delhi

Entrepreneur, Mentor and Investor

Hitesh is the founder of SilverPush, a technology company in
digital advertising space. SilverPush is a pioneer in the world in
privacy-safe advertising, helping brands reach consumers
without using any personal data of users. Hitesh has led
SilverPush to become a global company, built from India. With
presence across more than 20 countries, across 5 continents,
Silverpush is leading the digital advertising industry with its
technology and innovation.

Hitesh has also been supporting and mentoring other
entrepreneurs, having invested in more than 25 StartUps in
India. He completed his Masters and Bachelors from IIT Delhi in
Chemical Engineering in 2004. He also has multiple patents
granted for technology innovation.

He has prior experience working in academic institutes, global
analytics firm and a leading consumer market global leader.
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NARESH KUMAR KAUSHIK

Accomplished senior consulting professional with outstanding analytical ability

extensive experience in engaging with senior executives, managing complex business
situations coupled with the ability to translate solutions into a practical and profitable
application

CORE
COMPETENCIES

Complex Data Analysis
Problem solving

Change Implementation
and management

Project Management &
Controls

Business Analysis &
Forecasting

Financial Evaluations
Qualitative analysis &

Integration with
Quantitative

Leadership & Team
management

Stakeholder Alignment
and management

EDUCATION AND
TRAININGS

Maters in Complex
Systems Engineering and
Management, Delft
University of Technology,
The Netherlands, 2013

Bachelor Of Civil
Engineering, PEC
university of Technology,
India , 2006

Fluor management
Institute, USA, 2017

Harvard New Leader
Program, HBR, 2016

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Sep’l2 -
Present

June’06 —

Jan'll

Director — Consulting and Analytics
Fluor Corporation — Netherlands / USA / Asia Pacific

Strategic Advisory, Cost efficiency and performance improvement Projects
for Corporate Management Team / Business Line management /7 SVP’s

. Reviewed business processes and validated their performance against 100+
datasets to identify performance leakage points, performing root cause analysis,
supported the design of new engineering organization with simplified processes
and easy to implement gate checks

. Strategy and consulting services for the corporate management team to get
insights for cost and schedule certainty for capital projects, provide Key metrics
to evaluate decision options

e Drove Structural problem identification, created numerous data models & deep
dive analysis for risk identification and aversion on 1.0 $B+ lump sum capital
projects. Deliverables include in-depth reports & recommendations on project
execution from technical, commercial and organization perspective. The total value
of capital projects reviews and analyzed ~ $20B, Key projects include

0 LNG facility in Canada

o0 Chemical projects in China, Europe & US
o Downstream Mega projects in Middle east
o0 An Offshore facility in Asia pacific

. Event and Disruption analysis — Strategic analysis of key disruptive events,
scenario planning and risk management

Digital Transformation and Analytics, Organizational Design

. Developed business case, choreographed and delivered a digital platform to
monitor project execution with predictive capabilities. The platform integrates
data from 10+ different functions and provides comprehensive on-the—fly
analysis capabilities

. Build a global digital and analytics organization (30+FTE) with data scientists,
data engineers, analysts, and back end operations to support global projects

. Supported Digital Strategy development and delivered multiple Initiatives to
drive a data-centric execution Model. Key notable projects

o Data Standardization and work process alignment for a digital way

o Data cycle evaluation and its reuse to reduce cost and schedule across
projects

o Design of management reporting to be forward-looking and their
standardization to reduce cost.

Master Thesis Research
Provided a framework on how to leverage data to improve the predictability of capital
projects in the energy & chemicals industry,

Project Management & Controls
Bechtel Corporation - India /7 South America

e Analysed and reporting the execution performance of engineering & procurement
functions for a copper concentrator and alumina refinery projects for project &
client executives.

. Designed & developed an automated early warning system for identifying
negative trends in project cost and schedules and their downstream impact of the
company’s Margin. The system was later integrated in the company’s standard
reporting process

. Managed project planning and associated interfaces between seven engineering &
supply chain disciplines

. Developed Various Level of project schedules and cost estimates for proposals



GNA’s Organizational Structure

Board of Directors

v

Advisory Board

> Chief Executive Officer
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v

v

A

'

Chief Operating & Business Chief Technology & Information

Development Officer

Security Officer

Chief Regulatory Officer

Chief Financial Officer

Operations °

Strategy & Co-ordination with °
Market Players

Procurement

Client Acquisition .
Revenue Generation °
Market Analysis °

Technical Strategy

Technical Infrastructure
Deployment of Platform
Development and Maintenance

Cyber Security & Threat Intelligence

Risk Management

e Regulatory Affairs

e Coordination with
Stakeholders

e Compliance
e Reporting
e Litigation

e Market Surveillance

e Financial Planning

e Accounting

e Business Finance

e Expense Management
e Strategy & Forecasting

e Negotiations
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BEFORE THE HON’BLE CENTRAL ELECTRICITY REGULATORY COMMISSION,
AT NEW DELHI
PETITION NO. 380/MP/2022

IN THE MATTER OF:
GNA Energy Private Limited ..Petitioner
VERSUS
New Age Markets in Electricity
Private Limited ...Impleaded Respondent/Objector
AFFI IT
1. I, Shri. Sanjeev Kumar, son of Shri. Jai Singh aged about 38 years working as Director

of GNA Energy Private Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”), incorporated on
15.09.2022 under the Companies Act, 2013 having its Registered Office at 706, Palm Spring
Plaza, Sector 54, Gurugram - 122009, presently at New Delhi and having CIN No.
U74999HR2022PTC106630 do solemnly affirm and state as under:

2. The Company or any of its associates, or partners, or promoters, or Directors have not
been declared insolvent.

3. The Company or any of its associates, or partners, or promoters, or Directors have not
been convicted in cases for moral turpitude, fraud of economic offences during the year of
making the application and three years immediately preceding the year of making application.

4, The Company or any of its Associates, or partners, or promoter, or Directors were not
found guilty of contravention of any of the provisions of the Act or the rules or the regulations
made there under or an order made by the Appropriate Commission, in any proceedings.

| solemnly state that the contents of this affidavit are true to the best of my knowledge
anel-helief and that it conceals nothing and that no part of it is false.

A
R))« M GNA Engrgy f’rivﬂﬂe Limited
v
~ Signature: '/\

| |dentify the Executant/ Deponent >— Birector
who has Signed in my Presence (Deponent)

D) ¢9%/ pesy VERIEL :
| verify that the contents of this affidavit are true to the best of my knowledge and belief.

GNA E%rgv Erl,ua?e Limited

m T

e Signature:
ATAR
~ . placer "’” bm = \(Depomtbr
Date: I '
ATTESTED
/gf& \')‘407 l/ oy W LV

NOTARY P <1
=V W YL UBLIC



	380_MP_2022.pdf
	7_9954_6_1.pdf
	PETITION WITH ANNEXURES (DOF:17.12.2022)
	I.A. NO. 7/2023 BY THE APPLICANT (DOF:18.1.2023)
	AMENDED MEMO OF PARTIES (DOF: 01.02.2023)
	REVISED PETITION/ APPLICATION BY THE PTNR. (DOF: 25.02.2023)




{"type":"Form","isBackSide":false,"languages":["en-us"],"usedOnDeviceOCR":true}


{ "type": "Document", "isBackSide": false }


{ "type": "Document", "isBackSide": false }


{ "type": "Document", "isBackSide": false }


{ "type": "Document", "isBackSide": false }


{ "type": "Document", "isBackSide": false }


{ "type": "Document", "isBackSide": false }


{ "type": "Document", "isBackSide": false }


{ "type": "Document", "isBackSide": false }


{ "type": "Document", "isBackSide": false }


{ "type": "Document", "isBackSide": false }


{ "type": "Document", "isBackSide": false }


{"type":"Form","isBackSide":false,"languages":["en-us"],"usedOnDeviceOCR":true}


{"type":"Form","isBackSide":false,"languages":["en-us"],"usedOnDeviceOCR":true}


{"type":"Form","isBackSide":false,"languages":["en-us"],"usedOnDeviceOCR":true}


{"type":"Document","isBackSide":false,"languages":["en-us"],"usedOnDeviceOCR":true}


{"type":"Document","isBackSide":false,"languages":["en-us"],"usedOnDeviceOCR":true}


{"type":"Document","isBackSide":false,"languages":["en-us"],"usedOnDeviceOCR":true}


{"type":"Document","isBackSide":false,"languages":["en-us"],"usedOnDeviceOCR":true}


{"type":"Document","isBackSide":false,"languages":["en-us"],"usedOnDeviceOCR":true}


{"type":"Document","isBackSide":false,"languages":["en-us"],"usedOnDeviceOCR":true}


{"type":"Document","isBackSide":false,"languages":["en-us"],"usedOnDeviceOCR":true}


{ "type": "Form", "isBackSide": false }


{ "type": "Document", "isBackSide": false }


{ "type": "Document", "isBackSide": false }


{"type":"Document","isBackSide":false,"languages":["en-us"],"usedOnDeviceOCR":true}

	data[0]: 
	Certificate[0]: 
	Text1[0]: I hereby certify that GNA ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED is incorporated on this Fifteenth day of September Two thousand twenty-two under the Companies Act, 2013 (18 of 2013) and that the company is limited by shares.
	CompanyName[0]: GNA ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
	Yearofgenerationofcertificate[0]: Two thousand twenty-two
	Monthofgenerationofcertificate[0]: September
	Dateofgenerationofcertificate[0]: Fifteenth
	Limited[0]: limited by shares
	Yearofapprovalofwork[0]: Two thousand twenty-two
	Dateofapprovalofwork[0]: Fifteenth
	Text2[0]: Given under my hand at Manesar this Fifteenth day of September Two thousand twenty-two .
	AddressoftheprincipalplaceofbusinessinIndia[0]: 2861, SEC-46, GURUGRAM, GURUGRAM, Gurgaon, Haryana, India, 122001
	NameofthecompanymailingAddress[0]: GNA ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
	RegistrarofCompanies[0]: DEPUTY REGISTRAR OF COMPANIES
	FullnameofAuthorisingofficerappovingworkitem[0]: Mr RAJENDER KUMAR
	CIN[0]: U74999HR2022PTC106630
	Text2[1]:  U74999HR2022PTC106630.
	Monthofapprovalofworkk[0]: September
	City[0]: Manesar
	PAN[0]: AAKCG0444P
	Issued[0]: 
	Add[0]: GNA ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
2861, SEC-46, GURUGRAM, GURUGRAM, Gurgaon, Haryana, India, 122001
	Panline[0]: The Permanent Account Number (PAN) of the company is 
	star[0]: 
	starup[0]: 
	TAN[0]: RTKG17202D
	Tanline[0]: The Tax Deduction and Collection Account Number (TAN) of the company is 
	starup[1]: 




